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" Corporate Information

SLFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (resigned on 19 September 2024)
Ms. Zhu Guohua (appointed on 19 September 2024)

Mr. Gu Jianguo (appointed on 19 September 2024)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Qiang (appointed on 9 May 2025)
Mr. Lam Wing Yiu (appointed on 19 September 2025)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Wai

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (Chairman) (resigned on 6 May 2025)

Mr. Chan Chi Wai
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming
Mr. Li Qiang (appointed on ? May 2025)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Chi Wai

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (resigned on 6 May 2025)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Chi Wai

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (resigned on é May 2025)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

AUDITORS
Prism Hong Kong Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (resigned on 19 September 2024)
Mr. Pang Wai Ho (appointed on 19 September 2024)
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Corporate Information

LAFEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEAWRSH

PROSPECT

The Group's strategic shift toward a procurement and sourcing
service provider model was designed to enhance flexibility and cost
efficiency. However, the expected benefits have been constrained
by worsening macroeconomic conditions. The initial assumption of
stable economic conditions—key to restoring the Eyewear Business
to pre-transition levels—has not been realized. Instead, the global
economic environment has introduced significant challenges,
disrupting the recovery momentum observed earlier in the fiscal
year.

As of 31 March 2025, the eyewear industry in Hong Kong,
including the Group, continues to face unprecedented pressures
in an increasingly volatile market. Persistent inflationary trends,
particularly in core markets such as Europe and the United
States, have eroded consumer purchasing power more severely
than projected. Consequently, demand for eyewear products
has weakened as consumers prioritize essential spending over
discretionary purchases like fashion eyewear.

Simultaneously, the Group's reliance on production facilities in
Mainland China has come under strain due to rising costs and
declining price competitiveness. The emergence of lower-cost
manufacturing hubs in Southeast Asia has intensified competition,
compressing profit margins and diminishing the Group's historical
pricing advantages.

These market dynamics have made it increasingly difficult to sustain
profitability without compromising on quality.

In response, management has initiated a long-term strategy
to diversify the supply chain, including exploring partnerships
with cost-competitive suppliers in Southeast Asia. However, this
transition requires careful execution-identifying, vetting, and
onboarding reliable suppliers while maintaining quality standards
will be a gradual process. As a result, short-term performance may
be impacted during this realignment period.

For Film Investment Business, the Hong Kong film industry
continues to navigate a gradual recovery, though progress remains
uneven. While the Company maintains a cautiously optimistic
outlook, the broader market has yet to regain its pre-pandemic
vitality. The film exhibition sector in China, including Hong Kong
and Macau, has seen fluctuating demand, with audience enthusiasm
varying across releases—highlighting the ongoing challenges in
sustaining consistent growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFWRESH

PROSPECT (Continued)

Despite these headwinds, the Group's strategic cooperation with
Emperor Motion Pictures ("EMP”) has been a key milestone in
diversifying its investment approach. By participating in a slate of
film projects, the Group aims to balance risk and reward, reducing
reliance on the performance of any single production. This portfolio
strategy is expected to yield more stable returns over time, though
near-term profitability remains pressured by the industry’s slower-
than-expected recovery.

The Hong Kong film industry has long been recognized for its
resilience and creativity, yet recent market conditions have proven
challenging. While government initiatives continue to support
local production and investment, broader economic uncertainties
and shifting consumer preferences have tempered growth.
Nevertheless, Hong Kong cinema retains its international appeal,
and the Group remains committed to leveraging this reputation.

Moving forward, the Company is actively exploring additional
collaborations with leading production houses in Hong Kong,
building on its partnership with EMP. While expansion in the current
environment requires measured steps, the Group is confident in the
long-term potential of the industry and is strategically positioning
itself to capitalize on future opportunities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any material capital
commitment (2024: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no significant liabilities (2024:
Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFWRESH

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCE AND
GOING CONCERN

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$8.7 million (2024: HK$7.1 million). To finance
its operations and investments, the Group utilises cash flows
generated from operations and from a loan facility granted by an
independent third party. As at 31 March 2025, the Group had total
borrowings of HK$44.7 million (2024: HK$13.1). The loan facility is
unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable within one year. Gearing
ratio of the Group (expressed as a percentage of total borrowings
over total assets) was 58.7% as at 31 March 2025 (2024: 14.3%).
As at 31 March 2025, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$39.9 million (2024: HK$35.1 million).

A series of plans and measures have been taken to mitigate
liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of the
Group. In order to enhance the liquidity and improve the financial
position of the Group, the Group has obtained external financial
support.

Details regarding uncertainties on the going concern of the Group
and the respective plans and measures are set out in the section
headed "Going concern basis” in Note 3 to the notes to the

consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, the Group employed 25 (2024: 26) full time
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Salaries, bonuses
and benefits are determined with reference to market terms and
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee, and are subject to review from time to time.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year (2024: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFWRESH

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Being one of the major traders and exporters of optical frames,
the Group has put its emphasis on product quality and production
technology development. Putting the customers’ needs on the
highest priority, the Group always strives to provide customers with
first class service and full satisfaction.

The Group is also actively identifying and exploring other
investments and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. Potential acquisitions or mergers will be assessed by
the Board for expansion of the business segments of the Group.
The Board believes diversified investments are beneficial to the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to the Management Discussion
and Analysis.

In the normal course of business, the Group's operations, business
performance, financial position and prospects may be exposed to
the following risks and uncertainties:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Risk

The impact of economic conditions on consumer confidence
and buying habits will affect the sales, revenue and results
of the Group. The economic growth or decline in respective
geographical markets that affected consumer spending
on our products will also affect the Group’s business. The
Group continues to implement its strategies to develop and
strengthen penetration of different geographical markets
thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

2. Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, cash and
cash equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables, accruals and deposits received, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. The management
will closely monitor the risks attributable to those assets
should there be any significant exposure arise in the future.
Details of the Group's credit and liquidity risks are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREFWRESH

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

3.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly bank balances at prevailing market interest
rates. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi ("RMB”) and United Stated dollar
("USD"). As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the USD, the
Group does not foresee any material exchange risk in this
respect. The management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HBERELRS

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report highlights its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the "ESG") performance by the Group, with disclosure reference
made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities ("Listing Rules”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”).

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
areas, namely, environmental and social areas of the business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Company has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide and followed the following
reporting principles in the preparation of this ESG Report:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.

e Materiality
The Group determines ESG issues that are significantly
important by stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. Details are explained in the sections headed
"Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” of
this ESG Report.

¢  Quantitative
Information is presented with quantitative measure,
whenever feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

e Balance
This ESG Report identifies the achievements and challenges
faced by the Group.

e Consistency
This ESG Report is the fourth ESG Report of the Group. This
ESG Report will use consistent methodologies for meaningful
comparisons in the following years unless improvements in
methodologies are identified.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the
combined control, management and operations information
provided by the subsidiaries in accordance with the Group's
internal management systems. In the event of contradiction
or inconsistency between the Chinese version and the English
version, the English version shall prevail.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HERELIHEE

Reporting Boundary

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG Report
covers the Group's businesses including (a) the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses; (b) the property investment segment; (c) the
debts and securities investment segment; (d) the film investment
and distribution segment; and (e) the energy business segment.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the concerns of its stakeholders through
day-to-day communications. Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid
foundation for the Group's sustainable development and success.
They help the Group to develop a business strategy that meets
the needs and expectations of stakeholders, enhance the ability
to identify risk and strengthen important relationships. The Group
communicates with its stakeholders through various channels,
shown as below.

Stakeholders
BinE BERE

Government and regulatory authorities e

BT K B B R

information

FERE - PHRS

Investors and Shareholders °

BRREEHE

shareholders

Communication Channels
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Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public
RE g hERREREMARER

Annual general meetings and other general meetings of

BRAFAEREMERAE

o Company website

NCIE b

e Press releases/announcements

iR N

o Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public

information

FERE - PHHRS

Employees o Training
(== =]l
° Meetings

A*ﬁé
=

. Performance evaluation
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o Leisure activities

NENEE

B HEREARERAMAMER

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRE HERELIES

Stakeholders

Communication Channels

& BERE
Customers o Email and customer service hotline
BP BEBNEFPRBAZ
° Business meetings
X%as
° Company website
NGIFER
Suppliers ° Email and customer service hotline
HrER BEBNEFPRBAZ
° Business meetings
E A
o Contract and agreements
Bp 4 N 2 B
. Company website

NSIEER

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Board supports the Group’'s commitment to fulfilling
its environmental and social responsibility and has overall
responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting.

The Board oversees the ESG strategies, policies, objectives and
targets. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of
the implementation to the senior management and department
heads. Senior management advises and supports the Board on
ESG matters, strategies, policies, manages and monitors ESG
performance and targets. Departments implement ESG policies
and related initiatives. The Board regularly reviews the Group’s
ESG performance and examines and approves the Group's annual
ESG report. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing
ESG- related issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -ERELRE

SUSTAINABILITY VISION o {FEERES
Our vision and aspiration are: ZMMEREBER

1. To be a pioneer and a leader in the industry with a portfolio 1. BMABTEZEBRRIBE REPREM
of transformative and innovative products for our customers; — RS E R A EEm

2. To ensure that our business is sustainable and profitable 2. WREBEREZERBMNATE A
providing healthy and long-term returns to our shareholders; BARREHBREREZ DR &

and

3. To build a high-performance team with good business culture 3. BUABRHFERXERAEFMING
and robust engagement of internal and external stakeholders. FHEBR2ME Y S REK -

Our commitments are: R ERE A -

1. To do business in environmentally-friendly way to conserve 1. FIRERRAUKLERBEUHOER
resources;

2. To create a positive impact and contribute to our 2. REMOTESTREEZERER:
communities; and 54

3. To be an effective organization that enhances integrity and 3. KA REURREaHAERAHSZE
high operational standards. REZHiE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRE HERELIES

BOARD STATEMENT
Dear Stakeholders:

On behalf of the Board (the " Board”) of Directors (the
"Director(s)”), | hereby present to you the Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG”) Report for the year ended 31 March 2025,
providing an overview of the Group’s management on significant
ESG issues that have impacts on the operation.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritisation,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system.

The Group’s business operations unavoidably result in
environmental impacts and contribute to climate change, either
directly or indirectly. We, based on the interests of stakeholders,
advocate waste reduction and improving resource efficiency.
The Group has established short-term and long-term sustainable
development goals to reduce emissions in accordance with
governmental requirements. To promote sustainable development,
we enhance our safety management system to ensure the safety
and health of employees. We acknowledge the importance of
managing ESG impacts in the supply chain, protecting the interests
of local communities, and complying with all applicable laws and
regulations.

Moving forward, the Group remains committed to pursuing a
better society and achieving common prosperity for enterprises,
society, and the environment. We strive for a win-win situation for
all stakeholders and aim to be a positive force for social stability
and upward progress.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited
Zhu Guohua
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2025
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HERELIES

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. IRE
Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting AEBRBERHAETEIREN A
period was mainly electricity, gasoline, water, paper and oK AR REEMFEYERRR -
waste.
The business does not involve in production related air and ZEBULESRZERE TS5 LB
land pollutions which are regulated under the laws in Hong WEE  BESRAXBEBRPEIERE
Kong and in the PRC. FTiRE -
Total floor area coverage for the Group was 422.2 sq.ft. (2024: AREBABERELEERE /L2222
29,872 sq.ft.) and the Group accounts for 100% of emissions FHER(ZZEZPUF : 29872F F %
from its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. R)  MAKRERFPERESEZEBNE
EH M E 2100% ©
Greenhouse Gas Emission i 2 5 g HE
Change in
Scope of Greenhouse Emission Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO2e) (in percentage)
ERE EREZ(
BERBHNEE HBERURIR (MW SR EEat) (E5Ek)
31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 vs. 2024
—BChE —E-MmEF s G
=A=+-—H =R=+—8H T EFLR
Scope 1
gE
Direct Emission Unleaded Petroleum 23.73 38.5 -38.4%
HEHER Consumed by Company
owned fleet
ARRIBBEBRFTEREZ &N
i
Scope 2
fEE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 24.98 50.6 -50.6%
LE373 BAEN
Water Consumption 0.03 0.1 -70%
k&
Sewage Consumption 0.02 0.07 -71.4%
iy, ik <7
Scope 3
fEE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 0.71 1.99 -64.3%
Hofth 8 BE A R RBRE
Total 49.47 91.2
st
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BRE HERELIES

Removal of Greenhouse Gas Emissions RRAEAEREHRE
Unit 2025 2024 Changes
1y —E-HE —E-QmF g
Total Greenhouse Gas Emitted (a) tCO,e 49.47 91.2 -45.8%
BEREEERR Wi — &1t ﬁEE
Total Floor Area Coverage (b) ft? 422.2 29,872 -98.6%
FMBEZREEMEMBED R
Annual Emission Inten5|ty (c) = (a)/(b) tCO,e/ft? 0.118 0.03 2,933.3%
FRPEMEE () = (a)/(b) SR EE
77 IR

There was 912 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation in the
reporting period. The annual emission intensity was 0.118
tCO2e/ft2 (2024: 0.03).

Water

Water consumption by the Group was 96 m3 (2024: 2,987
m3), with water intensity of 0.03 m3/m2 (2023: 0.06 m3/
m2). The Group actively promotes water efficient practices
so as to reduce water wastage caused by human error and
unintentional switching mistake.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was 35,580 kWh
(2024: 1,072,059 kWh), with an energy intensity of 84.30 kWh/
m2 dropped from last year (2024: 24.1 kWh/m2) despite
positive business growth. The Group advocates employees
to switch off idle lightings, computers, office equipment
and air-conditioning systems when they are not in use. The
Group continues its commitment in installing and switching to
energy-saving lighting fixtures and sourcing energy efficient
equipment to ensure functioning in optimal conditions and
efficiency.

Gasoline

A total of 14,130 liters of gasoline (2024: 22,877 liters) was
used for motor vehicles and production equipment in the
reporting period, contributing to 23.73 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (2024: 38.41 tonnes). Regular maintenance
on the Group's vehicles is carried out to ensure a high fuel
efficiency to reduce emissions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE HERELRE

Paper

The Group continues to practise paper saving initiatives, such
as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff to have
environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and separated
collection of waste paper for effective recycling. A total of 0.16
tonnes of paper (2024: 1.99 tonnes) has been used for daily
office operations and advertising materials such as leaflet,
catalogue, sales kit.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes from the Group's operation includes cellulose acetate
sheets, packaging materials, scrap metal, scrap equipment
and scrap papers for production and office use for sales and
marketing purposes.

Non-hazardous waste includes waste papers of approximately
0 tonnes (2024: O tonnes). All of the aforesaid wastes have
been collected by licensed recycling companies. Packaging
materials such as paper boxes and carton containers used
for packaging were also collected by licensed recycling
companies.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/significant
impact on environment and natural resources. The Group
nonetheless commits to using natural resources efficiently
while we encourage the reuse and recycling of materials
during our daily operations. In addition, the Group is
committed in applying industry best practices and complying
with legislation, establishing and reviewing safety, security,
and environmental goals and targets, effectively using
energy and materials, reducing waste and emissions, and
communicating our environmental protection policy to all
employees.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that businesses must take
responsibility for being a role model of industry in relation
to sustainability of the environment, and we should bear the
responsibilities and fulfill the obligations in protecting them.

4 5R

AEBBREETHMHBEERE  Hlm
TEREmYE RRESTHESRRY
ENNBIE R D FWREREML A EBUL -
BERAZEENESYH (NEE
EmBENEEBR) MAREKEALA
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RE HERELRE

Climate Change

The Group is aware that climate changes would have
significant impact on its business operations and its property
may be damaged by extreme weather conditions, e.g.,
tropical cyclones, rainstorms and earthquakes, which may
further affect the safety of our employees. The Group
identified, evaluated and managed the climate-related
risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group has not been
seriously affected by extreme weather conditions as the
Group has set up various emergency plans to prevent the
disruption of our business operations and to safeguard the
safety of our employees such as working arrangement under
tropical cyclone warning signal no. 8 or above, and black
rainstorm warning. The Group will continue to closely monitor
the effect and potential risks of climate change, and to
improve and implement the measures taken to reduce such
climate-related risks. Set out below are risks that the Group

identified.

Physical Risks

Physical risks are the risks that may potentially cause physical
impact to our Group's operations. For instance, extreme
weather may disrupt supply chain and hence reduce revenue
and increased costs from business; and the increase in global
temperature may lead to an increase in energy consumption
by our Group’s offices. We expect that it would not have a
material impact on our operations and financial performance
in the short or medium term. A range of measures, such
as contingency plan for extreme weather or emergency
conditions, are in place to enhance the resilience of the
Group's operation to such risk.

Transition Risks

Transition risks are the risks related to the transition to a
lower-carbon economy, which may entail extensive policy,
legal, technology, and market changes to address mitigation
and adaptation requirements related to climate change.
For instance, (i) regulators may impose more stringent ESG-
related disclosure requirements; and (ii) technological
advancements may affect our ability to compete unless we
invest in the relevant technology. Such changes may therefore
result in increased operating costs for us. The Group shall
regularly monitor existing and emerging trends, climate—
related policies and regulations.
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B HERELIES

B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group had a total number of 25 employees as of 31
March 2025 (2024: 26), in which 100% was working as full time

#HE
B R ITER
=3

BHE-_ZT-_AF=RAR=+—H &%
BEHABE(ZT_MEF : 26%) B

staff. B ERI00%EEHET -
Compensation and dismissal M & 1%
2025
—F-hHE
Number of
employees
EEAY
Employee structure EE%RE
By gender =R &l 5
Male Bt 11
Female M 14
By age group RER AR E 5
Under 35 35T 1
36-55 365% £555% 12
Over 55 55% LA £ 12
By category R &l
Management BIREE 5
General Employees —RIEE 20
By geographical region Fe b = 2l 53
Hong Kong B 25
PRC i 0

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional

opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a
yearly basis based on performance appraisals and the market
trend. Employees are entitled to year-end bonus, mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, various types of paid leave
in addition to annual leave and sick leave.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their
social identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender,
religion, age, sexual orientation, marital status, pregnancy,
disability and political beliefs. The level of compensation of
our employees is reviewed annually in an annual appraisal on
their performance basis, during which process each employee
is given equal opportunity for promotion.

AEERHABFHZHFM  SHH
T MERENGFE ARSI KRR
AT - FHEHREBFERTEBE
MEBFRMLRAR - EEAZAFR
TEAL - BEIMEATES BERRUAK
FREBBMIINZZBEFHFRS -

BREREH
AEBETFEHGMARE - RENRE
B FHEBEATEXINEREK 2
PR B MR REC Filk MR
M~ AR 'R RR RBUA(E
SELEIOMTE AKEEFER
ETBEIZEREEERA R H
FBIKF ERBIET SEEHE
BYEETHE -
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RE HERELRE

SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life balance”
to its employees and adopts five to six days workweek
dependent on level of duty and nature of operations involved
to ensure that the employees have adequate rest. The Group
determines working hours and rest periods for the employees
in line with Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and
employment contracts with the employees. In addition to
statutory holidays, the employees are also entitled to other
paid holidays including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compensation leave.

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
The Group is dedicated to promoting the value of diversity
and recognizes the importance of having a workforce with
different backgrounds and perspectives for the organization’s
success. In such regards, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative workplace
culture. The Group aims to provide equal opportunities in
all aspects of employment and ensure the workplace is free
from discrimination, physical or verbal harassment against any
individual based on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental capability, age, place of origin, marital status,
and sexual orientation. The Group also strives to ensure
that complaints, afflictions and concerns, including whistle—
blowing, are dealt with promptly and confidentially.

The Group regularly reviews employee handbook which
outlines the Group’s key messages, policies, procedures,
promotion channel, compensation and benefits, occupational
health and safety, complaint and whistleblowing channels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HERELES

B. SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
(Continued)

M@ () .
RERETHR (2
Zult FEEERRER (B)

2025
—F-hHE
Number of
employees
EEAY
Annual turnover rate FERKE
By gender R &l 5
Male S 0
Female 74 0
By age group REE AR E 5
Under 35 35T 0
36-55 363K E555% 0
Over 55 55% LA £ 0
By category R &5
Management EEE Y
General Employees —RIEE Y
By geographical region it E &5
Hong Kong B 0
PRC i 0

Occupational Health and Safety Data

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to
workplace:

Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated, kept
clean and tidy with ample space between workstations;

Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection
treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;
First-aid boxes are set up in the offices; and

Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and
replaced when necessary.

BERRAZZHE
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RE ERELRE

B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #& (&)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety Data (Continued)

EiERETERGE)
BERERZZHE(E)

2025 2024

e e —FT_oME

Work related fatality E TR T 0 0

Work injury cases > 3 days THEE(ZRM3B8) 0 0

Work injury < 3 days T5(PR38) 0 0

The total days lost due to work injury E T{E18K 4 T {ER & 0 0
Employee Health and Safety EEREHZD

The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees and to inspire and strengthen
workforce regardless of their age, gender and ethnical
backgrounds. With the aging population being a long-
term demographic trend in Hong Kong, the Group has a
sustainable workforce in this perspective.

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and safety
procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being. Briefing,
training, news and tips are provided to employees to raise
their awareness on safety production process.

There was no lost day due to work injury in this reporting
period. The management will continue its effort in
strengthening the Group’s occupational health and safety
performance.

Development and Training

Comprehensive professional training is provided to
employees to deliver top services to our customers. For
the Reporting Period, 6 employees have received training,
representing 23% of the employees of the Group, with the
average training hours of 3 hours.
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BRE HERELRE

SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was in the Group’s operations
in the reporting period. It is in compliance with the
Employment Ordinances, both in Hong Kong and the PRC in
terms of employment management.

The recruitment process is strictly abided by the guidelines
of the Group’s Human Resource Department. Every job
applicant is required to fill in their information in a recruitment
qguestionnaire, which is checked by Human Resource
Department to ensure information’s accuracy. This also allows
the Group to hire suitable candidate in accordance with the
job requirements and candidates’ expectations.

Employment Communication

The Group actively engages and motivates employees
through various communication channels. The regular update
on website keeps employees updated on corporate news and
activities. The Group also organized annual dinner, festival—
related celebration, sport and volunteer works, etc. to nourish
a greater sense of belonging and to provide enhanced
communication channels between senior management and
general staff. The Group believes having better transparent
governance and investing efforts and hours on our best asset,
employees, is the key to success of a sustainable business.

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on the
basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. The Group also appreciates the importance
of cultural diversity in the development of the business, and
employs employees in a wide range of ages, genders, and
ethnicities.
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BRE HERELIHEE

SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

A strict tendering process is also in place to provide a fair
and transparent platform for securing the best supplier for
procurement of all equipment, products and services.

Supplier

Suppliers for products, semi-products, spare parts, raw,
treatment and packaging materials range from France,
United Kingdom, Germany, Italy, Japan, Taiwan, the PRC
and Hong Kong. They are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as production process, quality
management system, regulatory requirement compliance,
operating capacity, sample availability for testing, packaging,
management’s commitment, training policy and procedure,
price, delivery assurance, and product recall policy, so
as to procure superior goods and services from the most
competitive sources. Additional information such as
observation results after suppliers’ production plant visits
is used to evaluate the suppliers in order to have the best
selected providers. The Group also monitors the overall
performance of selected suppliers by conducting vendor
audits with documented reports to substantiate the selection
and on-going cooperation.

During the Reporting Period, there were 14 suppliers of the
Group, all of them are located in Hong Kong & PRC.

Product

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials and equipment with
standardized procurement procedure and policies. The
Group’s procurement policy and its comprehensive
procurement management systems help screening out
undesirable products in the aspects of raw materials
and ingredients selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Product Responsibility: Product recall policy

The Group maintains a good record of zero product recall
this year, nevertheless the Group continues its commitment
to consumer safety and protection by having product recall
procedures and policy in place.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policy

The Group’s Information Technology Department has
devised a comprehensive data protection policy to provide
adequate protection and confidentiality of all corporate data
and proprietary information. To comply with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong and to protect the rights of employees, customers, and
business partners, access control protocol is clearly defined
to limiting the access to a system or to physical or virtual
resources. The Group employs a comprehensive enterprise
resources planning system for its finance-related operations
to ensure privacy and maintain information confidentiality.
The Group strictly abides with the regulation in the collection,
usage, handling, and storage of data to ensure data integrity
and safety.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group's policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our employees. The Group endeavours to protect the
whistle-blower from common concerns such as potential
retaliation and is assured that their identity as a whistle-
blower will be kept confidential.

Community Investment
The Group is committed to supporting the public by means
of social participation and donation and putting the best
effort into helping the local communities and people in need
through community services and engagement, social support
and sponsorship programs.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any
donations (2024: Nil).
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BRE HERELIES

DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Group will continue actively sourcing energy-saving appliances,
equipment and materials with careful selection and review of
suppliers and their origins. Opportunities to work with other charity
partners and more training and development in terms of raising
staff's awareness on environmental and social impacts from the
business will also be considered. The Group also recognises the
trend and possibilities with applying digital technologies in daily
office operations and marketing strategy, therefore resource use
and promotional tools in the future will be adapted to make the
businesses more transformative, sustainable, as well as having
greater capability to attractive future talents.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff and fellow directors for their
contributions, support and dedication. | would also like to thank
our customers, shareholders, bankers, suppliers and other business
partners for their continuous support.

Zhu Guohua
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2025
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Ms. Zhu Guohua (“"Ms. Zhu"), aged 50, graduated from Yangzhou
Polytechnic Institute. She has been an entrepreneur for many years
and possesses a wide network of contacts and market resources.
Since 2016, she has founded Jiangsu Xuanyu Haocheng Information
Technology Co., Ltd., where she serves as the Managing Director,
fully responsible for the overall operations and management of the
company. Ms. Zhu has extensive experience in chain operations and
the food and grocery industry, particularly in corporate operations
and marketing management, with over twenty years of experience.

Mr. Gu Jianguo ("Mr. Gu"), aged 44, has over 20 years of
experience in project and administrative management and has
extensive expertise in operation and production of glass and
materials related products. Mr. Gu was an executive Director of
Diwang Industrial Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock
Code: 1950) from 10 December 2021 to 3 March 2023 and he has
been an independent non-executive Director of King International
Investment Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 928) from 22 August 2023 to 19 March 2024 and then
redesignated as an executive Director since 19 March 2024. From
2003 to 2012, Mr. Gu was an executive deputy general manager of
Nanjing Yaopi Network Technology Co., Limited*. Since 2014, Mr.
Gu has worked as a general manager at Hongze Hetai Investment
Co., Limited*. Mr. Gu completed a senior management program
from the Business School of Nanjing Normal University.

Mr. Li Qiang (“Mr. Li"), aged 55, holds a bachelor's degree in
Civil Engineering from China University of Geosciences. From 1992
to 2009, he joined Shanghai Construction No. 4 (Group) Co., Ltd.,
where he worked in engineering budgeting and final accounting,
primarily responsible for cost calculation and approval of company
projects. From 2010 to 2019, he joined Shanghai Jianke Engineering
Consulting Co., Ltd.,
responsible for capital auditing and cost control of engineering
projects. Since 2020, he has been employed at Shanghai Xingyang
Construction Consulting Co., Ltd., holding the positions of Chief
Economist and General Manager. In this role, he oversees auditing

serving as Project Audit Supervisor, mainly

and supervision management, as well as the overall operational
management of the company. With extensive work experience
in planning management, process manufacturing, and financial
auditing, Mr. Li possesses over 30 years of expertise, particularly in
corporate operations and audit management.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited
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Mr. Lam Wing Yiu ("Mr. Lam”), aged 47, has over 15 years
of experience in credit control and risk management. Mr. Lam
is currently the head of credit and risk control department of
Emperor Capital Group Limited (Stock Code: 717). Prior to that,
Mr. Lam worked with Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Company
Limited with the title of associate director and head of credit
control department. He had various positions related to credit
control and risk management in financial institutions including
Industrial Securities (HK) Financial Holdings Company Limited,
BOCOM International Holdings Company Limited and Core-
Pacific Yamaichi International (H.K.) Limited. Mr. Lam received his
Bachelor of Commerce in Finance and Economics from University
of Wollongong and his Master of Commerce in Fund Management
from University of New South Wales. He is currently a certified
Financial Risk manager (FRM). Mr. Lam served as a non-executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 997)
since May 2023 and a non-executive director of Century Plaza Hotel
Group (Stock code: 8315) since June 2024.

CHAN CHI WAI, aged 47, has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company, a member of each of
the audit committee of the Company ("Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of the Company
("Nomination Committee”) with effect from 9 February 2024.

Mr. Chan obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from Preston University in 2005. His expertise covers investment
banking and alternative investment management. He is currently
serving as a director of CNJ Capital Investment Inc., whose shares
are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange Venture Exchange. In
addition, Mr. Chan is the co-founder of a well-known financial
services company that focuses on inclusive finance in the middle
and western regions of Canada.

LAW, MICHAEL KA MING, aged 64, has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company, a member
of the Audit Committee and chairman of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from 10
May 2024.

Mr. Law has over 30 years of experience in corporate management,
finance, banking, construction and property development. He
is currently an executive director of Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 8366), an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 887) and an independent non—
executive director of Century Group International Holdings Limited
(Hong Kong Stock Code: 2113). Mr. Law holds a Master’s Degree in
business administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Bachelor's Degree in building studies from The University
of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Quantity Surveyor of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRELSHRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The statement of corporate governance practices set out below and
information incorporated by reference constitutes the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

The Board is committed to ensuring and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures in fulfilling its
responsibilities. It is the belief of the Board that shareholders can
maximize their benefits from good corporate governance. The
Company has always recognised the importance of transparency
and accountability. The Group has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Directors of the Company consider that
the Company has complied with the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2025 ("Year”), except for the following deviations:

Code provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that there should be a clear division
of responsibilities between management of the Board and the day-
to-day management of business. The Board did not appoint any
Director as its Chairman during the Year. The Board will review the
present situation in the coming regular meetings as appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERELIESE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Code provision D.2.5

Code provision D.2.5 stipulates that a listed company should
have an internal audit function. For the Year, the Company has
outsourced the internal audit function on analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management
and internal control systems on film investment segment to
independent professional firm(s).

Listing Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.05

Following the resignation of Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy as an
independent non-executive Director, chairman and a member of
Audit Committee, a member of Remuneration Committee and a
member of Nomination Committee on 6 May 2025, the Company
failed to meet the requirements of (i) having at least three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board under Rule
3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”); and (i) having a minimum of three
non-executive directors in the audit committee under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on customer oriented, excellence in products and
services, people first and law compliance, which is underpinned by
its purpose and values that enable employees at all levels of the
Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting in a lawful,
ethical and responsible manner that allows the Company to deliver
sustainable long-term performance and operate in a way that
benefits society and the environment.
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EREIRSE

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

The Company'’s purpose and values serve as a guide for employees’
conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are integrated
throughout the Company’s operational practices, workplace
policies and practices and stakeholder relationships:

Purpose
[ —]
=

&L R REE (48)

ARAINRE REEBSEENITRIETRE
Higsl BARBKEFSUBARRFNEESR

B LRGSR REHRURFDENBREK
=

Values

EER

To strive for success of our stakeholders

BAEBEF D EKY

Cooperation
B A& 1
Legal
BHE
Motivation
iR E#
Objective
BHHE R 1R
Responsible

EAEE

The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping
the corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the
purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group, which are
under review by the Board. Taking into account the corporate
culture is reflected in various contexts, such as workforce
engagement, employee retention and training, legal and regulatory
compliance, staff safety, wellbeing and support, the culture,
purpose, value and strategy of the Group are aligned with one
another.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors of the Company,
all of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the
Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

EREREAREARAMNEEER 2
EARRNANEEXE  ABAEENRE
BEBLEETR HEFSETEN -2

REXEXERET2H - BERERIEI
FRRREEGHR BIxE: %E?Jt&?i%—r

EHHEHAEE
BEE LXK

B3 MAKE XL
RESIGIRTT — 2

EFETESFXHZEESE

ARREEMEBEFTETIESRH ZET
R E AR R RS AR BI MY SRCIFT
J:ﬁ%é‘ﬁ)\i%Lﬁa’é%x%E’]T¥+TE\'JF)’T
HAERE - RAXRBZEFFLIEES
AE REHEBRBNAFE-—BEETERE
STRIFE AR SR EFE -

L= mx

EEE

ARPHEFERE EFQAAHRENE
BAKRESER SIEAKEBROHREE
¢%@ﬁﬂ‘“&%€£¥i\%fﬁ fEMmEE 25 &
B AEBERNKY - EEBRME -

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report
ERELIESE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of six Directors, including two
executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhu Guohua and Mr. Gu Jianguo;
two non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lam Wing Yiu and Mr. Li
Qiang and two independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"),
namely Mr. Chan Chi Wai and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming. As least
one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as prescribed
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanisms were established:

° sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

. no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

o separation of the role of the Chairman and the management
ensures that there is a balance of power and authority; and

o annual meeting between the Chairman and all INEDs without
presence of other Directors provides an effective platform for
the Chairman to listen to independent views on various issues
concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective except the
Board did not appoint any Director as its Chairman during the Year.
The Board will review the present situation in due course.

Board Diversity

The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting out
the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the business nature
of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a wide range of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service, and any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. The merits and
contribution that will bring to the Board for any Director proposed
for re-election or any candidate nominated to be Director will also
be assessed, taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy
and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed
in the future.
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EREGHRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) ESEE(H)
Board Composition (Continued) EETHEMK(E)
Board Diversity (Continued) BEEez b (E
The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of educational iﬁ BHNEESABEARKRBTANHEE
background, professional knowledge, industry experience and CEEMB TESREBRBFEENS T
length of service. The diversity mix of the Board as at 31 March Ttiﬁ/\ R_ZE_AF=A=+—H &%
2025 is summarized as follows: 2L T{bBAAEBMAT ¢
(i)  Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age Distribution (i) EFZASML - MEFIZ0 - TS
and Length of Service 1 RIREFEE
Number of Directors
EEAY
6
Female
INED =iE
5 B

FHITES

4
NED
FEHITES
3
2
ED
HITES
1
Over 60
60LA £
0
Designation Gender Age Group Length of Service
B 447 15 Bl FHA R (No. of years)
REFE (F)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EFE(F)
Board Composition (Continued) EEETEK(E)
Board Diversity (Continued) EESZ b (B)
(i) Directors’ Skills and Experience (i) EFFERIEE
Number of Share of the
Areas of Experience Directors Board
EEEE EEAH EEEGIL
Related Industry Knowledge/Experience 2 100%
L ERE ik Y
Business Management 2 100%
BEREE
Legal/Regulatory 0 0%
BREE
Financial & Accounting 0 100%
g5t
Strategic Planning & Risk Management 2 100%

Bl B% 4R 8 B L o 2R

The Board’'s gender diversity level is yet to achieve as all two
directors are male. During the Year, the Nomination Committee
recommended and the Board approved a target of having no
less than 20% female directors on the Board. The Nomination
Committee proposed to appoint a female director by 31 December
2024 for achieving the gender diversity target of the Board. Upon
the appointment of Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy as an INED on 10 May
2024, the gender diversity target of the Board is achieved. The
Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the composition of
the Board to maintain diversity.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from Mr. Chan Chi Wai and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors”
of this annual report.

Appointment and re-election

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or re-
elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.
Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until
the next annual general meeting of the Company according to the
Bye-laws and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has published the procedures on its website for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director.

Duties of the Board

The Board formulates the overall policies and strategies, monitors
the financial performance, oversees the management, and
implements good corporate governance practices of the Group.
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Directors meet regularly to review the financial and operational
performance of the Group by discussing and formulating the
Group's development plans. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's
management. The members of the Board are mostly professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel who bring in
valuable contribution providing different professional advices and
consultation for the development of the Group. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, three Board
meetings were held. The attendance records of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meeting of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out as follows:

BHE_ZT-_AF=A=+—HBIBBEFE"
EEeRRIT-AEZTEEE SEENE
E_E_RFZA=+t—HLFEMES
g BERLEe REZET FHWHZE"
EERARARRBRERE 2 HE e 50
T

Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ BTERRY

Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of directors 32 E5® BHZEE REZEE HHEE® BEXE
Executive Directors BiTES
Ms. Zhu Guohua RAERT (R=ZE-AFEAA
(appointed on 19 September 2024) FHAEEL) 23 113 113 0N
Mr. Gu Jianguo BRELE (KR -F-_HELA
(appointed on 19 Seotember 2024) THAREESR) 213 13 13 Al
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEEREE(R-F-_HFENLA
(resigned on 19 September 2024) FAHFE) 173 11
Non-Executive Directors TEE
Mr. Lam Wing Yiu WKBEE(RZE-HENA
(appointed on 19 September 2024) FHAEELF) 213 0N
Mr. Li Qiang (appointed on 9 May 2025) PRRER_F-_RETANA
EZF) 0/3 0/2 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUkHTES
Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy RESNL
(resigned on 6 May 2025) (R=ZF-FZFHHNHFEE) 2/3 2/2 3/3 3/3 111
Mr. Chan Chi Wai RERLE 3/3 22 33 33 7
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming BRAEE 33 22 33 33 11

All the regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance, and
at least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors to give them an
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying Board papers
are normally sent to all Directors in advance of every Board meeting
to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters
placed at the Board meetings. All Directors have been consulted
about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the
support of the company secretary, all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings, so that Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board (Continued)

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and
are open for inspection by any Director. All Directors have access
to independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors.

During the Year, the Chairman held a meeting with INEDs without
the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the Code.

The Company has received confirmation from each director that
he has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the Year. Directors have also disclosed to the
Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature of offices
they hold in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitment, including the identity of the public companies or
organizations and an indication of the time involved.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at such Board meeting.

Directors’ continuous professional development
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities as
directors of the Company.

In addition, each newly appointed Director would be provided with
an induction package covering the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and
other related regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development
(Continued)

The Company provided updates and reading material ("CPD")
to keep the Directors informed on a timely basis about the latest

BN

major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements affecting the Group or their duties and
responsibilities as the Directors as well as the macro economics
and general business environment in which the Group’s major
operations are operated. The Company, through CPD, enhances
Directors’ awareness and keeps them abreast of the essences and
key areas of such updates and information. Such CPD is an efficient
and effective way which offers flexibility to the Directors by allowing
them to access the information at a time suitable to them. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training

records on an annual basis. A summary of their training records
during the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

Type of training activities

Topics of training covered

Name of directors EEfE s allE B A P i 28 38 2l £ 2
Executive Directors BITES A Webinars and/or seminars. 1. Corporate governance
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEBEER-F-_HENATIA BERAER/IHAE - tEER
(resigned on 19 September 2024) BHF) B: Reading newspapers and 2. Finance and tax
Ms. Zhu Guohua KBREL+(R-FE-WEAHA+NH journals relating to directors’ BB RS
(appointed on 19 September 2024) EZF) duties and responsibilities as 3. Regulatory
Mr. Gu Jianguo BERLER-F-_mENATIA well as updates on the Listing EE
(appointed on 19 September 2024) EZF) Rules and other applicable 4. Business Management/
regulatory requirements. Economy
Non-Executive Directors EHTES MEEHESBEARAEUR EBER/ICE
Mr. Lam Wing Yiu WXBRE(R=ZFE=RAFENAFNA BE R RAGEREE
(appointed on 19 September 2025)  BZ(E) RERMARNRE REBT -

Mr. Li Qiang
(appointed on 9 May 2025)

FREER-FE-RFRANA
BZfF)

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr. Chan Chi Wai BEELE

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming ERHAE

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy
(resigned on 6 May 2025)

REZRL(R-F-RFERANA
B
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RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board
is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. With the assistance of accounting personnel,
the Directors prepare the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and prevailing accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for timely publication
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 65 to 74 of the annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 29 March 2012 and 30 December
2022. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Wai and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy. The
major duties and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but not limited to making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual directors and senior
management of the Company. It is also mandated to review
and approve compensation payable to the directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Functions of the Board” of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
summarized as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has, among others
things, reviewed the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management with reference to market terms, their
duties and responsibilities and performance as assessed by the
Remuneration Committee, and has made recommendation to the
Board accordingly. Pursuant to E.1.5 of the Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2025 are as follows:

FMEEE (8)

RAFE HFHEZEeC (EFE\B)2EW
LGS 2REERERAEEABZRE
BEMKRR (BFMZE TG HREZ
FORETEN YBREANESSREE
# o RETREENISG BE_T_RHF=
A=+ RLFERBEIADZSREEA
B2FEHMFRBOT

Number of employees

BEEAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ JT 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7t £ 2,500,0007% 7T 1
Total s 5

Details of the emoluments of Directors are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company had adopted a specific terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee as of 29 March 2012 in accordance with
Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules which has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 6 September 2013. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Wai
and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy. Its main duties and functions include
but not limited to review of the structure, size, composition and the
diversity policy of the Board and the selection or recommendations
to the Board for nomination on directors and senior management.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential candidates from
any source as it may consider appropriate and evaluate them by
considering various factors, including their professional expertise,
industry and business experience, time commitments, potential
contributions to board diversity, material conflict of interest with
the Group (if any) and independence (for INEDs). The Committee
will then make recommendation for suitable candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment. In case of reappointment
of existing Directors who will retire at an annual general meeting
("AGM"), the Committee will review the rotation and retirement of
Directors and make recommendations to the Board accordingly.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Function of the Board” of this report:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
4. review on directors’ contribution in performing their

responsibilities;

5. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of the Company;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

6. review the board diversity policy of the Board or this
Nomination Committee, as appropriate, considering factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience of
Board members, and review the measurable objectives that
the Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and

7. conform to any requirement, direction and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation, where appropriate.

A board diversity policy had been formulated and adopted by the
Board in 2013. The Company recognises the importance and values
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Appointments to the Board will largely be based
on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. Selection of candidates will generally be based on factors
considered applicable and adopted by the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company had adopted a revised specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee as of 6 September 2013 and it has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 1999 and its terms of reference were amended by the
Board on 23 February 2016 and became effective on 1 March 2016.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Chi Wai and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming. Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. None of them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with
former or existing auditors of the company.

The main duties and functions of the Audit Committee include
but not limited to review of the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review of the Group's financial
information, oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, assessment on any
potential special risks to be encountered by the Company and
review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year. Minutes
of the Audit Committee are kept by the secretary of the Audit
Committee and the copies of the minutes are sent to all members
of the Audit Committee. The outcomes of the Audit Committee
meetings were submitted to the Board for consideration and action
where appropriate.

The accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

1.

reviewed the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2024 ("Previous Year”) and the
related annual results announcement with a recommendation
to the Board for approval.

reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the Directors’
Report of the Annual Report in the Previous Year.

met with the external auditors in the Previous Year and
discussed the audit findings reported by external auditors.

assessed broadly any special risks faced by the Group and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the Previous Year
and concluded that the Group operated at a manageable risk
level and kept on improving the management system.

reviewed the reports including the 2024 audit planning report
and the management letters (if any) submitted by the external
auditor.

reviewed the Group’s unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2024 and
the interim results announcement with recommendation to
the Board for approval.

considered those topics, which were requested by the Board
and reviewed those relevant documents.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended by
the Board on 23 February 2016 and took effect on 1 March 2016.
Such amendments in compliance with the Corporate Governance

Code under the Listing Rules have been posted on the websites of

the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

On May 12, 2025, CCTH CPA Limited resigned as the external
auditor of the Company, and the Audit Committee recommended
to appoint Prism Hong Kong Limited as the external auditor of
the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation of CCTH
CPA Limited and to hold office until conclusion of the next annual
general meeting ("AGM") of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated May 12, 2025 for further
details.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board performs the following corporate governance functions
during the Year:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conducts and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(f)  to adopt new anti-corruption policy and procedures and
the revised inside information policy and procedures of the
Company.

All committees established under the Board are required to report
back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho is the current company secretary of the Company.
The company secretary, whose appointment was approved by the
Board, complied with all the required qualifications, experience
and training requirements under the Listing Rules. All Directors
are entitled to have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, who is responsible for providing Board papers
and related materials to Directors in order to ensure that Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that Prism Hong Kong Limited are
independent as the Company’s auditors.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors, Prism Hong Kong Limited is set
out as follows:

12 B Bl -z 95 3L 1 % it B

ERREQERERBERNENZHNR
EERBEN 2B  ABRMBHRREZ
BENTEMELAYE BEZZEEKER
B RARARZBEBEZEAMEBMERA
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HEN TFARRZBEMBZEHMELAE
RABEFEES T

Prism Hong Kong

Limited

HESTE =R

Services rendered Frig IR 7 HRAT
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services B R 650
Non-audit services IEEZ RS 80
Total @z 730

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene a

special general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Board
shall, on a requisition in writing by any shareholder made
in compliance with the applicable law to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, forthwith proceed to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM for a day not later than two
months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
do so but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at general meeting of the Company. The number of
shareholders shall represent not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting,
or shall not be less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at the general meeting. It
must also be signed by all of the shareholders concerned
and be deposited at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong at Room 22, 22/F, On Hong
Commercial Building, 145 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary not less than
six weeks before the general meeting. In case of a requisition
requiring a notice of the resolution, the requisition must
be served to the Board not less than one week before the
general meeting.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in giving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/
F, Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong. Shareholders and the investment
community may during office hours make a request for the
Company's information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company.

I RAEF (%5)

(2)

(3)

ERRXELIRZERZERF

BEARE-NAN-FQFE BR
ARREEEZRKUERRAREKR
SLEHE-HRIR -RRABAT
PRIBHEREAARERRAE L
REZERBRRNERERZ_TD
2= 5% ETA/IR—BERR -

FREEERVATHERRESR
BERAREFABRBERABREMAEER
BRBRRERAEG FRBZEBHNTER
—TFRMAE - ZERT AR ZEMN
ARREZRERRAGATLRA
EMEAZXARAREBELBZEEEREM
Bt BB BEFHFREFEI4SR L
BRI ERANE2B22E) © HEAR AW
Bl MBAZHARABRBS Z2EX
AIZBERAERRAGH AR — £
HIXEEFE -

FRBRRAGH -—ERANAEESHE
REAXNARBRBEBEBRERER
AL RZRBER S E AR
RIXBRAENHBRAX -

BRRES
BRERMAABRZBEERDBFERL
DRBMABSFELARAR (UL S/E
7 1t f 5% 2 JB3385% FE M X F [F 1521
33183301-04%) RHE BB A B AEZ
E# - BRMEBRERALAIRR AR
MARMARRNRFER < BRI
ARaEESRIZEANREISE
HARAKRREBEFRME > FiEH
NEWEW -

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report
ERELIESE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company adopted the
amended and restated Bye-Laws by way of a special resolution
passed at a general meeting held on 30 August 2024 for the
purpose of (i) conforming with the latest Listing Rules and the
applicable laws of Bermuda; (i) providing flexibility to the Company
in relation to the conduct of general meetings (including allowing
participation in any general meeting or any class meeting held
by means of such telephone, electronic communication or other
communication facilities as to permit all persons participating in the
meeting to communicate with each other); and (iii) making other
consequential and housekeeping amendments.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (ii) updated key information of the
Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) the Company’s website offers communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The annual general meeting is a channel for the Board of Directors
and the sub-committees of the Board to address concern of
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting. Notice of the annual general meeting and related
papers will be sent to shareholders at least 21 clear days before the
meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

A. Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of
internal control and risk management (“Control Systems”) are
maintained within the Group, and to review their effectiveness
through the Audit Committee. The Control Systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure
in achieving the Group’s objectives. Practicable and effective
internal control systems and procedures and risk management
systems have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control and risk management on an ongoing basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)
B. Internal control

The Board

Audit Committee

The management

Internal Audit
Function

B. MEBEEE
ensure the maintenance of appropriate EEg
and effective Control Systems in
order to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and assets of the Group;
define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit of
authority; and
determine the nature and extent of
significant risk (including ESG risks)
that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group's risk management
strategies.

oversee the Control Systems of the
Group;

review and discuss with the
management annually (including ESG
risks) to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have effective
Control Systems; and

consider major findings on
internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

design, implement and monitor the =18 E
Control Systems properly and ensure

the Control Systems are executed

effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to

mitigate risks in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow
up the findings on internal control
matters; and

provide confirmation to the Board

on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems.

carry out the analysis and independent P E
appraisal of the adequacy and ke
effectiveness of the Control Systems,

and the details are set out in the section

headed “Internal Audit Function” of this

report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

C.

Risk management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff
members, reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system, identifying and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal control
system, providing recommendations for improvement and
following up on the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the risk management and internal control are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Certain significant risks have been identified through the
process of risk identification and assessment. Such significant
risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/control
measures are set out on pages 8 to 9 of the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this report.

Control approach

The scope and findings of review on the risk management and
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually. Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance
of proper accounting records in compliance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Management confirmation

The Board had received a written confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Control Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board, upon
reviewing the Control Systems, were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Control Systems for the
year ended 31 March 2024. The review identified the findings in
internal control system of the Company, the risks associated with
operating units of the Company and the recommendations to
rectify the findings in internal control systems and to lower the risks

identified.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board, through the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of financial, operational and compliance aspect
annually and considers that the Control Systems are adequate and
effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and consider that they are adequate.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company has taken, and continues to take steps to promote
diversity at all levels of our workforce. We provide equal
opportunity to all employees regardless of gender, age, family
background, ethnicity, religion, nationality, sexuality, disability,
and other aspects of diversity and are against any forms of
discrimination.

As of 31 March 2025, our total workforce comprised of 45% female
and approximately 55% male.

Therefore, no plan or measurable objectives were deemed
necessary for enhancing gender diversity at workplace.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy where the
Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders taking into consideration the Group's distributable
profits generated during the Year, the financial situation and
liquidity of the Group, the funding needs for future investment and
development purposes. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda and Hong Kong as well
as the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules in relation to
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

Anti-corruption policy is established to outline the Group's
zero-tolerance stance against bribery and corruption and assists
employees in recognising circumstances that may lead to or
give the appearance of being involved in corruption or unethical
business conduct, so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly
prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance where necessary or
report any reasonably suspected case of corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management through an appropriate reporting
channel.
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Report of the Directors

EFERS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

During the Year, the Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses, property investment, debts and securities
investment, film investment and distribution and energy business.

Further discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2025 and its financial
position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 75 to 230.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
restated as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not

o©
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(mEm) zBEREMBRFREZE TEE
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form part of the audited consolidated financial statements. B o
Results E
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—ECRE —ZE-NE —T-=f —TE-_-_F —T-—%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET T FET FHT
REVENUE Uz 14,457 23,989 38,451 56,800 53,930
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEERE (20,205) (59,359) (45,668) (182,210) (18,166)
Attributable to: THIALFEL
Owners of the Company N/NCIEZ RN (20,205) (59,359) (77,389) (177,076) (15,274)
Non-controlling interests R ER - = 31,721 (5,134) (2,892)
(20,205) (59,359) (45,668) (182,210) (18,166)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests EE - BERIERERS
As at 31 March
R=A=+—-H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—ECRE —E-NE —T-=f - —T-—%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET T FET FHL
TOTAL ASSETS EEBE 76,166 91,820 148,350 263,011 400,510
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELH (79,231) (73,917) (61,948) (116,216) (128,018)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ FEiZpRiEs - = = 16,409 10,954
(3,065) 17,903 86,402 163,204 283,446
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EFERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the reporting year are
set out in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the
Group. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
32 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the reporting year are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 80 of this annual
report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, no reserve of the
Company (2024: same) is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the Company’s shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Bye-Laws and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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EFERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (resigned on 19 September 2024)
Ms. Zhu Guohua (appointed on 19 September 2024)

Mr. Gu Jianguo (appointed on 19 September 2024)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lam Wing Yiu (appointed on 19 September 2024)

Mr. Li Qiang (appointed on 9 May 2025)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chi Wai

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (appointed on 10 May 2024)

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (appointed on 10 May 2024 and resigned on
6 May 2025)

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or re-
elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhu Guohua, Mr. Gu Jianguo, Mr. Lam Wing Yiu
and Mr. Li Qiang will retire by rotation at the AGM in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company. All of the abovementioned
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Chi Wai and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming. The Board considers them
to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 27 to 29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Group’s business were
entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group
and applicability of performance-based remuneration. The
Directors’ fees are paid in line with market practice, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to mandatory provident fund schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to financial performance of the Group and individual
performance and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
insurance. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERTETBASRIRG %M
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN AR ZERERE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
Long positions in shares and underlying shares Rk REREKRG 23S
Number of Approximate
Number of ordinary  underlying ordinary percentage of
shares of the shares held under shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest Company interested Share Option Scheme (Note 1)
BAERZEAT RigREREE BaRRE T
EElE g 3=t LERYE BAENAMTERNE (Htst1)
Ms. Zhu Guohua (“Ms. Zhu") Beneficial owner - 8,000,000 0.92%
KEELL((RLL]) EnBEAA (Note 2) (H7t2)
Notes: Wit

1. Based on 872,863,684 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 1. BER-_ZT-—"ME=FF=+—BWHDE T

2024. 872,863,684 A A B L BALEH H

2. These underlying shares were share options granted by the Company under the 2. ZERERNARATR " E——4&=A+HhA
Share Option Scheme on 19 March 2021 and accepted by Mr. Chung on 1 April BIEERETESEERE  YhEEER
2021 at exercise price of HK$1.33 per share. E-—FNA—HEMN  TFEEAEFKIIIET

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 March 2025, so far as is known BEXHBEEEN HE ST -_HE=H
to any Director or chief executives of the Company, none of the =4+ —B mEAEEXIALTTETHA
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests EFA BEERALNTTETHAERER
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures ANFSKEAAAAEER (FE R BE5 K
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within EEMEXNVE) B9IEH - BEKRHIHESF
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) required to BAOELEZARBEEMNEXVIEEIR
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant E8D A AN T N B RS BT 8 (E (] i 25 5k
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) required to be KA RNVALERAATIREZASRBE
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section &5 E352{& H 1B T 17 B 1 2 52l 1Y 1F {a] 4
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the HEKE HGINVEBELEFRARITAE
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. AAT R TR IOA R -
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ESERE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors nor their respective
close associates was interested in any business which was
considered to compete or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in the Related Party Transactions disclosures set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, none of
the Directors or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FEITRE R E M A TR R
ZtEm

AZE_RF=ZA=1T—H  UTMEXRR
E%’é‘ﬁﬂxzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂx%E’JS%‘XLAJ:Z*%E&uE
BN AR ARIEE 5 M E 5% 0] F3361% A
THREZEDELM

Long positions 32
Number of Percentage
Capacity/ ordinary shares of issued
Name Nature of Interest interested voting shares
EEBT
BEERZ BREERS
wE aE Sy EENE LiERYE B
Osman Bin Kitchell Beneficial Owner 142,297,719 16.30%
ERBEAA
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Beneficial Owner 49,020,000 5.62%
TEELLE ERBEAA
CDM Trust & Board Services AG Trustee 124,898,000 14.31%
RFEA
Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 124,898,000 14.31%
REHEEER
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of a discretionary trustee 124,898,000 14.31%
BE&K misEFEZBIZA
Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 124,898,000 14.31%
g AoBiEas
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no person, other B EYFRHEEEN R-_E-_FRE=AH
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in =+ —8 BREESLXTBEERTEITHA
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short ERBHREERGD ZED AR —ﬁ’ﬁ}iﬁ
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered HEFZHNAATESI  HEATHRAD

an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Bin kBB D E B R AIRIERE %&Hﬂ
GROIZE33615% T LARCER MV BE SR SO R ©
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EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME R EstEl

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option ARARER-ZZ_ZEF=ZA T+ BHEH—
Scheme”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to TEHE KRR ([BREAE D AN AE2EE
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the (BRESRAISEGERESR) RIEHE
Group. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 SR c R E-—FNA-THEHEHETH
August 2021, the Company was authorised to refresh the scheme RARBRFRBERE k- NAGEREEN
mandate limit to issue a maximum of 87,286,368 share options STEIREREABBEERETEEITRS
under the Share Option Scheme. More information can be referred 87,286,368 i - EZ A B FELRHAR
in the Company's circular dated 26 July 2021. AIHHAR T —Ft R +/NEHMEK -

Movements of share options under the Share Option Scheme held EF  EENBERMBAENEREFGSIET
by the Directors, employee and consultant are as follows: BREZEFHMT -

Numbers of underlying shares in respect of
which share options were granted

ARUBRESRHEERRHE
Date of Exercise As at Granted Exercise/ As at
grant of Exercise price per 31 March during  Cancelled/ 31 March
Name of category of participant Share option period share 2024 the Period Lapsed 2025
SEEHH RalR g Bk N-T-OmE BfffE/ RZB-mE
#2 EHAH friEs i@ =A=+-8 Bl ##/%% =A=+-8
HKS
R

Director
%
Mr. Chung 1/4/2021 1/4/2021 - 31/3/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
il —Z_-£@A-A “Z--EMA-AZE

“Z=-%=f=1+-H
Other eligible participants
i oEREAE
Mr. Xiao Junwei, independent Consultant ~ 1/4/2021 1/4/2021 - 31/3/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Xiao Junweifk & (B B ) ZZ_-fMA-A  ZE--fNA-HE

“E=-%=f=1+-H
Mr. Lien Wai Hon, independent Consultant ~ 7/4/2021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Lien Wai Hon’% 4 (B B8 f) —Z_-£MA+A ZEZ-5NAtAE

ZZ2=-¥MAKA
Mr. Miao Ki Kong, independent Consultant ~ 7/4/2021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Miao Ki Kong5% 4 (B3 i ff) ZZZ-FMAtH ZE-EMAtARE

ZZR=-¥MAKA
Mr. Huang wei, independent Consultant 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 1.33 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
Huang weift & (B 7 B8f) ZZZ-FMAtH “Z--fMAtHE

ZR=-FMAKA
Total 36,000,000 - - 36,000,000
&t

Note: The Share Options are granted without any vesting conditions/period. B - B AR IR ML B A 5 A 1] 57 B AR 1 EATR o
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year ended 31 March 2025.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting year, the Group’s largest customer and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 24.9% and 71.49% of
the Group's total sales, respectively.

During the reporting year, the Group’s largest supplier and the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 57.8% and 99% of the
Group's total purchases, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders, which to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the reporting
year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed above,
none of the Related Party Transactions as disclosed in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report is subject to disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 189 of the Company, Directors of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by or about
the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and the officers of the Group
throughout the Year.
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EFERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public during
the reporting year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Prism Hong Kong Limited will retire at AGM and a resolution for
the re-appointment of Prism Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the
Company will be proposed thereat.

On Behalf of the Board

Zhu Guohua
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report
55 3L 1% B Bib ¥R 5

%@Prism

To the shareholders of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 74 to 193, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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B ZBEDR S

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION
(1) Opening balance of deposits paid for the

acquisition of equity investment

As referred to in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into an agreement (the
"Subscription Agreement”), under which the Group agreed
to subscribe for 50% equity interest in H. Sterling LNG
Terminal Holding Limited (“H. Sterling LNG”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, for an aggregate
consideration of RMB223 million, of which aggregate deposits
amounted to HK$27,800,000 were paid by the Group up to 31
March 2023. Impairment loss on the deposits paid amounted
to HK$27,800,000 has been recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2024. The
directors of the Company concluded that the conditions
precedent as set out in the Subscription Agreement are not
fully fulfilled or waived, accordingly, the proposed acquisition
was cancelled and the Group has demanded the repayment
of the deposits paid. The directors of the Company
considered that it is likely that the deposits paid amounted to
HK$27,800,000 are not recoverable.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess whether the aggregate deposits paid amounted to
HK$27,800,000 were fully irrecoverable as at 31 March 2024.

=
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B BEh RS

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

(2) Opening balance of investments in convertible

bond

As referred to in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the prior year ended 31 March 2021
the Group subscribed convertible bond issued by a third
party (“the Issuer”) and the Group had investments in
convertible bond with the carrying amount of HK$17,160,000
at 31 March 2023, being its fair value as at that date. The
convertible bond, which carried interest at 8% per annum
with the principal amount of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$15,664,000), entitled the Group to convert the bond
into approximately 2% of the issued capital of the Issuer (on
full conversion). Under the terms of the convertible bond,
at the expiration of the conversion period, the convertible
bond, if not converted, will be redeemed by the Issuer at the
principal amount of the bond. The convertible bond matured
on 10 December 2023 and no redemption or conversion of
the bond was made as at the maturity date and up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
which resulted in the reclassification of the investments in
convertible bond with the carrying amount of HK$15,664,000
to other receivables for the year ended 31 March 2024. The
directors of the Company considered that it is likely that
this receivable is not recoverable, accordingly impairment
loss amounted to HK$15,664,000 has been recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements as at 31 March
2024.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess whether the convertible bond receivable amounted
to HK$15,664,000 were fully irrecoverable as at 31 March 2024.

(2)

RESRMER (5)

RO R IR EF R BRI ER

BANER A B RS IR R M sE20FT M - B E
B —F=A=+—-RHILBEF
E BESEERBH—BE=-F (8
TADBITHAIBREBES E5E
RAMREFHEER-_E_=F=
A=+—H®WEKREERI7,160,000#
T RERZEMNARBE ZEA B
R1EHIZ8BM F R X E - A& &
442,000,000 7t (#8 & 15,664,000
BIL) 2 BEEBEREBEEFER
BEEIT NH2%M B BITIRA (R g
k) c RIBATRRREH KK - i
A $2 IR & F5 50 85 42 B O B 18 R 8
BB TABEESFNAGEED-
AREEEN T -_=F+_-A+H
EH - BEREBARHEZS KA
BHMEREMES AMEGEHFEER X
g AMEREE _T_NF=A
—t+—HLEFEARREFEERT
E15,664,00078 7T B 7 5 48 & H b ' Uk
KB BRRESERBZEWFIEAET
gemEERE - BEEn ESEERZ
T-NMFE A=+ —HNGAMBER
P HERRE E51815,664,00078 7T °

BRMELESAE BENEAEE
S 17 1 U AT 32 I 1B 5515,664,000/%8 TT 2
SR -_E-_NEFE=A=+—H=x2l
[EI o

S EEBEBER AR 2024/2025 F3f 65



66

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEDR S

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

As explained in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group engaged the external professional valuer to perform the
impairment assessments on the closing balance of (1) deposits paid
for the acquisition of equity investment and (2) other receivable
relating to investments in convertible bond. We obtained sufficient
appropriate audit evidence on assess the impairment of (1) deposits
paid for the acquisition of equity investment of HK$27,800,000
and (2) other receivable relating to investments in convertible
bond of HK$15,664,000 as at 31 March 2025. Therefore, the scope
limitation did not have an impact on consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended. As a result, the comparative information disclosed for
the corresponding period may not be comparable to that of the
current year. Our opinion on the current year's financial statements
is modified because of the possible effects of this matter on the
comparability of the current year’s figures and the corresponding
figures.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to the section headed “Going concern basis”
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements that the Group
incurred net losses amounted to approximately HK$20,205,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2025; and the current liabilities of the
Group at 31 March 2025 exceed the Group's current assets at that
date by approximately HK$39,850,000. These conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. In light of all the
measures and arrangements detailed in the section headed "Going
concern basis”, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will be able to operate as a going concern so as to
finance its future working capital and financial requirements. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustment
that are required to be made should the Group be unable to
operate as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.
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OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024 were audited by another auditor who
required a qualified opinion on their consolidated financial

statements on 28 June 2024.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

HihEI8
EEEREBE_S_WME=A=+—HItF
EHEEVBBRE S —BRBAEZ » %
RERMR_Z_MEXA -+ N \BHEES
MBHRERREHREER -

FASEE T E IR
BIERMOEZ AN BREABEAYAE

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the PR BRRNEAR/EENFE &

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

LEERRRMERFTEREEMBHRER Rk
HEABRRETRER  MEMISHEL
SHEHREBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
FSEEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A E N EEARES IR

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

FEMARSR « FATRIE - e R E B EWRIARE

Refer to notes 4, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEAM WK TS - 195%20 -

As at 31 March 2025, the Group recorded gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$2,568,000 before
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,821,000 and
gross prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$65,579,000 before impairment loss of
approximately HK$62,193,000.
RZE_RAF=ZA=+—H EXEZERHREBELD
1,821,0007% JT Al 2 48 & W B8R X 492,568,000/ 7T & BRI (B &5
184962,193,000/% JT Bl 2 BFERT FRIE - 1R & R H b B ULFRIA
#765,579,00078 7T ©

Estimations of the impairment for the Group’'s trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgment, including the historical
default rates, past due status, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions as well
as forward-looking information specific to the trade and
other receivables.

EEERUERN  BENKE  RE REMERFTIRZRE
M BORRE THEELEREREBHEBH 2 ERAREK B
FESEENE  BEAN - —REEAMR K& ATk 2 7F
EARE S REMEYIEZ FEREIEEFR -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
included:

BMBEAEEERKERNR BENHKE -
JE W R IR E T (4 VAR FF B 4E

ma REM

- We obtained an understanding of the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and making
provisions for doubtful debts.

B2 THEEEMREEEE  WOER &G
RRRBEBAIEHO AR EZNRE - TR

BERE -

- We assessed the classification and accuracy

of individual balances in trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables ageing
report by testing the underlying invoices
and loan agreements on a sample basis, and
the prepayment made by referring to the
agreements entered.
HADBAMERBERERERGET R
BRI~ 1R H R U IR BR i 5 P (B Bl 45
B DB RERM - WREB L BETHTE
RIBEER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEDR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRESTEIR(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI S nAEEAREFR

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

FEMRRSR « FAfTRRIE - RERE B RIERE

We have identified impairment of trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables as a key audit
matter due to the magnitude of the receivables and the
estimation and judgments involved in the determination of
the recoverable amounts of these receivables.

M EMRIEE E RN BER - DA KR FE 7 JF 5% 5 B R IR AT IR
O & 8805 % I (5T A0 I - T2 BRI BUBR R - TRIS 3K
B ReLEMEUERERESBREAEE

We circulated auditor’s confirmations to
test the existence of the trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at the end of the reporting period,;
9B R BA R AR K - BUBIE R RS IR 2
BRERKER - BN HIE - Re REMERK
IR

A valuer was employed for the evaluation of
ECL on trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, and the impairment loss on the
prepayments. We evaluated the independent
external valuer's competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

2 5 (BRI AT 1 FE WK BR 3K~ 12 & 2 B il JiE WK
HENFEREEERUARBENRERRERRSE -
BB LI EEMNES e h T
:‘E :

We made inquiry of the Group’s management
and the independent external valuer
regarding the basis of calculation of the ECL
on the trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, and impairment review of the
prepayments;

M BEEEERENBYIN D LERMARF
SAERWERR - Re REMERFIENTEEE
EEEURENFIEN R EEH A ELE

We assessed the reasonableness of the
Group's ECL model and impairment testing,
by reference to the past overdue records and
historical settlement patterns of the creditors
during the year and subsequent to the year
end date; and
BM2REEARFARFLEBENBESH
R RELERRANE EEENTEREE
BFERERREIHANSEE &

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies and assumptions
based on the industry knowledge.
BARBITRABTZEETZRRENVES
o
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Key audit matter
PSS EIR

Impairment assessment of investment in associates

REEATIREZRETE

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FLHRE M B RERMFF4RI5 -

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment in associates, Filmko Culture Limited and its
subsidiaries, amounted to approximately HK$5,651,000
(after impairment loss recognised of approximately
HK$113,617,000).

RZEBEZ_RAF=ZA=+—H HBREEIBREBEY
113,617,0008 7T - EEBRBEAR (ERXELARA
AR EKMERR)KRE ZREER45,651,0008 7T ©

To support management’s determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers to
perform fair value valuation on the associates.

Eiﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf\ﬁ@éﬂém/ﬁﬁﬁ EREERE
SNERB A B R EME B E A RETAREMRE -

We focused on impairment assessment of the Group’s
investment in associates as the magnitude of the
investment in associates is significant and management
assessment of the fair value involves judgments and
estimates, key assumptions including the basis of selection
for the comparable entities and their respective fair values
as well as the discount rates taking account of the lack of
marketability factor.

KT ERERBEQRREZHEN G RA/R
BMERAKREZHHEEN HEBEHAA BN R
HE LA AR ERERRAREBZEEREZBNAR
BAMBRRRZTHERHERZZHBRERNEREBR -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B EH I EER R ETEIE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of investment in associates included:

BPIBERABE AR E ZREN GENEF 2

We evaluated the independent external
valuer's competence, capabilities and
objectivity.

B EBLINBEEMAOEES - A
Mo

NREE

We assessed the key assumptions including
the basis of selection for the comparable
entities for fair value valuation and the
discount rates applied to the lack of
marketability factor. We considered the
appropriateness of the discount rates
adopted by management.
B EEERAERET AR BRECEE
RERANRZ ISR MREE IR SRR
BR - ZMEEEEBRMANBIRENSENL -

We checked the accuracy and relevance of
the input data on sample basis.

A BT iR & b A BUR B9 SRR 1 S AR R
:‘E °

We evaluated and challenged the
composition of the associates’ fair value and
the process by which they were drawn up,
including testing the underlying fair value less
cost of disposal calculation.

AR (4 I KRB A B A E RV KA K AR
R BEAFMEEN AR ERLEKAE

AE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEDR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about opening balance of (1) deposits paid for the
acquisition of equity investment and (2) investments in convertible
bond. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

BERPESZFHHEMENER - EMERE
BHHERERANER - BNEEEA WK
R NI BB E o

BPHGAMBRERNEEL TRERME
B BT EZEEMERBEREMER
MEERE S °
mARMEEEMBRROET  HANE
TEHEEMER  EHBREY  TEHEM
ERESREEMBREAIEMERTBRE
PHTHRNBERATEERAEBEREUTFE
BERFERBURAER

ERBEFEATHITIE  MREMBSEM
EREEERBERRL  RAFEREZSE
BB EXRBELNERE AL - K
FIRERMBMERAREE MRS Q)
BERESREZHVEHRERRECEER
& o Fit - BAAIEIAEER U IR 5 E i
EMEEFAEERFERRM -

EEREEE
WMRAED

BABRGEESHE
1

A3

BERRERRABAERBEE B AGHEM
MEEMBHRE LR S ERNEE QA%
FINEERTRBUEEMT 5 RS M H R
KOYHET BERREETRATEZAE
B AERAE M B HRROER N FEARK
FESkER AR T G B A B A A RRR A -

EREFaMBHRRE . EARESEEE
A BRERAELENREN  XHEERIE

MATREBEESBECERRNER  URER
SEBEERETER -KIF BERREEH
B BEEEBRIFLLE  HHEHM
ERNERASR-

BEERABRETEE BESEEMNPBR
ERFNEME -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEh RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

LM E F S M B RR AR
ST

BB RRHGEAVBHRREEEETT
FE AR ERRF SR AR 1 B B B A R AR FR AL BR
SRERFRE THABERMARBAERER
AEFNRERZEBRRBERMERAZ
BN ERE - FRULPASN - A ER MRS - F
MretAmEnRTRAENEMALTE L
FAEERMEE -

AFEREFETSEANRE  BIERIER
FREBRTERETHERES - ERBRATFED
BRI o $HRRERM AT A By BRFF BB AR
Sl - MRESEBHEFIEFNIEARLIRA
EFEGAMBTRREAEREXSTRAY
MK MEL O EFRER - B AR AR
PR & RARIEER o

EREFERTEETENBES &
MERTEXHE RETEXEEEE -
BAPIIR

o RPN R A M B HR R 3R AR 1 B 2R
AEMBHRRFEERFERRANER -
REFRAITEIZF ALY ELRER -
ARERTERMEENETRE F
SERMAEROER - ARNRFFEA Y
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B ZBEDR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the
audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

2R ET M B et AR S A B R R4
MEE (&)

e HEZRARKELEZSHERNR
EMELER  LREMMERNE
BE CEEREFHERSEARBRE
BEOEANTHEE ML 1M A&
i BEEENKBELERNELERX
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o RIBELEERBEBRETRAR
REIRHZEAMBmRRTHOEERE -
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AEMANER - RFNGEREERNZ
BRDIRE A H L PRERS O BRT R -
A RREBHELBERAAELEH B
SEBEEFELE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEh RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Chin Wang Leung.

Prism Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Chin Wang Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P07806
Hong Kong, 30 June 2025
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= A S LN
FEHREXR
Year ended 31 March 2025
HE-ZT-_RAF=A=1+—HILFE

“Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

2025 2024
—E-hE —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FET FET
Revenue U = 6 14,457 23,989
Cost of sales and service $HE K AR AL AN (13,423) (19,1195)
Gross profit EH 1,034 4,874
Other income and gains - NS & 6 1,854 13,338
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DERAY (228) (128)
Administrative expenses THFEX (18,565) (23,724)
Other operating expenses HEfh & &R 7 (5,733) (46,395)
Finance costs p == 8 (2,863) (599)
Share of loss of associates DR E N R E R 15 (10,954) (6,530)
Share of loss of a joint venture Hh—EEERREIR 16 (77) (195)
Loss before tax bR A E 9 (35,532) (59,359)
Income tax credit Fri8fiiK & 11 15,327 -
Loss for the year KEFZEE (20,205) (59,359)
Loss for the year attributable to RARHE ANEBIEARFE
owners of the Company 518 (20,205) (59,359)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 12
Basic (HK$ cents) EARCEMW) (2.31) (6.80)
Diluted (HK$ cents) s OB N/A Ri#EH N/A N iE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FezEBlaR

Year ended 31 March 2025
HE-ZT-RAF=A=1+—HILFE

2025 2024
b e R St
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHET
Loss for the year REEFEER (20,205) (59,359)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hih2m (FAX) WA
income
Items that may be reclassified to MREZEBFAIER 5 R
profit or loss in subsequent FB&HCEA -
periods:
Exchange differences on translation ~ & EINER 2
of foreign operations PE X =5 (360) 403
Reclassification of cumulative R EBINERRER
exchange fluctuation reserve DEBAEL R
upon disposal of foreign ]
operations - (9,173)
Share of exchange differences on DIEMEBENE 2
translation of associates PE X =5 15 (395) (359)
Share of exchange differences on DIEBME-—HAaERAZ
translation of a joint venture PE X =R 16 (8) (11)
Other comprehensive expense RNEFHMPERFX
for the year (763) (9,140)
Total comprehensive expense AEEL2HERAZBE
for the year (20,968) (68,499)
Total comprehensive expense for TIATEERAFERE
the year attributable to: Fl>x 4858 ¢
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ SN (20,968) (68,499)
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" Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBKAE
As at 31 March 2025
R-ZZE-—RF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—E-REF —E-mE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE TF#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMEBNEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB M 13 4,721 4,987
Investment properties BREWHE 14 27,526 32,121
Investment in associates REtE N NF 2K E 15 5,651 17,000
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERAZRKRE 16 - -
37,898 54,108
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Inventories rE 17 - 209
Films copyrights B R 18 25,400 4,162
Trade receivables JE U BR X 19 747 4,082
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - e REAM
receivables FE W FE 20 3,386 13,105
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSED 21 8,735 7,054
38,268 28,612
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIEHENEE 27 - 9,100
38,268 37,712
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Trade payables e EBR K 22 6,526 7,680
Other payables, accruals and HAtb eI - FEET
deposits received RENMBWIES 23 25,874 34,278
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 24 44,714 13,147
Contract liabilities EHaE 25 1,004 1,442
Income tax payable JEAFTIS R - 15,327
78,118 71,874
Liabilities associated with assets EABEARBELEN
classified as held for sale EEEBEMARE 27 - 910
78,118 72,784
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBEFE (39,850) (35,072)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEABERRDEE
LIABILITIES (1,952) 19,036
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaRBRAE
As at 31 March 2025
R-_E-_RF=A=+—8H

2025 2024
—E-AFE —EE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERHEEE 26 1,113 1,133
(1,113) (1,133)
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BB BEZFE (3,065) 17,903
EQUITY T =
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS KRNRIEAE NEL
OF THE COMPANY
Share capital % < 28 8,728 8,728
Reserves B 30 (11,793) 9,175
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/ (BAREA) e B
TOTAL EQUITY (3,065) 17,903

FENEVARINBENGEAMBHRERCN-F
“ThFANA=ZtHEESSHERKRET
ToWHTINEERREE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 193 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
June 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhu Guohua Gu Jianguo
REIZE FEEE
Director Director
EE EE
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HFeERERR

Year ended 31 March 2025

HE_T_hA&=A=1+—HIL&FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

‘Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FAARFARL
Goodwill
Share Asset Share  eliminated  Exchange
Share  premium Capital ~ revaluation option against  fluctuation Accumulated Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve losses equity
Fefh &% BEER B HigE  ExED 34
2 HER it (1 i H#cHE 1 ] L]
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER AR TER TR FiEn Fin Fin FiEn FiEn
As at 1 April 2023 R-B-=ENA-B 8,728 247,085 107433 18,522 31333 (152) 7,762 (334,309) 86,402
Loss for the year TERER - - - - = = = (59,359) (59,359
Other comprehensive income(expense) REEZERRERA/ (FX)
for the year
Share of exchange differences on AAE-HAEARL
translation of a joint venture [3:53 - - - - o S (1) = (1)
Share of exchange differences on ARAEREARZ
translation of associates 3:53 - - - o o S (359) = (359)
Exchange differences on translation of BRERNEBLELER
foreign operations - - - - - - 403 - 403
Reclassification to profit o loss upon REERNZBRENHE
disposal of foreign operations 2R% - - - - - - 9173 - 9.173)
Total comprehensive expense for the year REEZ2ERYEE = = = s = = 9,140) (59,359) (68,499)
As at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R-F-MEZA=1-BR
—¥-MmEMA-B 8728 247,085 107433 18,522 3133 (152) (1378 (393,668) 17903
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - (20,205) (20,205)
Other comprehensive expense for the year RERZEMRERR
Share of exchange differences on ABE-HAERAL
translation of a joint venture EXz® - - - - - - 8 - 8
Share of exchange differences on ABEREAT L
translation of associates 3:53 - - - - - - (395) - (395)
Exchange differences on translation BEBNZBIERZR
of foreign operations - - - - - - (360) - (360)
Total comprehensive expense for the year TEEZ2ERTEE - - - - - - (763) (20,205) (20,968)
As at 31 March 2025 R=¥-5§zR=1-8 8728 247,085 107,433 18,522 31,333 (152) (2,141)  (413873) (3,065)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AN, <z BEL
FeHERE
Year ended 31 March 2025
HE-ZT-RAF=A=1+—HILFE

2025 2024
b e . 2 —ETMF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 53 TFET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEHELZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax Bk Bt Al &5 18 (35,532) (59,359)
Adjustments for: RTHISIHEAR
Finance costs M%ER 8 2,863 599
Amortisation of film copyrights ER- AT 2 3 18 4,162 4,541
Share of loss of a joint venture DIE—EEEREZ
B8 16 77 195
Share of loss of associates DIREE N R Z B8 15 10,954 6,530
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 6 (20) (15)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBE ARz kS 31 - (10,144)
Written off items of property, MEEME - BE R
plant and equipment ®iBIEE 13 57 =
Loss on changes in fair value of REMELAAREE
investment properties pd it 7 4,601 9,590
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial RAREFABEZ
assets at fair value through profit TREEZARE
or loss, net (Wa) Ei18F%
— equity investments at fair value —BARBEFAER
through profit or loss ZIRIERE 6 - (829)
— investments in convertible bond — AR EAERE 7 - 1,496
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREENE
equipment 9 21 389
Impairment loss on trade T RR B W AR FORL B S 18
receivables recognised 7 149 165
Impairment loss on prepayments, BRENKIE ek
deposits and other receivables H e R IE
recognised B E 7 583 30,033
Impairment loss on investment BEoR—HeagRralz
in and loan to a joint venture RERERT—HEE
reversed ERRZRERBR 6 (100) (364)
Impairment loss on investment in REERFZIE
associates PR R 7 - 5,111
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ﬂ », ——
FReEBEeRER
Year ended 31 March 2025
HE-ZT-_RAF=A=1+—HILFE

2025 2024
—ET-hE —T-E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
F 5 TER FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES (Continued) (&)
Operating cash flows before LEEEPR KL
movements in working capital ERE (11,995) (12,062)
Decrease /(increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 209 (147)
Decrease in trade receivables JiE UK BR FORL A 3,186 2,169
Decrease /(increase) in prepayments, TE{IFUIE ~ L& K EAbfE
deposits and other receivables WK IE R A (38 0) 18,234 (15,202)
Decrease in financial assets at fair BARBFAERZER
value through profit or loss BERD
— equity investments at fair value —BARBEFABRRZ
through profit or loss PRI E - 1,002
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEfFBRFN CRi4), /18 41 (1,153) 1,339
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, H i fE{IFKIAE - FEET
accruals and deposits received HIEREWIZES
CR ) /1 (8,404) 15,426
Decrease in contract liabilities BRAEBERD (438) (470)
Exchange realignment PE 7 38 B (423) (349)
Cash used in operations REXBGAEZRE (784) (8,294)
Net cash used in operating activities & /EETHE IR /558 (784) (8,294)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEeEBRaRER

Year ended 31 March 2025
BHE-_T-_hAF=-A=+—RHLEFE

2025 2024
e R 3 —ETMF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TFET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERPELZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received EHERITHE 20 15
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BWFELRE
plant and equipment 15 H - (386)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BEK&RE
property, plant and equipment ERERIECS O - 112
Settlement of other receivable HENBAFELE
arising from disposal of MEBAREEZ
subsidiaries in prior years H fth fE Y IR - 5,000
Deposits received from disposal Eﬁu”j%*lﬁi?iﬁ"?@%”ﬁlﬁl
of an investment property MiZe - 910
Refund of deposits from disposal of  H & —HIKEWEFTE
an investment property B RN (910) -
Payments for films copyrights B hAE T K (25,400) (10,953)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBARZES
subsidiaries it EE 31 - (158)
Net cash used in investing activities ~ REEEIFE 2R & /F8E (26,290) (5,460)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEBDELZHERE
ACTIVITIES
New borrowings MBEE 28,704 12,548
Net cash generated from financing MEEFHAE IR FHE
activities 28,704 12,548
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH H & kI & ZE Wi,/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OB ) %88 1,630 (1,206)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzRERREEED
beginning of the year 7,054 7,403
Effect of foreign exchange rate MERFE T EHE
changes, net 51 857
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAEMEE
AT END OF THE YEAR FEY 21 8,735 7,054

SHEXEEEREB AR AT 2024/2025 F3k 81
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fx & M %5 3 & M 5

31 March 2025
—E-_RA¥=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at Room
22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial Building, 145 Hennessy Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
During the year, the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, was principally engaged in the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses, property investment, investment in
debts and securities, film investment and distribution business
and energy business that engaged in investments in energy
sector related instrument and sale and trading of liquefied
petroleum gas products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

1.

AT REEEH
aHNEEEEEGR AT ([ARF)
BREREFMKIZERAAF - E
BROREBBEXHFER QA ([H
RED) Em e ARAR Mt EEA
M Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° KA & 2
EBTELCEMBUREBEFEHE
FHE1AS R R RNE22E22F o

ARARBEREERRAR - FA > AK
B(BREARBALREKBLR) &)
ERBERAMAGREZEE MWER
B EBREFRE BEXRERE
TEBRREERREGEFLIARE
URBIEOHREREERE S 28
IRETS

RAEPBRRAET(BT]  TAK
REAZYEER) 27 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

ABREEEH (B)

AHMBATZEHR
AATEEMBARZFHBEMT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered paid-in equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
ERBL/ ERR ERfTLiER/ AAE R
£ BEud EZRARRE R#EE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
2025 2024 2025 2024
Z¥C1f C¥CME C¥CRE CECOE
Brilliant Plan Global Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS$1 100 100 - - Securities investment
RARRERAA ("BVI") LaRER ERRE
EBRABE (%
1)
Elegance Optical Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 and - - 100 100 Investment holding and
Limited 6 non-voting deferred property investment
EERERAARAA HK$20,000,000¢ REBRRMERE
LRR00ET R
BRZEETR
20,000,000/ 7+
Elegance Optical Manufactory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - - 100 100 Investment holding and
Limited A LakoER trading of optical frames
PRRERERARAR REBRBRRRERZES
People by People Group Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - - 100 100 Trading of optical frames
Eh LRAR005T and bags in Hong Kong
and Southeast Asia
REBRREEETR
RRRFRZES
RIS (R BERAA PRC Registered - - 100 100 Trading and manufacture
([RHERI) = EF RMB33,000,000 of optical frames
2t REECEHRYE
AR 33,000,007
Capital Real Estate Development ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - - 100 100 Money lending
Limited Bk E3B1R10,000E 7T HE
BHEXERERAR
Filmko Pictures (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary - - 100 100 Film distribution
Co. Limited Bk HK$10,000,000 #7RY
ERFX () ARAA LE%10,000,0005 7T
GULF ENERGY (CHINA) LIMITED  Hong Kong Ordinary - - 100 100 Energy business
(formerly known as “H. Sterling &7 HK$20,000,000 EAREY
Global Energy Limited") T4 0£20,000,0005 7
SRR (ME) ERAF
(MB[ZLRRBERAR))
Universal Star Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$!1 - - 100 100 Film investment
REGKERAR i ERRIAT EVRE

SHEXEEBERBR A A 2024/2025 F 3R
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

=& M3 3 &

31 March 2025
—E-_RA¥=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the year and at the end of the year.

*

*%

The first HK$1,000,000,000,000 of the profits which the subsidiary may
determine to distribute in any financial year must be distributed among
the holders of ordinary shares where one half of the balance of the said
profits is distributed among the holders of the non-voting deferred
shares and the other half of such balance among the holders of ordinary
shares. Moreover, the holders of the non-voting deferred shares have no
other rights to dividends. The holders of the non-voting deferred shares
have no right to attend or vote at general meetings, except for general
meetings convened for the purpose of reducing the capital of the
Company or altering their class rights. The non-voting deferred shares
carry the right to receive one half of the balance of any surplus in a
return of capital in a winding-up after the holders of the ordinary shares
have received a total return of HK$5,000,000,000.

= HERYlis registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC

law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

1.

ABREEER (B)

AHAMBABIZE# (4

Il

)

/

RERARFER BEMBE QRS T
EERES -

*%

fisi 5% M BB A R E M B IR E D TR s F
8 % E R & %1,000,000,000,0005% 7T 5 Ik

TmkFAA W ElER SRz —F
DRTFEREREERIBTEA  B—F&#
HADIRFEBRIFTEA < BLIN - B|BIERE
RERIE AR5 A A 4 H 4t 4 I R BR 2.
ERERECRFAEAERLERERS
KRG ERR - EREEIRARA R R
ERHSEAEN T AR ZRERERIN -
BN ERRERM SRR - AR EBRRE
T AR A A % 4 $£5,000,000,0005% 7T
% EEAEHBEAZ —F -

SRR EREEEZEMOINEEE
-

ERFIABARBEERRIETE
AEEAFEXRERRBRASEEE
FEERFDZARAKBATF A
RAIEERRD I EMME QA F
BR<REEARTE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEAHIEEMBHREED
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING ERE D2 3EHE-S
STANDARDS
Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards MREAFERFERZEEMF
that are mandatorily effective for the current HEFAETENBETER

year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2024 for

RAFE AEEBEHEXREATIH
ZEgtmrg ((FEGMAE])
ﬁﬁﬁmﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁt‘:&ﬁ” 2R &R Z
BAAR ZELARAEE TN
FMA— BRREFR R ER

the preparation of the consolidated financial statements: AR EEEE M IE®RE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BEPBHmEER BEREDNEE
Leaseback F165% 2 BFT AR BE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BB 2R BESEARD
Current or Non-current and F15R BT AR SIERBEE
related amendments to Hong REBRESES
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) SREVAEREE AT
—TFTF)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BB AR BB RENIER
Covenants F15RZAEFT AR HaE
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements BB G AR HERRLE 2B
and HKFRS 7 RIRRER
B 7 R 5 A B
BT ZEFT AR

The application of the amendments to HKFRS Accounting REEERBEEM GRS LG E
Standards in the current year has had no material impact Al Z BRI RNEAREBARFERAEF
EOMBRAREER RZEHRE
MBEBRRAMHERBLEEATE -

on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

S EEBEBGR AR 2024/2025 £ 85
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFIEEMBRE
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING | | X A
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective

E'.ﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁﬂﬂ ﬁiﬁi&‘kZ%ﬁ% &i
TZIS IEsT #R RHE

7 £ 8 3 4% 42 41 8 P 51 2 SR 46 18 14
KER T BB BRE SR G
R BB ETA

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the EEMEREER SHMIANSER
and HKFRS 7 Classification and FOR KRB BY FTEZIEE]
Measurement of Financial TR & AR
Instruments® FTHRZIEE] AR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BB EER REFERABEER
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0HEREE ANEERALZ
Associate or Joint Venture' BRH4ERIZE28 HHMEERER
R ZAEFT AR &
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS BBV BHREER BAEMBEREER
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards — SRR Z S ENNFE
Volume 113 EEIEN - F115°
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? BEEGFEL TR AT K a2
F2198 2 BFT AR
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in BEME®RE MEmMEN 27 R
Financial Statements” AR5 1857 5 5
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public BEME®RE ’“i—?iF'EJ ga:0li0)
Accountability: Disclosures* ZRIF195% /NG

REFEETE A sk 2 & Fte 2 FIR AR -

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 1

determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 2 REIB-RAF-—A-—BR2ERBZFE
HARTAE R o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 3 RZBZARF-—A—B2ERABIZEFEE
AR AE R o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 RZBE+F-A—BI2ERBZFE
AR o

Except for new HKFRS Accounting Standard mentioned B T X Ptz 3R] BB B 1S S R

below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the e=TXR|I R AR ESFHEEAFR

application of all new and other amendments to HKFRS BHEMEFEAEEMERELEL S E

Accounting Standards will have no material impact on the B & H fb (& §T$H-f7ré-\)‘5/\—jﬁ§kﬂz¥q‘

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BAMBERREREATE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBEERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7.Minor amendments to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation of
the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future
financial statements. The Group is in the process of assessing
the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the HKICPA, the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”). For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statement, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users.

at ZRI R EAERTA (8)
EEMB R &R E185RM
BRI RIE

BB S WS R B8R A B K A
ZEHREEFBRBEGAEAFE 5%
BBEHZNZS)  EHEINBRYG
BROZT RKEORTE o IR K
BRMBRE LR S ER AT
SHERNBURNZIERTE - WoIAE
BmRP2HEEER AT N
MBE RMBHREM PR EEE
REMKRBRAEREEE  ARKE
ﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ St R K e
S B BB G EAFIFHORE
E%’v;“é%;‘% FHERIFESSE BB
FEAET - BB G ERFETR
R mEXRBRB G EREIBBRE
AR & F TR B E UL R ©

B8 I % WS 2 A 5185 K b % A
ZEAIRAER T _LtF—A—HBHX
ZERABZFREHEES LA RS

F& FR - TE H FE AR R E B 2 B R R B
BRExPREERNZILKE - A&

BIRERFEE M B |E ERIF185
BAREGAMBRROFATE

ﬁA%Fﬁ%%iEE&E
KEFBRER

SR EH

GANBRENEEESGHAAR

By BEMERELR G R

FEERAGO 2 BERTE RBRAE
REF ETRA (T EmRA]) MRS -
AREGAVBREMS  WAEE
HEHNBEREITERAENRSE
AEEENBESR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

=& M3 3 &

31 March 2025
—E-_RA¥=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis

Notwithstanding that the Group incurred net losses amounted
to approximately HK$20,205,000 for the year ended 31 March
2025; and the current liabilities of the Group at 31 March
2025 exceed the Group's current assets at that date by
approximately HK$39,850,000, the directors of the Company
consider it appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis after taking into
account the following circumstances and measures:

(@) The Group is implementing various measures, such as
optimising its overall sales network and undergoing
effective cost control to improve the profit margin and
operating cash flows of its business.

(b)  The Group will also continue to seek for other alternative
financing and bank borrowings to finance its existing
financial obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for at least twelve months after the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to reduce the carrying amounts of the
Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

FEEEREE

BEAEERBE_Z_HF=A
S+t RLEEEELABRFRALY
20,205,000 7T : BAREER_FT_H
FZAZT-RHZARPEABEBBEAR
BN E B2 REE E #39,850,000/8
TR RATERARERER A2
AEERREFBERERERUERS
MBERABEE

(@) AKELERSREREE  HINE
L E BRI E RS METHE K
RS KRS EEBOFIEX

@AKTE A 2
RBERTRE -

b) AEEESEESKEME KR
BERBITER RERBUBE
ERRREEREAMAIEHE
{_:E‘ o

ARBEERR K5 R ElsH 3 R
Bt AKERHEERREZEESR
ZEREMBRRESLERRRED
T EARELERTESIEITX
HEIANMBET - Bt FE W
BRRDBRSELEELERE - A
SEEXFELE  NAFELRAER
BAEBEENREEREL AR
FECRAURELANE—FRE
YHERBEERIFRDAED HIE
MOBRRBEERRBEE ZF
HENFEYRNGAPBRRFR
B o
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31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

REMBHRRDIBRBERESHNAE
B2 EEMHHRE LS LR
H-BmBEEVBRERME > WA
BEEHAENBERETRZEAENR
R-AEBEEBBEKN I HE
MBHREABRRELMRANEEERRIRK
PIMENERME -

RAMBHmERDRELKAERE -
ETBERERENERNEREPRR
NAEFENETER TA (XA
HOSETERBA) -

FE 2 RRR — RARIE RIBENE Y KR
MXMREzZAABEHE -

RAEERGAEASNMS2EE M
MEFXZH REEEEMBRERZ
ERXBEREMINZER  TH
ZERMEAERBEARSNERS —
BEETAGE A EEREEL
RAER AEEERETHSE28EE
EERHRZEEXRBEETEE
BREERNEERRBERR EZ
EGAMBBRRPAER REEN
NAEBREWER ETUEE  EE
B E LR B2 (AR R AR
ZHFIBERAZBNNRRS - TR
MBHmEENF ISR HEIBERNZ
HERXRGURERAEBEBRUET IR
RENHFE BIW EESAELE2
WIFEIRHRER FERE LG
RERF365E [ EEREPEOERER)
BRI o
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 -

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

Level 3 -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The material accounting policies are set out below:

mREE(E)
FERMEEZAABNEGT LTS
SHEEREEANRREERKER
BRETEREEARKSEERR
ERgEZR—BMHE2REMER
BMEZEED -

AEEHHTRBRERTRGET
EoERERABBEFEAIAE A
BENHABEIBRERAZE B
ERNABREHAZRE -

RAEREEMBRRAEIRELZ
FMEEERABRE BERYFTERIAR
BEEEMEBEERE 2 KERF @ AR
BEENEAREBRADIE

F— — BAFEERBENERE
M52 HE CREHE)

F_H - BEAAEENTEE
ROATBR (ERKEER)
RIEANBABENGE
VapzS

BUAREFEMSBE
RO A BERERF &
ABENBET AR

‘éPdﬁ
Il
2
|

AIREEUEEER G E M HHRRER
ZEENBEMNS AKEBEBANSE
BEPREFAELE(REHFER
AREBEMNEBERNRKERREA
BB EBEEAAEERZMERTHRA
B -

ERGFTBREIHMAT
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

= is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

—  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date when the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the equity holders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group's and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Investment in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity, over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

The investment in associates or joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in associates or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interests in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associates or
joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part of interest in the associates or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associates or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associates or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associates or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with the associates or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associates or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associates or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in associates becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in associates. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in associates
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

FEREERE
AEERBRERRENEBL RET
BEZEEE #EUAREREHEEM
PRBTZEEEHNRBERRE - i
FEEMAEBBREE  BGhatE
Bzl EEE  AEERERRE (10
B)ZBE - WA RMEFHERNEEZ 7
WEERE IARNKEGFZEERB
ZREELEMO KD EEE - A
BMEETAERENRLZIEE A7
BENASETERNREELEML
KPR TAEEETAERSENLLZ
HEENReELBU &K/ AR -

AEEEBERAABREHERAR
EREEME2RSE - FHERE
B RARRAFHEHEEE
REERSFHZEENRR (L ARFE
BARRAZRENMBE) FENBHARE
BE . SAARKRAERERRER
HIE -

W —BAE (KRS EEBN) 27
Mo ] 4 8 98 515 R R BE T 0 B
E(RBSELER) 2 EABEBRE
HA RO 8 - S AR S ER— B
MEESEZRLELBMNAANE
BB ANAEMNS  ARBLE
R AL BAAREEE (RESRE
ZRSEARGARINARNEERS
SARAEMETE) BLRSELE
for 485 &) 7T 4 21 38 - 75 B 18 S
1885 BLME IS 1B & 4 PO R AR £F ]
B (WERA) MAEEE - KK BB
SELBNRRSELBUMANE
AENEEARLIISRELMERE -
& P BE A T AR R R R A A B
RS (TR E) - K62 A R{E (0
TEE) RE ARSEAE) o Hiblh
R AR H T A E A EEERE
AIELA S RERSEAER RAS
B BT AR A E - RIEE R
BDBS 925 R R ©

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

=& M ¥ 8 R

31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management, including
costs of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Sale proceeds of items that are produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and
the related costs of producing those items are recognised
in the profit or loss. The cost of those items are measured
in accordance with the measurement requirements of HKAS
2. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the lease terms and 2%

Shorter of the lease terms and the
rates of 5% to 10%

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by
the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property because
its use has changed as evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation, the fair value of the property at the
date of change in use is considered as the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property, plant and equipment, and
land that have a lease term of twelve months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Film copyright

Co-investment arrangements

The Group participates in co-investment arrangements led by
other parties. If the Group obtains shares of the copyrights
and interests of the films based on the investment portion,
the amount paid by the Group is recognized as “Films
copyrights”. The film copyright investments are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any. Upon the film is granted the license for
distribution, the film copyright investments are subsequently
amortised on a systematic basis, that reflect the pattern in
which their future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Group, normally within one year and is
recognised as cost of sales and services in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is included in other income and gains.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
loan and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL, The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligation;

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(if)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit—
impaired includes observable date about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower'’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued))
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner, Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the below basis:

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
J External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified. When the
contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount
of the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables
and deposits received, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and lease liabilities, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit and loss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
financial liability from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value and restricted
deposits arising from pre-sale of properties that are
held for meeting short-term cash commitments. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts are presented
as short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit/loss differs from profit/loss before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sales.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method
The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance

obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis, except for the allocation of discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell promised goods or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract assets and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
basis when the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods to its customers.

Revenue from film distribution service is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group's performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from the sales of copyrights (script materials,
investment in films with copyrights, etc.) is recognised at the
point in time when the copyrights of film are delivered and
accepted by the customers.

Licensing of broadcasting rights of films

Revenue from the licensing of broadcasting rights of films is
recognised at the point in time when the films are available
to the licensee, generally on broadcasting of the films
after receipt of the licence for distribution as a customer is
provided with a right to use the films and it exists at the point
in time when the license is granted.

A sales-based licensing income is recognised as revenue only
when (or as) the later of the following events occurs: (a) the
subsequent sale occurs; and (b) the performance obligation to
which some or all of the sales-based royalty has been satisfied
(or partially satisfied).
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Net investment income from co-investment of
films with copyrights

As disclosed in the accounting policies for "Film copyright
— Co-investment arrangements” set out above, the Group
invests in certain films where the Group obtained shares of
the copyrights and interests of the films of the Group for the
entitlement of right for revenue sharing. Revenue of these
arrangements is measured based on net investment income
from co-investment of films with copyrights.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants (including directors of the Company and
employees of the Group) who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations, under which such participants
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby participants render services as
consideration for equity instruments.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.

When share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss in respect of the period as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss in
respect of the period as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
(Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

EE®&A (45)
EHRHEMRBEERER (B)

BEERGHNEMN(PIMITERFS  F
REmR) R ERNE N S RREER
RBE-

REMRBEEEINERNBERA
SEGREENEEME R ILARHE
RIGEBEEL O BETRKBRER
MIREE - AEREERRBRAR -
NMEREHFEMELENEMESH R
BEABR RIS BBMBERS
HR BRI AFHEMNAEERAKR
e Rl

BERE

HWE FESEEREREE (IS
EREERBESAESHBRAGIHE
THEZEE) BEEBHZEERLTE
T VERZFEENBOMA ° &
EEERRERNCARZEEERE
EREEHAGIGETHERKL -
mMGHEEEERRNAGEREERMA
FRBREMBZRERAKBER
fEzBERAFNG - MAEEMEE
PR EL A A BT S8

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

=& M ¥ 8 R

31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. When a fair
value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, and a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss.

Settlements of monetary items which formed part of net
investment in foreign operations without changes in the
Group’s ownership interests is not considered as partial
disposals.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgment. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgment in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Principal versus agent

Determining whether revenue of the Group should be
reported gross or net is based on a continuing assessment
of various factors. When determining whether the Group
is acting as the principal or agent in offering goods or
services to the customer, the Group needs to first identify
who controls the specified goods or services before they
are transferred to the customer. The Group is a principal
that controls the specified goods or services before they are
transferred to a customer when: (i) the Group is primarily
obligated in a transaction; (i) the Group has inventory risk
before the specified goods or services have been transferred
to a customer or after transfer of control to the customer;
or (iii) the Group has discretion in establishing price for the
specified goods or service.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of investment in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment of associates at the end of each reporting period.
Investment in associates are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on comparable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. Changes in business circumstances
of the associates may significantly affect the recoverable
amount of the investment which would result in additional
impairment loss to be made or reversal of impairment loss
previously made. Details of the impairment loss recognised
on investment in associates are disclosed in note 15.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the usage of the
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving items where events
or changes in circumstances indicates that the net realisable
value of such inventories are expected to be less than their
carrying amount. In addition, physical counts on all inventories
are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine
whether provision is needed to be made in respect of any
obsolete inventories identified. The directors of the Company
are satisfied that adequate provision for obsolete inventories
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the impairment loss on inventories are disclosed in
note 17.

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’'s judgement
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the trade receivables are impaired. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer and the assessment of the expected credit loss. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of the ability of the
customers to make payments, additional allowances may be
required. As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$747,000, net of impairment
of trade receivables of approximately HK$1,821,000 (2024:
approximately HK$4,082,000, net of impairment of trade
receivables of approximately HK$1,672,000).

The Group uses four categories for expected credit
loss assessment of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how the loss
provision is determined for each of those categories. These
internal credit risk ratings are aligned to external credit
ratings, where possible. As at 31 March 2025, the carrying
amount of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
was approximately HK$3,386,000, net of impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$62,193,000 (2024: approximately HK$13,105,000, net of
impairment of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of approximately HK$61,610,000).

Details of the expected credit loss assessment of the Group's
receivables are disclosed in note 38.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

Management of the Group determines on a regular basis
whether there are any indications that the property, plant and
equipment are impaired. Impairment loss for property, plant
and equipment are recognised when the carrying amounts
of each of the assets exceed their respective recoverable
amounts, which are determined based on the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. The fair values
of property, plant and equipment are estimated by reference
to their expected selling prices which are affected by various
factors, including market conditions and the technological
occurrence. The value in use calculation requires the use of
estimates such as the future revenue and discount rates. If
the recoverable amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in respect of the period. For the current year,
no impairment loss was recognised on the Group's property,
plant and equipment (2024: Nil).

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from previous estimates.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated financial
statements at their fair value. The best evidence of fair value
of the Group's investment properties are current prices in an
active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar leases and other contracts.
In making its judgement, management considers information
from: (i) independent valuations; and (ii) external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition. Details of the fair value measurement
of the Group's investment properties as at 31 March 2025 are
disclosed out in note 14.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of films copyrights

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of films copyrights
amounted to approximately HK$25,400,000 (2024:
HK$4,162,000). Films copyrights are tested for impairment
when there are indications that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The respective fair values are determined by using
discounted cash flow valuation technique. Management of
the Group estimates the expected future cash flows from the
films copyrights and chooses a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Details of
impairment of films copyright are disclosed in note 18.

Amortisation of films copyrights

The amortisation of films copyrights recognised as cost
of sales and services for a given period is on a systematic
basis, that reflects the pattern in which their future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. Under
this method, the amortisation of films copyrights are based
on the proportion of the film's revenues recognised for
such period to the total estimated revenues of film. The
amortisation method is reviewed regularly, and revised if
appropriate. Details of the amounts of films copyrights are
disclosed in note 18.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following operating segments based on their products and
services:

()  the trading segment engaged in trading of optical
frames and sunglasses;

(i)  the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income;

(i) the debts and securities investment segment engaged in
investments in financial instruments and quoted shares;

(iv) the film investment and distribution segment engaged
in films copyrights and movie investments and
distributions; and

(v)  the energy business segment engaged in investments in
energy sector related instrument and sale and trading of
liquefied petroleum gas products.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and
corporate assets, including cash and cash equivalents and
certain property, plant and equipment, as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities, including income tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities and other payables, accruals and deposits
received, as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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MERE DB

(i) EEMTARBEROREZ
BHERESKREDE

(v, WEEZREANEZRENE
TZERRERETHH R

(v) WERREFEEFTREEEUAR
BItAHREMEERE S 288
/ﬁ%ﬁ%/\_L

DHMEETBRRARSEENER D
XEE- Eqﬂ“}éﬁiﬁi&fﬁ/fiﬁ%
URETHE BERERE  LIH
RNEZEEERFEELEERE -

DHMEETERRERSEENRER D
ESCRER Eqﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁi@
BIR B A K H A B FOR - AT FUR
RERES  ITERZFRAERSE
BEEEE -

DEHEHEERBEIDSEANERBIT
MEBRE=NHEZEEBMETT -
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FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SE&EH(E)
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 RBE_F_-_AF=A=+—HLE
EmE
Film
Debts and  investment
Property securities and Energy
Trading investment investment distribution business Total
BBk E¥RER
BE MERSE BHRE BT S @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FRT TER TER FRT TER
Segment revenue Sipias 9,002 944 - 4,511 - 14,457
Segment loss fBEE (9,834) (5,088) (518) (3,293) (42) (18,775)
Bank interest income BAMBBA 20
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ¥R E AN EH % (2,883)
Finance costs HBER (2,863)
Share of loss of associates AEBENRZ BE - - - (10,954) - (10,954)
Share of loss of a joint venture AE—RMAagRRZER (77) - - - - (77)
Loss before tax BRBATER (35,532)
Segment assets PBEE 6,820 27,749 128 35,251 - 69,948
Corporate and other unallocated assets rEREMKDIEEE 6,218
Total assets BERE 76,166
Segment liabilities ABAR 8,877 957 2,768 32,638 12,196 57,436
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities LEREMRIEEE 21,795
Total liabilities BERRE 79,231
Other segment information: Hipipast
Share of loss of associates AEBEDNRZ BE - - - (10,954) - (10,954)
Share of loss of a joint venture AE—REERAZEHR (77) - - - - (77)
Depreciation e (186) (24) - 1 - (211)
Impairment loss on investment in and loan BER-BAEARIZRERE
to a joint venture reversed HY—HEEARZRERSR 100 - - - - 100

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report
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REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SE&EH(E)
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 BEBE_F-_NE=H=+—HLHE
EmE
Film
Debtsand  investment
Property securities and Energy
Trading  investment  investment  distribution business Total
EBk EBEY¥RAR
EE NERE EHRE T RRER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET TEL TEL TET

Segment revenue SEkE 12,907 1,398 = 9,684 = 23,989
Segment loss REBER (7,493) (15,593) (1,200) (4,336)** (24,238) (52,860)
Bank interest income FAFBBA 15
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBARZ KR 10,144
Corporate and other unallocated expenses (¥ REM RS EHX (9.334)
Finance costs HBER (599)
Share of loss of associates SEBE AR ZEE - = = (6,530) = (6,530)
Share of loss of a joint venture AME—HEEE AR ZEE (195) - - - = (195)
Loss before tax BEAIEE (59,359)
Segment assets SHREE 9,497 45,556 50 29,551 = 84,654
Corporate and other unallocated assets CEREMKDAREE 7,166
Total assets LE®RE 91,820
Segment liabilities HBARK 16,432 1,343 4,987 5619 12,154 40,535
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities CEREMRIREE 33,382
Total liabilities BEEE 73917
Other segment information: Hipripas
Share of loss of associates AEBENFZ BE - - - (6,530) - (6,530)
Share of loss of a joint venture SME—REENRZER (195) = = = = (195)
Depreciation e 363 24 - 2 = 389
Impairment loss on investment in associates ~ IREf & AR 2 % A R{EFE - - = (5.111) = (5.111)
Impairment loss on investment in and loan BOR-Mag ARz REARER
to a joint venture reversed F-MALDEZRERR (364) = = = = (364)
Additions to items of property, plant and REWE  BERRERA
equipment 386 - - - - 386
& Included impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other * BN RIE - S R H A KRR (E R A
receivables of approximately HK$24,238,000 as the corresponding assets 24,238,000/ 7T - 1t J5 B 7 AR B & = ST AT A A BE
were previously included in segment assets of energy business. REEDHEE °
o Included impairment loss on investment in associates of approximately ** BRERBE QR ZREREBES, 1] L0007 7T
HK$5,111,000 as the corresponding assets are included in segment WTAREBEE AT RERBITODEE -

assets of film investment and distribution.
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FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

SEEF (E)

Geographical information Hh 35 & 44
Revenue from external customers (a) RENIBEFE W=

2025 2024
k- el - —TME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Europe M 1,828 5,809
America E 4,877 5,044

The People’s Republic of China HRIE AR
("PRC") (including Hong Kong) (B (BIEEE) 5,578 11,619
Others EAh 2,174 1,517
Total revenue 4 UG 75 14,457 23,989

The revenue information shown above is based on the
locations of the customers. The PRC (including Hong
Kong) segment mainly represents rental income from
lease of the Group's properties located in the PRC
(including Hong Kong), film distribution income, net
investment income from co-investment of films with
copyrights, the sales of eyewear products to agents
located in Hong Kong including sales made to local
retailers and fair value gains on equity investments listed
in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the agents in Hong Kong export the
Group's products mainly to ultimate customers located
in Europe and America.

Non-current assets

All significant non-current operating assets of the
Group are located in the PRC (including Hong Kong).
Accordingly, no geographical information of segment
assets is presented.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. &R (&)

Information about major customers FRAXEERZER

Revenue from individual customers in respect of the RAEEEEF R AR ERI10%
TORBFERATP 2 WRNT

corresponding years contributing over 10% of total revenue of
the Group of the corresponding years is as follows:

2025 2024
o~ =S - —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Revenue generated from
EXBTIEEZWE
Customer A Film investment and distribution N/A
BEPFA BYRE RELT A ER 6,424
Customer B Film investment and distribution N/A
=FB BRRE KRBT EH 2,800
Customer C Trading
BFC 85E 2,866 4,400
Customer D Trading 1,595 N/A
®FD = i A
Customer E Film investment and distribution 3,600 N/A
®FE BRRERET i A
Customer F Trading 1,802 N/A
EFF BB i A

BE_T_RAF=RA=+—RHILFE"
KB EPAREPBHRmHAEEAR
FEBKRZNERMHTEEI0%

Revenue from each of the Customer A and Customer B for
the year ended 31 March 2025 did not contribute over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for the year.

Revenue from each of the Customer D, Customer E and BHE-_ZT-_NF=A=1+—HILFE "
Customer F for the year ended 31 March 2024 did not KERFPD  EFEREFPFR W &= ¥
contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the AEEZFEANEHNERMETHEA

year. 10% o

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WamRHE MU
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WeaEHREREREEBERESTHES
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, gross HERZBRFE BHEHSBARE
rental income and agency and commission income from film TRIIRBRASKA -
distribution.
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

6.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. B HEMUAN (EB)

(Continued)

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as

AR B et R E AW A Z AT

follows:
2025 2024
—¥ZAHF —E-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue: Wrzs :
Sale of goods — at point in time HEEM—RNE—RHEH 9,002 12,907
Film distribution service income — BERRITRBBA -
over time 48 B ] 4,038 3,260
Revenue from contracts with customers RERFPA L2 W 13,040 16,167
Net investment income from R B H & E ¥ A hi &
co-investment of films with copyrights B REWRANFE—
— at a point in time AE B2 473 6,424
Rental income from lease of investment HEREMFEZHSRKA
properties 944 1,398
Total revenue recognised BRIz 14,457 23,989
Other income and gains: Hibdr A\ R U2z :
Accounting service fee iRGE 1,110 1,740
Bank interest income RITH B WA 20 15
Gain on change in fair value of financial BRARBEFAEBRZ SR
assets at FVTPL BEZAREZH KA
— equity investments at FVTPL —EAREFAEREZ
PHERE - 829
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB ARG e
(note 31) (BF=E31) - 10,144
Impairment loss on investment in and BOR—RagRrrz
loan to a joint venture reversed KERERT—H
BEARZRERE 100 364
Sales of scrap materials tHE RER - 24
Others H At 624 222
1,854 13,338

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7. Hih#EZE/MX
2025 2024
—EC-hHEF —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Impairment loss on prepayments, FENFIE - Re REAmEK
deposits and other receivables, net RIBRE BB F 5 (5E20)
(note 20) 583 30,033
Impairment loss on investment in RERE R R 2 IRERIE
associates (note 15) E518 (Fi5E15) - 5,111
Impairment loss on trade receivables FE W AR SR 2 BB B 18
(note 19) (PHEE19) 149 165
Loss on change in fair value of investment &EWE AR BEE S 2
properties (note 14) E518 (fizE14) 4,601 9,590
Loss on change in fair value of financial BRARBEGFAER S/
assets at FVTPL BEZAREZHER
— investments in convertible bond —FAIMREFKRE - 1,496
Others Hity 400 =
5,733 46,395
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEH
2025 2024
k- ek —ERMEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Interest on borrowings BEEF A 2,863 599
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REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BR¥imigsE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging: AEERBABERNER T ZIER
EEC
2025 2024
—E-hHE —T_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Cost of inventories sold (note a) BEETFEKA (Hita) 7.914 12,575
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERRETE
equipment 21 389
Auditor's remuneration ZERN N & 650 1,126
Short-term leases expenses HHIHEER 600 1,617
Employee benefit expenses EERHAFX
(including directors’ remuneration): (BREEEFME) :
Wages, salaries and other benefits T FekEMBER 12,669 12,652
Pension scheme contributions (note b) R ®FTEIME R (i 3Eb) 345 458
Total employee benefit expenses EERAE 2R 13,014 13,110
Notes: B &E -
(a) Included in “cost of sales and services” on the face of the consolidated (a) FINGREBEERPZHE KRB -
statement of profit or loss.
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited pension (b) REESHR AEETEDRYCRIKEF
scheme contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension EIE AT BB AR RE 2 RIKS 5T B4
schemes in future years (2024: Nil). K(ZTZF - &) -
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31 March 2025
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o©

ts

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE - FRTBAERAS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' maESZME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERFETHAENSE

2025 2024

—EC-AFE ZEZHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees we 334 326
Other emoluments: HEaiig -

Basic salaries and bonuses ARG & R4 361 360

Pension scheme contributions BIREFHEIHE R 10 18

371 378

Total @t 705 704

a. Independent non-executive directors a. BUFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FRARBIFATEEN 218

for the year were as follows: ST
2025 2024
—ERFE U
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Man Wai Lun' et - 103
Cheng Chun Man? B % FR2 - 103
Hui Man Ho, Ivan' B A - 103
Chan Chi Wai? RS (R 120 17
Law, Michael Ka Ming* Z& X AF* 107 =
Lai Pik Chi Peggy* RE S 107 —
334 326

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year (2024:

Nil).

f Mr. Man Wai Lun and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan resigned as
independent non-executive directors with effect from 9 February
2024.

2 Mr. Cheng Chun Man resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 8 February 2024.

3 Mr. Chan Chi Wai was appointed as an independent non-

executive director with effect from 9 February 2024.

4 Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy were
appointed as independent non-executive directors with effect
from 10 May 2024.

EANRERNBIERNITESEY
HMME (ZZ e : &) -

! XEBEERFXNEREE-F
—HEZANRRBEBE IR
Ex-

2 BERREEB _TE-_ME=-A/\B
EHEBIIENTES -

g REEEEE-_T-_MF-_ANAB
BEZTABUFERTES -

¢ BERALERRESZZLHE-F

“HFERATREERERBILIE
WITES -
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. E5 - FETHAESRAZ
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' EaaEEZME (B)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERFTETHRAENE (B)
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. HITEE: FHITEERE
the chief executive EITHAE
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total
and bonuses contributions remuneration
EXHS BirE
RIEAL sHEI R B & 4048
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FER TER
2025 k- el - 3
Executive director: WITES :
Chung Yuk Lun’ EB B 169 8 177
Zhu Guohua? PN 128 2 130
Gu Jianguo? JE 32 2 64 - 64
Non-Executive director: FEHITES -
Lam Wing Yiu® oK - - -
361 10 371
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total
and bonuses  contributions  remuneration
AEXFe Rk
NMAEAT G B < 4858
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
2024 —TE
Executive director: WITES :
Chung Yuk Lun EBB 360 18 378

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

1. Mr. Chung Yuk Lun resigned as an executive director with effect
from 19 September 2024.

2. Ms. Zhu Guohua and Mr. Gu Jianguo were appointed as
executive directors with effect from 19 September 2024.

3. Mr. Lam Wing Yiu was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 19 September 2024.

FAMBEFRTIETHRAERER
RIERETAME 2 25k -

1. BEBEEA T _MEANATNBEE
ERiTES-

2. KEEL T FEREEEE T _NFN
BTABREZELSNTES -

3. MoKBEEBZT-_WMENA+NBRE
RERFNTES -
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EE - EBTHASRAR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' RETFESZME (B)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Five highest paid employees’ emoluments TameHEEZME
The five highest paid individuals for the years ended 31 BHE_Z_AFR-_ZFT-_MF=A
March 2025 and 2024 do not include any directors of the =ST-HLEFE AE&aEHFALH
Company. Details of the remuneration of the five (2024: five) TERARBERMESZE -FR A%
non-directors, highest paid individuals for the year are set out (ZZE_WF:-AB)FEEHZEHFA
below: TZMEFEBERT
2025 2024
i e 2 —E-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Basic salaries and bonuses HEAFH& RIE4 3,800 4,034
Housing benefits FEEF 1,596 1,596
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 60 80
5,456 5,710
The number of non-directors, highest paid individuals whose MENTTHEEZIEESTRSHA
remuneration fell within the following bands are as follows: T2 ABWT
2025 2024
i e 3 —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 =8 7L £1,000,0007% 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5
One of the non-directors, highest paid individuals occupied REAFE Hh—RIFESTERFA
one of the Group’s properties rent free during the year. The TREREERAEBRESR —BYE-
estimated value of the accommodation provided to him is A R R E 2 2 fh 5t B 1E /3252,00078
HK$252,000 (2024: HK$252,000), which has been included in T (=T P4 : 252,000 L) * E&t
the amounts detailed above. AN FA o
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FeMEBRME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

1. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FiGHKR

2025 2024
—E-HE —ENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET

Hong Kong profits tax: EHRNEH
Current tax B EA%R 18 - =
Over provision in previous years BEFEBERE 15,327 =
15,327 -

No provision for the Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group does not generate any assessable profits subject
to Hong Kong profits tax for both of the years presented. No
provision for income tax elsewhere has been made as the
Group has no profits assessable in other jurisdictions in which

the Group operates.

HRASERMEZINFELEES
ERABMNBTAFEH 2 ERBUEF -
BERFIEREABFNEHEE - AR A
SERAKEEZEXBAEEMBDE
R EERTOSHN  BIALARFHRE
bl 2 PRSI B -

The income tax credit can be reconciled to the loss before tax SHERAEGEEER KR 2BRTA
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: JE’ETE%LTE'EZZDT :

2025 2024

—E¥hHE —ENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Loss before tax 75 B B 1B (35,532) (59,359)
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEBEFE 2 BIE (5,863) (9,997)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 R 746 6,274
Income not subjected to tax BARBKA (20) (1,673)
Loss attributable to a joint venture —ME&ERRELEE 13 32
Loss attributable to associates B N REIEEE 1,807 1,077
Tax losses not recognised RERBIBEE 2,437 4,272
Temporary difference not recognised RERERZH 880 15
Over provision in previous years BEFEHRERE 15,327 =
Income tax credit FrigBiE e 15,327 -
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

12. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12. BIRESE
AR AGEA N GREAEETD R
ROA T BEE H

2025 2024
—EC-RE ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loss for the purpose of basic ARt EESREREBEN
loss per share K518
Loss for the year attributable to RARHEANEBEARFE
owners of the Company B8 (20,205) (59,359)
2025 2024
—EC-AE —E-NEF
‘000 ‘000
T i T &
Number of shares for the purpose of FHARESREXEGEN
basic loss per share k& E
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EERIE T8
shares in issue 872,864 872,864

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options granted because
the exercise prices of those share options granted were
higher than the average market prices for shares of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2025.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Group had
no other potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 or as at those dates.
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-

FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
building  improvement machinery  equipment vehicles Total
fifh KB
HEnz BER RHAE
THRIEF ke 1 R RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TiER TiER TiER TiER TiER
At 1 April 2024 R-B-MEMA-A
Cost KA 9127 3820 8,034 7412 3,589 31,982
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERNE
impairment (4,848) (3,697) (8,006) (7,354) (3,090) (26,995)
Carrying amount HEE 4,219 123 28 58 499 4,987
Carrying amount at 1 April 2024 ~ RZF-MEMA—-AH
REE 4,219 123 28 58 499 4,987
Additions, at cost RE (IBAR) - - - - _ _
Depreciation provided for the year ~ ER{EHTERE - (27) (2) (15) (167) (211)
Written off during the year R - (22) (19 (16) - (57)
Exchange realignment EXAE - 1 1 - - 2
Carrying amount at 31 March 2025~ R=FZR%= A
= t-ANEAERE 4,219 75 8 2 332 4721
At 31 March 2025 RZF-IF=A=1-H
Cost KA 9,127 3799 8,016 7,348 3,589 31879
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERNE
impairment (4,848) (3,724) (8,008) (7.321) (3,257) (27,158)
Carrying amount FEE 4,219 75 8 27 332 4,721
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - MERRE (E)

(Continued)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
building  improvement machinery equipment vehicles Total
il %2
HENE BER RHBAE
THREF k& Bz B g @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2023 R-B-=£MA-A
Cost wA 9,121 3881 8,987 1774 3683 33452
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERNE
impairment (4,848) (3,565) (8,978) (7,689 (3324) (28,400)
Carrying amount BEE 4219 316 9 89 359 5052
Carrying amount at 1 April 2023 ~ RZBZ=£MA-AH
REfE 4,219 316 9 8 359 5052
Additions, at cost AE (&AL - - - - 386 386
Depreciation provided for the year ~ ER{EHTERE - (59) 31 (70) 229 389)
Disposals during the year ERLE - - - (112 - (112
Exchange realignment ERAZ - (134) 50 151 (17) 50
Carrying amount at 31 March 204~ R=E-IF=f
Zt-REEE 4279 123 i 58 19 4,987
At 31 March 2024 RZF-ME=A=1-B
Cost S 9,127 3820 8,034 7412 3589 31,982
Accumulated depreciation and ZTERNE
impairment (4,848) (3,697) (8,006) (7,354) (3,090) (26,995)
Carrying amount FHfE 4219 123 28 58 499 4,987

REBEE-_ZE_AFA-_FT_NF=A
=+ HILFE #BMERLAEENL
WEREFURBENERBEERRME
518 o

No impairment loss on the Group's land and buildings and
leasehold improvement was recognised in respect of the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.
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—E-_RA¥=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. HEME
2025 2024
k- el - —ENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Fair value at beginning of the year REVNZARE 32,121 50,848
Loss on change in fair value recognised EHRALAELZEERE
(note 7) (B 5E7) (4,601) (9,590)
Reclassified to assets classified EFOBESEABE
as held for sale (note 27) HENEE (KM5E27) - (9,100)
Exchange realignment E H 38R 6 37)
Fair value at end of the year RERZARE 27,526 32,121

At 31 March 2025, the Group's investment properties consist
of one (2024: two) industrial properties in Hong Kong,
including nil (2024: one) property reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale, one (2024: one) residential property
in Hong Kong, and one (2024: one) commercial property in
the PRC. The directors of the Company determined that the
investment properties consist of three classes of assets, i.e.
industrial, commercial and residential, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2025 based
on valuations amounted to approximately HK$27,526,000
as valued by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuer (2024: approximately
HK$32,121,000 as valued by Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuer).

Each year, the Group’'s management decides, after approval
from the audit committee, to appoint external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual
financial reporting.

RZEZ_AF=A=+—H A&H
MNIKEYMEBERBEEN—B(ZZ
ZE-MIE)IEXEDE (REHREE
FoBEZENERREHENEENY
¥(ZZZWWFE:—IH)) REED
—EB(ZZEZ@F: —B)EEWHEN
AR —IE (ZEZMF : —I8)
EEDNE - BRESBEYVENME -5
BEkER AAREERRBKREY
¥PEZQREE NITEX BEREF
E-REBUSEGERGEMES
B EERAFETHNMGEE  ~&
EREDNER T _AF=H=1T—
B & #{18 & #927,526,0008 T (==
ZF - ABLEEAERGEME
SEHEFHEERAAETHHERN
32,121,000/ 7T) °

AEEBEEEEFRRSERRES
PERREREINFHEMABER
SEMENINBEE - ERRERE
MEHME FE - BLEOEEEH#
FEXBRE -AKBEEEEBFRR
2 F B 75 BRSO 1Tk (B R (A (B AT 3L
HERK R GEERETIW
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. &M (E)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on page 194 of the Company’s 2024/2025 annual report.

Fair value hierarchy
All the Group’s investment properties were classified under
Level 3 in the fair value measurement hierarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2024: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REVMERBEEROEETE=7
E-THBHBERNGE M BEHRRN
33

REBEREYWEZHABIENRARAR =
T oE ) E - REFREIE o

ASEELR
MAARBERANED BEAR Eit
BEMBIM -

FR VEAAREFEREIHEE
MR EBASRBEREIR (=
L _pOF ;) o

DRERNAERBRFEIBZANENE

Commercial Industrial Residential
property properties property Total
HEDE i 37 EEWE izt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FHL FEL FEL
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 RZBZ=§=ZA=+-H
MEEmE 1,828 18,020 31,000 50,848
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value RERBAZAREED
recognised in profit or loss (B1]),/ Wz (670) 80 (9,000) (9,590)
Reclassified to assets classified as held ENABENEARELE
for sale MEE = (9,100) = (9,100)
Exchange realignment R AR (37) = = (37)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2024 RZB-WE=A=+-8
HERE(E 1,121 9,000 22,000 32,121
Carrying amount at 1 April 2024 RZZB-MENA-HHEK
HfE 1,121 9,000 22,000 32,121
Loss on change in fair value recognised RERRAZDAEEDZ
in profit or loss B (401) (300) (3,900) (4,601)
Exchange realignment EHAE 6 - - 6
Carrying amount at 31 March 2025 RZEZRE=A=1—H
HRREE 726 8,700 18,100 27,526
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation
of investment properties:

14. BEEME (&)

ARBEER ()
KREMEGREZEEG ASEREMN
—F:

Significant Weighted average price per square
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs foot/square metre
BEFRFHK
fEERIS EETTHEGARE MEFHEE
2025 2024
“EZILF —ZT_mF
Commercial properties Market comparison Price per square metre HK$18,306 HK$28,265
in the PRC approach
FEIEENE miHLLEA ¥ IKER 18,306/ 7T 28,2657 T
Industrial properties in Market comparison Price per square foot HK$4,994 HK$5,166
Hong Kong approach
ERIEME miGLLEA BFTRER 4,994% 7T 5166/ 7T
Residential property in Market comparison Price per square foot HK$6,589 HK$8,009
Hong Kong approach
BEREEME M5 L EOR Y HRER 6,589 7T 8,009/ 7T

Under market comparison approach, the properties are
valued on the market basis assuming sales in their existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets. Comparison is based on prices realised in actual
transactions or asking prices of comparable properties.
Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time,
location, floor level and other relevant factors.

In estimating fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per square foot and
price per square metre would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

BT S LB  REWE D ETS
ERfhE BRESWESURRR
EHE YL EABTNSTGZ A
HEHEEE  LEDERERER S
B M A LB B -
2 RREMEZEER BRI
% BESEREGEMEEYZR
T B -

REFAMEZARER MEZES
LeEREREBATARE -

¥ TREBEESFHKERBER
OB AT BRI EMEZ R A(E
BEEMORD) -
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FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

15. REtB AT Z2IRE

2025 2024
i o - 2 gl [ 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Unlisted associate E ) NG
Cost of investment B A 110,000 110,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and JE {1k sz B 1 s ) 2
other comprehensive income HE2mkA 9,268 20,617
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE (113,617) (113,617)
5,651 17,000
Movements during the year are as follows: BEmMT
2025 2024
i J - 3 —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
At beginning of the year RE A
Share of post-acquisition reserves FE(R U I 18 (R 18 17,000 29,000
— Loss for the year —FAEIE (10,954) (6,530)
— Other comprehensive expense —HrmERAX (395) (359)
Impairment loss recognised RFEEDERRE
for the year (note 7) &8 (FsE7) - (5,111)
At end of the year RER 5,651 17,000

SHNCEEEREBRGR AR 2024/2025 £ 145



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RA¥=A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. REtZE AT ZIRE (B)

The unlisted investment represents the Group’s 25% (2024: FEMREEAEBREM AR
25%) equity interest in Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko ANAE([E28EE]) B25% (ZZE ="
Culture”). F 2 25%) B HE o
Particulars of the associates of the Group (comprising Filmko REEEE R E (87263 REM
Culture and its subsidiaries) are as follows: BLRF)MFBEET
Proportion
Issued ordinary/ equity interest
Place of Principal place registered attributable to
Name incorporation of business paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
ERTLER KRB
&% it R Rl 3L 30 B TRERBEY ERRAERE IRELLB FEXH
Filmko Culture British Virgin PRC Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
Islands (“BVI") US$10,000 production in Hong
Kong and Mainland
China
BREXE RBRUES hE & ®MR10,000% 7T EERTPEAMNES
(RBRLES]) BT RRE
Filmko Entertainment Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
HK$10,000 production and
artiste product
ERREBRAA B & % 3@M%10,0008 7T BYRTREENES
(3
Nanjing Xinhao Film Culture PRC PRC Registered 25%  Investment holding
Development Co., Limited* RMB23,000,000
MRERTAXERERAR HHE g EEMARY REZK
23,000,0007T
Jiangsu Anshi Yingna Film PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Distribution Co. Limited* RMB10,000,000 agency service
IHERARMEZETERAR  HHE HE Bt AR BRI RRERS
10,000,0007T
Khorgors Anshi Yingna Films PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Distribution Co. Limited* RMB10,000,000 agency service
ERRIZAEMEYET i hE EEMARY BRI RRE RS
LNk 10,000,0007T
*  These entities are wholly-owned by Filmko Culture. * ZEBRAERE L2 EHER -
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31 March 2025

—E-HF=A=+-—8

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

The above associates have been accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

Management of the Group conducted a review of the recoverable
amount of the investment in the associate, Filmko Culture and its
subsidiaries. The recoverable amount of the investment in associates
have been determined, by reference to a valuation performed by an
external valuer, Miles Valuation Advisory Limited (2024: Kavin Global
Appraisal Limited), on the basis of fair value less cost of disposal.

In determining the fair value of the investments in associates, market
approach was adopted by the valuer as it is considered to be the most
appropriate valuation approach in this valuation.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the valuation is under the market
approach with the guideline public company method adopted.
Significant inputs for the valuation included adopted market
capitalization, sales amount (P/S ratio) and discount of lack of
marketability.

A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted sales amounts would result
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable amount of the
investment in associates. A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted P/S
ratio would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable
amount of the investment in associates. A significant increase/(decrease)
in discount of lack of marketability ratio would result in a significant
(decrease)/increase in the recoverable amount of the investment in
associates.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the valuation is under the market
approach with the guideline public company method adopted.
Significant inputs for the valuation included adopted market
capitalization, net book value (P/B ratio) and discount of lack of
marketability. A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted net book
value would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable
amount of the investment in associates.

A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted P/B ratio would result
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable amount of the
investment in associates. A significant increase/(decrease) in discount of
lack of marketability ratio would result in a significant (decrease)/increase
in the recoverable amount of the investment in associates.

Coupled with the management expectation of continuous decline in the
overall film industry performance, the directors of the Company consider
it appropriate to recognise, based on the valuation of the associate,
there was no impairment loss for the year against the investment (2024:
HK$5,111,000), which was included in other operating expenses (note 7).

15. RBE AT ZHRE (&)

Mg -

@i

(ii)

b ERARERAERERZEHEEY
BHRERAANE -

AEEEREHNBERREMEERE
MBLARZRENATKE S EEITER -
RBERRZRENTATKEESEELZE
IEBEEMTEFEZABERAR(ZF
Z P94 : Ravin Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited) # 1T BV (R ER IR 2 72 B IR H &K
RETE -

REERBERTIRENAAE &
EMEBTMSE ARERREXMLE
RRITERRBBENBENE -

HE-_Z-_AF=-A=+—RHULFE %
HERATSETHES EMRANE - %
HENERGARERERAOME
EoRE(MEER) RRZMIBRE LR -

RAMEESB|ARENORL) HEHR
REEE QR ZIRE MR B S AR I,
CRt D) o BR A O T 85 3 K@ 38 hn, (Ot )
HEHREE AR ZRENAKE S EX
B CRA) - RE TSR BT
KRBHEM/CRD) BEHABE AR
KAMAKESEAR O D), S8 -

HE-_Z-_NMFZA=Z+—HLEE %
HERATISETHES EMRRDE - %
HENEXGARBREERANTE K
FE(MFER) RRZMHERBUERLR -
FAMERIFENEEM CRd) HEH%
REE &R R ZIRE A R & BB ARSI
CRD) -

RAMTFEEZ L RAEE M CRD) B
BYRBERRZRENAREEEKE
#gi0RD) - RZTIHRE IR X
RIEHEM/CRD) BEERBE AR ZHR
EHr R E AR O L), 45 -

HBAEREYERTERRERISETE
MIRY ARAREERAREZMZE QT
MEENFARALERBRERNERBR (=
TZMEF 51110008 7T) REBZ R
EREHEAAEMBERZ (L7 »
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FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated

15. REtEAS 21 & (8)
TRESIZBEADLLNEA TN

financial information in respect of the associate and its CAREER BB EGAMERE
subsidiaries, reconciled to the carrying amount in the %) BE T &) %1 B -
consolidated financial statements:
2025 2024
k- Sl - —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue Iz 62,877 40,207
Loss before tax % A1 BT 18 (43,815) (26,121)
Income tax expense FriSfi X - =
Loss for the year FRNEE (43,815) (26,121)
Other comprehensive expense H fth 2 H I X (1,580) (1,435)
Total comprehensive expense 2HE A% (45,395) (27,556)
2025 2024
—F-HEF —EZNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE 47,618 48,331
Current assets MEEE 1,342 56,569
Current liabilities mEEE (55,185) (65,730)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) BEFE (6,225) 39,170
Reconciliation of the above summarised LB E R E
financial information to the carrying AEBERBERTZ
amount of the Group's investment in KRENRE B :
the associates:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 2 HEA RO 25% 25%
Group's share of net (liabilities)/assets AEBERMLEE AT (B
of the associates excluding goodwill &) BEFE TEERD
& (1,556) 9,793
Goodwill on acquisition Uy b o 120,824 120,824
Impairment loss on investment in EHERREE R AIRE 2R
associates recognised BEEE (113,617) (113,617)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 5,651 17,000
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31 March 2025

—F-HF=A=+—8

16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. R—EEZEABZ2IRE
2025 2024
—E-hF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#RT FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 887 972
Loan to a joint venture m—EaEERFER 2,622 2,637
3,509 3,609
Provision for impairment WER (3,509) (3,609)
Movement during the year are as follows: FREHET :
2025 2024
—ECAE ZEZMF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
At beginning of the year REF - =
Share of post-acquisition reserves FEAG Y B 12 R
— Loss for the year —FREE (77) (195)
— Other comprehensive expense —Hih2EAX (8) (1
Repayment from a joint venture —HEERAIZERK (15) (158)
Impairment loss on investment in and R—BEEERRIZEER
loan to a joint venture reversed EXRT—HeERAZ
R B IS 18 #8% [E 100 364
At end of the year RER - -
The loan to a joint venture of approximately HK$2,622,000 m— & & QA ER#2,622,000% 7T

(ZZ M4 : #2,637,00078 7T) A &
KA e MBEAREHRE—F
NEE - ARFEERE BERZWR

(2024: approximately HK$2,637,000) is unsecured, interest
free and is not repayable within one year from the end of

the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the loan is considered as part of the Group's net RAEEREGERAREFEZ —
paN

investment in the joint venture. 77 e
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE R—EEBEATZIRE (E)

(Continued)

16.

150

The directors of the Company had conducted impairment
testing on the Group's investment in a joint venture and
considered that the recoverable amount of the investment is
insignificant as a result of the expected operating losses of
the joint venture, accordingly, impairment loss was recognised
in full on the investment in the joint venture. For the
current year, a reversal of impairment previously recognised
amounted to approximately HK$100,000 (2024: HK$364,000)
was credited to consolidated statement of profit or loss (note
6).

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

$®ﬂ§$ﬂ%$%§%-%é%@
AlzREBEETRENS BRASEE
AREHREHRES ﬁ&ﬁmT%@
TRIAER Hit  ERREERA
ZREFHERRERBE - RAFE -
ST R RERR 2 R B % (2 £7100,00078 7T (=
T M : 364,000 7T) 5t AR A B
mk (f3Es) -

AEEEERRZHBWT

Percentage of

=5, 174
Particulars Place of
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held  and business interest power sharing Principal activities
FHERT #HE
& Rt E1E B WAEED BRE# RioaF TEXH
Guangzhou Jiashimei Registered The PRC 20 20 20 Trading of optical
Optical Company capital of (2024: 20) (2024: 20) (2024: 20)  frames
Limited (“Jiashimei”) ~ RMB1,000,000
BMEREKERE AR A I 20 20 20 BERZEH
BRAR(MERE]) ARE (ZZ-mE (Z2-@E (ZEB-Z@F
1,000,0007C £ 20) £ 20) £ 20)

The joint venture was registered as a Sino-foreign joint
venture under the PRC law and is held through a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

The joint venture has been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

The joint venture adopts 31 December as its financial year
end date to comply with relevant regulations in the PRC. The
consolidated financial statements have been adjusted where
appropriate for the material transactions of the joint venture
between 1 January 2025 and 31 March 2025.

BERATREPBEREMAF I
RERZLERBEBARARAZZEM

BERRERT-_A=1t—"HB#fRE
MRFEAEEBNETTREBER
Ple ZEMBRRIRAZLERAN =
T_hAF A HE_T_AF=A
ST HETZEARSELEEH

%Eko
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31 March 2025

—E-HRFZA=+—H

16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. A—EEEATZH/E (B)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TRINRAEEBEERRZHBER

Group's joint venture:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
HEZT-RF BEZZT_NF

=RA=+—H S E Sl
IEEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue Wz 965 9,237
Loss before tax BRELATE R (383) (975)
Income tax expense P8 F 2 - =
Loss for the period Ny oE ] (383) (975)
Other comprehensive expense Ht2EHAXS (41) (53)
Total comprehensive expense SHF 2% (424) (1,028)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
BE-T-aFE BE_ZT-WF
=A=+—H =A=+—~H
ILEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 7 16
Current assets mEEE 6,974 7,936
Current liabilities mEEE (2,545) (3,092)
Net assets BEFE 4,436 4,860
Reconciliation of the above summarised _E il 81 7% & &} 2 £
financial information to the carrying REBREERRAZ
amount of the Group's investment in WENREELR
the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBZHEARELD 20% 20%
Group's share of net asset of the REBEELEERT
joint venture BEFE 887 972
Loan to a joint venture m—EAaERARER 2,622 2,637
Impairment loss on investment ERAN—HE&E QA
in a joint venture recognised "B ZRERE (3,509) (3,609)
Carrying amount of the investment BEZEEE - -

SHEXEEBERBR A A 2024/2025 F 3R
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FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

17. INVENTORIES 17. 58

2025 2024
—E-hE T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Inventories, at gross amount FE®E - 7,038
Impairment loss recognised ERBEEE - (6,829)
- 209

An analysis of inventories is as follows: ~ FEHATAT ¢
Finished goods 2UpK R - 209
- 209

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of

inventories are as follows:

AEEFERERBZESHMT

2025 2024
i e - 3 —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year RE 6,829 7,168
Written off for the year FREH (6,829) =
Exchange realignment HE 58 B - (339)
At end of the year RER - 6,829
18. FILMS COPYRIGHTS BRMREE
31 March

=B=+-—H
2025 2024
bt e - 3 —ENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At cost BN 34,103 8,703
Accumulated amortisation ZET#EH (8,703) (4,541)
Carrying amount REE 25,400 4,162

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

18. FILMS COPYRIGHTS (Continued) 8. ERMRHE (12)
31 March
=HRA=+-—H
2025 2024
ki - 3 —T_mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FHET
Movements during the year are as FREHWT :
follows:
At beginning of the year REA 4,162 =
Additions, at cost NE (LKA) 25,400 8,703
Amortised for the year and FREHERERR
recognised as cost of sales 3 & KA (4,162) (4,541)
At end of the year RER 25,400 4,162

The net carrying amount at 31 March 2025 will be amortised
over the remaining useful lives of approximately 12 months
(2024: 12 months).

Impairment testing of films copyrights

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no impairment
was recognised by the Group. The impairment assessment
for film copyrights was made by project-by-project basis.
The recoverable amounts of the film copyrights have been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal, which is
determined by using discounted cash flow valuation technique,
based on expected revenue and estimated costs of each film
and the discount rate of 15% per annum (2024: 12.12%).

The discount rate applied in estimation of fair value less costs
of disposal is as follows:

R-E_RAF=A=+—BHWEKRE%
BERIZA12E B 8988 T 7] 6 3 F B
H( T _mE:128A8) -

2 B2 hi #E B (B A
HE-_Z_AFER_ZT-_WWF=A
=+—BHLFE AEBITEERR
B BEERERAETGEHIEEMEEE
EEET - BEERENATREDSE
RARBERLERAMETE  MHE
AR AR @ REME M -
REHEYMEHRE REERA
AR BRI REFGF15% (T _UF
12.12%) MEETE °

RSB R B RN E i ET FTE A AV RE
BERMT :

As at 31 March

R=EA=+—H
2025 2024
—E-HEF —ETME
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT
Discount rate AL 38 & 15% 12.12%
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEUTER =X

154

2025 2024

k- el - —TME

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FAET

Trade receivables, gross amount FEUBR TR 4a 58 2,568 5,754
Less: impairment loss recognised B ERERREEE (1,821) (1,672)
747 4,082

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally ranging
from 45 to 120 days (2024: 45 to 120 days). Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. FEMARER (&)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of REBREHREZEREHEN 2 EK
each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of ER(NBREERAREESE) 2RikD
impairment loss recognised, is as follows: T
2025 2024
“T-RE —T-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#RT TET
Within 90 days 90H A 747 3,128
91 to 180 days 91£180H - 86
181 to 360 days 1812360H - 868
747 4,082
Movements in the impairment loss recognised on trade BLEUR R R EEE 2 E 8N
receivables are as follows: K
2025 2024
ke Jon - 3 —FTomE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#RT FET
At beginning of the year RE A 1,672 1,507
Impairment loss recognised FABRZREEE (FE7)
during the year (note 7) 149 165
At end of the year RER 1,821 1,672
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REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. TEF]‘%)’(IE BERHEMEW

RECEIVABLES M;IE
2025 2024
—E¥-EE gl 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Gross amount: #aEE -
Deposits paid for acquisition of RBGRERREX MRS
equity investment (Note (a)) (M 5E(@)) 27,800 27,800
Prepayments TR I8 965 3,798
Disposal receivable (Note (b)) e U & FE (M RE(b)) - 6,000
Other receivables (Note (c)) E {th e Ue 7008 (B RE () 18,900 19,203
Other receivable related to B RESEE
convertible bond (Note (d)) Hth e W 5038 (B 5E(d)) 15,664 15,664
Prepayment for the investment B RERE AN RIEA
in film copyrights 2,250 2,250
65,579 74,715
Impairment losses recognised: EHERRBEERE :
Deposits paid for acquisition of equity RBGRRREX MRS
investment (Note (a)) (FfE(a)) 27,800 27,800
Prepayments TR FIE 587 3,042
Disposal receivable (Note (b)) JE W & FRIA (BT =X (b)) - 104
Other receivables (Note (c)) H b pE U R IE (BT 5% () 18,142 15,000
Other receivables related to BRI AR E S EE 2
convertible bond (Note (d)) H b e W 5038 (Bt 5E(d)) 15,664 15,664
(62,193) (61,610)
Carrying amount FREE 3,386 13,105
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31 March 2025

—-FE=

A=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group entered into an agreement, under which the Group agreed
to subscribe for 50% equity interest in H. Sterling LNG Terminal Holding
Limited (“H. Sterling LNG") a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, for an aggregate consideration of RMB223 million, of which
aggregate deposits amounted to HK$27,800,000 were paid by the Group
up to the end of the reporting period. According to the agreement for
subscription, H. Sterling LNG will own 21% equity interests in Yantai
LNG Terminal Project Company immediately prior to the completion of
the subscriptions. Yantai LNG Terminal Project Company is principally
engaged in the gas operation, import and export of goods and
technology and import and export agency services, and is a project
company established to implement the Yantai LNG Terminal Project.
Completion of the Group’s subscription of 50% equity interest in H.
Sterling LNG has not taken place up to 31 March 2025 and the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements. The management
of the Group concluded that the proposed acquisition was cancelled
and the Group has demanded the repayment of the deposits paid.
Impairment loss on the deposits paid amounted to HK$27,800,000 has
been recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements as at
31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, management of the Group
conducted a review of the recoverable amount of the deposits paid.
The recoverable amount of the deposits paid have been determined, by
reference to a valuation performed by an external valuer, Miles Valuation
Advisory Limited, on the basis of expected credit losses model.

Coupled with the management expectation of non-performing of the
deposits paid, the directors of the Company consider it appropriate
to assess, based on the valuation of the expected credit losses, the
aggregate deposits paid amounted to HK$27,800,000 were fully
irrecoverable as at 31 March 2025.

Disposal receivable at 31 March 2024 amounted to HK$6,000,000, with
impairment losses on the receivable amounted to HK$104,000. During
the year ended 31 March 2025, the disposal receivable of HK$6,000,000
was fully settled. Impairment loss on disposal receivable of HK$104,000
was reversed in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31
March 2025.

Included in other receivables at 31 March 2025 is the receivable from
a third party amounted to HK$15,000,000 (2024: HK$15,000,000) which
is attributable to the disposal of assets by GULF ENERGY (CHINA)
LIMITED (formerly known as “H. Sterling Global Energy Limited”) prior
to its acquisition by the Group during prior years and this receivable is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Having assessed
the financial position of the counter party and the underlying economic
environments, management of the Group considered it appropriate to
make impairment loss on the receivables in full in the prior year ended
31 March 2024 which was charged to profit or loss in respect of that year.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, having assessed the financial
position of the counter party and historical collection of the receivable,
management of the Group considered it appropriate to write off the
receivable.

20. i‘Eﬁ%ﬁ

=IE (&)
MiE -

(a)

AEBRIZB#E Bt AEERERE
H. Sterling LNG Terminal Holding Limited
([H. Sterling LNGJ » —[E 1 3 & 5E 2 B
SaEMKLZ AR S0%KRE - BRER
AR#223,000,0007T - Ep BEEERE
HiR 2N 5% [ B X2 Y 2 & 48 #827,800,0007%
T - RERAWREITKE - RIERE G
H. Sterling LNGi§# B @& BRI RARE
WuhTH B R A% o A BRIERA
REKRBIEBRRAEIERERRELE &
IAMEATE R O R ARERYE -
—HABEMAARERARERIMIER
MARZMBEE AR -BEE-_T_AF=A
=+ -BRZEFEUBRRSLEAS
NEERIEH. Sterling LNGZ50%M% # 4
AREK - AEEERERARERWBEEE
EWEVE - MASEEERRBES MRS -
ERAEER-_Z_NF=A=+—HH
FaMBRRTERD NiRerRERE
27,800,000/% 7T °

BE_Z_AF=A=+—HLFE &
SREEERENC MRS A Y E SRR
=M E2EIBEEMTEFEENRE
RARETHHE  REEHEEERE
NETENRENATKRESHE -

HEEEEYHENRERRTRNESY
ARBEERR BEAEHEEHENMG
BFE RZE-_RF=A=+—-H B
42 & 42 %827,800,0007%8 7T B & # S 7]
ElEEE S -

RIE-_NEF=A=+—HNEKHLER
18 36,000,000/ 7T - i /& U 7K I8 9 R 18 /&S
BRI04000ETT -BHE-_T_HF=H

=+—HIEFE - EUYIE S 7K IE6,000,000
BLeBEEEE R_T-_AF=A
=t—H REAKERAMBHREDE

i & ?KIE/)EE@E?TEWAWOO%EO
RZZT-_AF=A=1+—8 HtEKX
BREREEER(PE)BRA (R
[EL®RESZERAA]D RBEFER
AEBREMEEEEMR—ERE=H
JiE Uk 3Kk 815,000,000/ 7T (= ZF — P4 4F :
15,000,000/ 7T ) ° H%ZE%H&?AIE?%H#E
B REREAREREE -ETHEFH
%Eﬁﬁ#%&*a%ﬁ%&%%m& AEERE
BERAHE-_T_ME=A=+—H01
BEFEHEERBEELZEREBE (8
ZEEBETNR) DBEE -BE-ZT
—HE=ZA=+—BALEE" ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ﬁa@,ﬁ\ﬂ%;#mmgfumzamza&u&z@\
% AREBEIEER A MHEZEWRRIE
BEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEERERME

31 March 2025
T RAF=A=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. fﬁﬁ IE Be Rk HMEK

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group subscribed convertible
bonds issued by a third party (“the Issuer”), which through its
subsidiaries, are principally engaged in energy sectors related business.

The convertible bonds held by the Group, which carry interest at 8%
per annum with the principal amount of US$2,000,000, entitle the
Group, as the bond holder, to convert the bond into approximately 2%
of the issued capital of the Issuer (on full conversion). During the year
ended 31 March 2024, upon the expiration of the conversion period,
the convertible bonds have not been converted, outstanding principal
and interest totaled HK$15,664,000 have been reclassified to other
receivables.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, movements in investments in
convertible bond are as follows:

WTE :

,ng

(#)

BHE_T-_—4F=ZA=1+—RHALEE K
EEREHR—RFE=H (BITADETH
ARRES  BHTAZTZRBEMBAA]
M RERBABBAET -

AREEF5H 8 AT AR B 27 128 %HY F FI R 5t
8 N§FEA2,000,000% T - SRR (1
REZBBEAN) BREBEFEBRAETA
H2%M B BT CBRBEIRE) - REE
TECMFE=ZA=+—HLFE  THBRER
BEHERBREERZERBER BRER
K& kT B A 515,664,000 T2 EHH
EEHMEYGRR

REBEE=-ZT-_MFEF=A=1+—RHLFE "
AHRBREFIEZHNAT

2024

—TMF

HK$'000

FHET

At beginning of the year, at fair value H’:\i?ﬂ CRARE 17,160
Decrease in fair value ARERD (1,496)
Reclassified to other receivables BN DR EH M EYGRIA (15,664)
At end of the year, at fair value RER BARE =

Impairment loss of other receivables related to convertible bond
amounted to HK$15,664,000 has been recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, management of the Group
conducted a review of the recoverable amount of other receivables
related to convertible bond. The recoverable amount of other
receivables related to convertible bond have been determined, by
reference to a valuation performed by an external valuer, Miles Valuation
Advisory Limited, on the basis of expected credit losses model.

Coupled with the management expectation of non-performing of the
deposits paid, the directors of the Company consider it appropriate
to assess, based on the valuation of the expected credit losses, the
aggregate deposits paid amounted to HK$15,664,000 were fully
irrecoverable as at 31 March 2025.
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GREMBMETHAETRRESEFBHN
L {th JiE U TR (B 5 18115,664,00078 7T ©

HE-_T-_AF=A=1+—RHLFE &K
SEEEEYHANRRESABANEME
BRBH AT E ¢ BEETE - E2EH
EEEM T 2T FBRERABETHE
B REEHEEERELNETEITBRR
EHA BN M ERFEN T RE2E -

HAEEEBYHONRERBETROES
ARBEERR RERHEEBROMG
BEFfE R—F-_RF=A=+—H" B
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Except mentioned above, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets (after impairment
loss recognised) included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

Movements in the impairment losses recognised on

20. TEfTRIE - 8 R 2 B AEN
I8 (8

=

nE

B £ XA SN - bt B A I e
HRE - FTA LM tR 2 SR A E (H
BrEMRRERE) BRI EE R
5z RMFIAARE -

PIB R ~ RS I E WA

prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as follows: ROBEBEZEESHNT -
2025 2024
“¥ZhF It
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
At beginning of the year RER (61,610) (31,577)
Impairment loss recognised for the year & RNFER 2 B EE B (583) (30,033)
At end of the year RER (62,193) (61,610)

The information about the expected credit loss is disclosed in
note 38.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ERRBEEEENE N RENME
38 °

21. R RBTEFEY

2025 2024

—EZ-hE —ENE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FAET

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE R 8,735 7,054

At 31 March 2025, the aggregate cash and bank balances
and deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$59,000 (2024:
approximately HK$130,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

R-E-_RAF=ZA=+—H ' A&£H
MARE(TAREDNEZHRS RIR
1T #: 85 LA R 17 5K A& H 49 559,000/ 7T
~— T P04 #9130,00088 7T) © AR
BMAAEBRARAEMER A -
1R 45 Fh B 9 b NG 5 3B R TE A S A5 TE -
EERNESERT AEEEES
BERATETIINEXEE ZRITHBA
REBHMEM -

ROTBSBRBEFARTERMNEXGE
ZERRBAE -EHMERAERZE
REH-—BAE=ZFEAFLE RFAE
BB EFRME  LREEH
EMERERRIMAE - RITHEBRK
FRERRNORY ERERCEBEE
RUFZRIT -

S EFEEEB AR AR 2024/2025 £33 159
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REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. FEfTRRFR
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each RERESMREZNHENEPE 25 2 &
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as NERZEERITAT
follows:
2025 2024
“T-RE —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#RT TET
Within 90 days 90H K 2,931 3,096
91 to 180 days 91£180H 918 2,932
181 to 360 days 1812360H 2,445 1,522
Over 360 days HBiB3608 232 130
6,526 7,680
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FER BRI ARG B R —#RIE0R (=&
settled on 90-day (2024: 90-day) terms. ZPO4 : 908 ) IREARE ©
23. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 23. HEMRIE - Bt RIER
DEPOSITS RECEIVED Elxe
2025 2024
ke Jon - 3 —FTomE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#RT FET
Amounts due to related parties FETRAE A T RRIB
(notes 35(c) and 35(d)) (B 5E35(c) &2.35(d)) 2,472 9,491
Amounts due to an associate JE < — [l Bk & X B FKIA
(notes 35(g)) (MFEE35(g)) 470 =
Other payables H M B~ 3RIB 14,192 13,514
Accruals fEEtFA 8,549 10,097
Deposits received BliEe 191 1,176
25,874 34,278
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

, O

24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24. Gt B BE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BIRAE (IR
(%) Ep-CR | TERT (%) R FHET
Current
B EA
Unsecured loan, repayable on demand
due to default of payment (note a) 10% 2025 17,928 10% 2025 13,147
EEAER  BHERERMERER
EEAGET)) 0% —FB-HF 10% —T-H%F
Unsecured loan, repayable within
one year (note b) 8% 2025 26,786 =
BEERER  R—FAER (Fb) 8% Z—BZIHE
44,714 13,147
Note: B 5
(a) The Group's borrowing is unsecured, carries interest at the fixed rate of (a) RNEBEMEEAEER - R10%8 B EEH
10% per annum and the maturity is 20 March 2025. wHE BEAA-E-_HE=A—+H-
(b) The Group's borrowing is unsecured, carries interest at the fixed rate of (b) N S [E R B A IR 4R8%RY [E A T
8% per annum and is repayable on or before 24 July 2025. "B WAR-_E-_HE+A—+WA

H AR -
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. B¥IEE
2025 2024
—¥-HE —E
HKS$000  HK 000
FT#RT THET
Contract liabilities related to: NIyl A= F NN
Distribution of film sub-licenses BITETERE 1,004 1,442
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing AEEERSAONTENNREZHERE
schedule as established in contracts. Payments are usually FWANK - TERBEETETER
received in advance of the performance under the contracts ENNFRTERESNELN ZATWE
which are mainly from distribution of film sub-licenses.
The following table shows the amount of the revenue TRIRNE R R EHEER B EG
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to HANBBEABANKE SR
carried-forward contract liabilities:
2025 2024
“EZAHF —ZTF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET THET
Revenue recognised that was included qu)\fF?)](:l\,’JE%
in the contract liabilities balance REERE B FE R
at the beginning of the year 438 470
Revenue from unsatisfied performance are as follows: KERBITRRZWEIIRAT
2025 2024
—BZAHE —ZT_mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Expected to be recognised within one year  FE&T R — FRHER
Film distribution EE%%’& 391 438
Expected to be recognised after one year ISR —FI1EHER
Film distribution BRI 613 1,004
Total transaction price allocated to RERDEZERET
unsatisfied contracts at end of the year BRNERZ HER 1,004 1,442
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FEMEERERME
31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are

as follows:

26. BEHRIFER
N2 IEIEHIE & B

Depreciation

g

allowance
in excess of
related Property

depreciation revaluation Total

HEiBAFITE
ZinEEE MEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET
At 1 April 2023 RZTEZ=FMA—H 395 778 1,173
Exchange realignment bE 5 A (287) 247 (40)
At 31 March 2024 R-E_MFE=A=+—H 108 1,025 1,133
At 1 April 2024 RZTEZMEMA—H 108 1,025 1,133
Exchange realignment BE 5 R (2) (18) (20)
At 31 March 2025 R-_E_A¥=HA=+—H 106 1,007 1,113
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31 March 2025
—E-_RA¥=A=+—H
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$262,297,000 (2024: approximately HK$247,591,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which these tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and joint
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group's subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. There were no temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at
31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

26. BEBIER G (5)

R|EBPR AEBREBEE 2
ST EEE Y £262,297,0008 T (=
Z V04 : %9247,591,000/8 1) ¢ A ER
HANBHEEEAZSEBBEAAZHE
RN AR AKRERBE T
BRERT AN ] HKIEZEHIAES -
MW R ZEBEBERELERIEE
Eo

RETBEEEMEVEL RAEAM
FRILHINE R ERBIMIE E T K
PR EZAMMOBTAM - LR E B =
EZNEF-A-—BRER XEAR
R E+ A=+ —R®E&EZEH -
BEMBHRG R RSN E R
BIMREEREEBITARBHOZ
BRATER SRAKEMS  EHAB
RR5%  REBERAREETEA
WRZHWHB AR RGERRR_-F
ZENF-A-BERRZANMDIK
P S BURTRHTR

RZE_AFRZ_FT-_NF=H
—t+—H BERAXSERPHAH
Rz BAR HEARAREGER
RIZBEMTEMT 2 RELBFEE 2
ENFENHEMERELEHE A4
REERA HWERNBAF BEAQ
AREERTNARERTA DR
@AM R_T-_RAF=ZA=+—
B WESEKEERPHAMKEE Q)
EERAMTAREEREEHEEE 2
TR ER(ZT YT - HE) o

AR A A E B UK S 2 BB 3 4 Y
ERIFEHER -
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27. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS ﬁ*ﬁ#& & Y ]
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE R=Ris
2025 2024
k=l - T OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIERENEE
Investment properties (Note 14) HEYE (H5E14) - 9,100
2025 2024
- =S - —ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Liabilities associated with assets HABARBIELEN
classified as held for sale EERBENAE
Deposits received on disposal of HEEREME
investment properties W IR & - 9210

On 17 January 2024, Elegance Optical Investments Limited
("EOIL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, Ms. Foo Hiu Hung Heidi ("Ms. Foo"), pursuant
to which Ms. Foo agreed to purchase and EOIL agreed to
sell the Group's investment properties for a consideration of
HK$9,100,000, deposits of which amounted to HK$910,000
were received by the Group as at 31 March 2024. Accordingly,
the investment property has been reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale. The deposits received for disposal
of HK$9210,000 was classified as liabilities associated with
assets classified as held for sale.

The disposal of investment properties completed on 3 May
2024.

RZZE-_NWFEF—HA+tB A2Al%E
ENBRARSEREREGRAG (S
HREFLEERAA]) B—FBIE
ZHEBRAZT (BTN ER
WE B BXIRAEEERSH
REKEERAFBELEAEED
L& WE - KRB 5A9,100,000/ T A&
EEOR - E-_ME=FA=+—H%
B £910,0008 70 B It - IR E W %
EEFMOEASEABIELENEE -
& T UL 12 £910,00008 TT D B A
HOBARERENEEFSENERE -

HEREMER_T_MNFEFRA=H
TERX °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. g &
2025 2024
—¥ChE —ElEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Authorised: VETE
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,0000% & f%
(2024: 10,000,000,000 shares of H1E0.018 T 2 I 1D
HK$0.01 each) —E_pUFE:
10,000,000,0000% = f&
H{E0.01 B L2 i&m) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
872,863,684 shares of HK$0.01 each 872,863,6841% & &
(2024: 872,863,684 shares of EE0.01%8 T 2 I’k 5
HK$0.01 each) —E-JOF
872,863,6841% & B%
EE0.01E T Z IRH7) 8,728 8,728
There are no movements in the Company’s issued share REE_Z_AF=-A=+—HLHF
capital during the year ended 31 March 2025. ¥ ARFEBEITRASEEAEY -
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 March 2020.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
(i) any director, including any executive or independent
non-executive director or any full time or part time
employee of the Group; or (ii) any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoter and service providers of any member of the
Group.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
(i)  Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at 16 March 2020 (i.e.
the date of passing the resolution for adoption of
the Share Option Scheme): 60,655,368 shares.

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares of the Company
that it represents as at 30 June 2021: 6.95%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

29. PR fERTEl
ARARZB-TE=A+XBRM
— AR A B ([PRARE S EI)) -

PR B 2 EBRMEFBUR T

Q)E%@HQZEM
BASHEERS - BE LB
AHZABERBEENRKAE
Bz KRR NIER -

(b) &f&
BREFEzZAER2EERE
(VSR B 2 1T S8 L IR
TEFHEAE2BARBES
(i) A &= BAE A K B & B A
BB B DA AR
BoEP Rl RE EB
B AEEBRBH BREAR
PR 7% fL e 7 o

(c) RIRESBRAEST S O] F 31T
Zh LREE
(i) R-ZZE-_ZFEF=A+,<H
(BB AN RE I i RT &l 2
RERB ) RBBRERT
BIR] T EIT 2 R D A B
60,655,3680% °

iy RZZE-—FXA=T+H
mARRBIEERITROZA
DL 6.95% ©

(d) BRESEETEESE

te2HETERER LR

() BRIFEARELE - FAIEME

1218 A BRI A T 151238
BETRHZ1%: &

iy FMEMENM2E A BEREEE
BRE S BILIERITE L
FESAZHBEAREZ
B ERBEERITRNO
20.1% X (B {E#E1E5,000,000
BT B RRRALAE ©
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e) Period within which the shares must be

taken up under an option

At any time during the option period in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such other
terms and conditions upon which an option was granted
from the date of grant of the option but in any event not

exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

(f) Minimum period for which an option must

be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the

board of directors.

(g)
the option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of

grant; and

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not

applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company and will not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; and (b) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

(i) The remaining life of the Share Option

Scheme

Approximately 5 years (2024: 6 years) (expiring on 15

March 2030).

Price payable on application or acceptance of

29. BERx#ERT S (8)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)
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() EREFEHENERERMRA
BTBIERE - 1.008 T
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. FRiR#EETEI (8)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BRETEETHEABRREXR
or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings. RRAE LIREZEF -
Movements of share options granted under Share Option FRARBEREFEIRE 2 BREZ
Scheme during the year are as follows: 2yHmT
2025 2024
e e 52 —TopmE
Weight Number Weight Number
average of shares average of shares
exercise issuable exercise issuable
price per under price per under
shares options shares options
RiBAE IR RizRE A

=Lk AR ET SRNE AT
FHTERE  ZEROGBE  FHORE ZROHEEA

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
&L Fix BT Tz
At the beginning of the year REA 1.33 36,000 1.33 36,000
Granted during the year FARN - - = -
Exercised during the year FRITEE - - = =
Lapsed during the year FRNERHK - - = =
At the end of the year RER 1.33 36,000 1.33 36,000
No option granted under the Share Option Scheme were BHE_Z-_AFRK_ZT-_MNF=HA
forfeited during both of the years ended 31 March 2025 and =+—HBIEMEFE  BELIKERE
2024, IR IR 2 B AR -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BERx#ERTEI (8)
The exercise prices and exercisable periods of the share RBERR REBEBRESESRLE 2
options granted under Share Option Scheme outstanding as AR AT 2 B IR i 2 1T R (B R A7 {58 A
at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (I
2025
—E-REF
Number of
shares issuable Exercise price
under options per shares Exercisable period
IRIRB I F
BiITZREE BiRTHEE {TEH
000 HK$
F iz i e
8,000 1.33 1 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E-—FNWA—-BE=-F=—F=H+/\H
8,000 1.33 4 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E-_—FNAMNBE=-FT=—F=H+/\H
20,000 1.33 7 April 2021 to 18 March 2031

—E-_—FMAtEBE=-FT=—%H=H+/\H

36,000
2024
—ET-EF
Number of
shares issuable Exercise price
under options per shares  Exercisable period
RIBERER T
BT ZRINEE BRITEE  TEH
000 HKS$
TR BT
8,000 1.33 1 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
- —FNA—-HBEZZT=—F=A+/\H
8,000 1.33 4 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E_—FHAWNBE-T=—F=A+/\H
20,000 1.33 7 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
B FNOAtHEE=—F=A+/\H
36,000
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had options RBMEHR - N2 A RIEERET S
outstanding to subscribers for approximately 36,000,000 £ T R A £936,000,00010 (ZF =Y
(2024: 36,000,000) shares under the Share Option Scheme. The F 1 36,000,00013 ) M ARTTIE 2 BE I AE -
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under BERRARBEARAGER BEITRE
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the MARITE 2 BREGERAR QG ET
issue of approximately 36,000,000 additional ordinary shares #736,000,000f% #2 HM & AR » EE & PT 1S
of the Company which would give rise to the total proceeds X IE 48 58 4947,880,000% 7T (—ZZF =Y
of approximately HK$47,880,000 (2024: HK$47,880,000). 4 1 47,880,000/ L) ©
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29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

On 19 March 2021, share options to subscribe for 60,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were
granted by the Company to certain Directors, employees
and consultants of the Group, subject to acceptance of
the grantees, under the Share Option Scheme. Each of the
share options shall entitle the holder of the share option to
subscribe for one new ordinary share of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$1.33 per share during the exercisable
period from date of acceptance to 18 March 2031. Such share
options have been accepted by the grantees in April 2021.
Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 March 2021.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had approximately 36,000,000
shares issuable under the options, which represented
approximately 4.12% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The capital reserve of the Group at 31 March 2025 and
2024 represents (i) the excess of the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation on 8 February 1996, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor; (ii) the
premium arising on the subscription of shares of Elegance
Group Limited ("EGL"), the then holding company of the
Group's subsidiaries existing at that time, at an aggregate
premium of HK$22,000,000 which was credited to the
capital reserve. The Group reorganisation has resulted in
EGL becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (iii) the contributed surplus included in the Company'’s
reserves (note 39(b)) represents the difference of the amount
of the Company’s share capital immediately before the
capital reorganisation and that immediately after the capital
reorganisation during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

29.

30.

AR HESTEI (B)
RZEBEZ—F=AF+hhH  ARFA
BEBERETE MAKEERTE
Z - BEEREBREATRELRRDF
60,000,0000% & % H 1E0.0178 JT #1 &
BRAOBEBRE EEASERBRAERE
FAEE - BHBRER T ERERS
EAREEMERE _T=—F=H8
T NANBZTEHANIRITEESRERSG
13BFLREB—RARAFLERERRZ
BEH - EHEREBEER_ZT-_—FNW
REARBRAZEN ARARREZER
BZHFBHIRARARBHAE T
T—F=At+NBzRE-

HEZSHRAVHHRRENAZR
7R B #9748 36,000,0000% R 1 B A% & 0]
TERITZRG  BEERAQRRZAB
BEITRMDAIAL412% o

i
AEEAFERBEFE HEBE
REMEDHNGAREEHRLT -

RZTE_AFRZ_Z-_NMF=H
=t—H AEEBZEARREBEEOR
B—hAAARNE-_ANBETZAEE
SHAFMKRERB AR 2 RMEAERAN
NAEIGL BEITERB ZRDEE ZHE
ERIE: (\REAKENBRARER
ZEBRRARAEEEEERAR (IS
HEE)RODAMELEGE BE5E
22,000,000/8 TLE T A B AR - A&
BEdR<cafEsERAERRRZ2ER
B A Ri)gr AXRRQ B REEZ A
A& (B1EE39(0b)) F EHEZT - —F
—A=+—HLFE BEEELXAEH
ATEEEERNSHERNARBRASE
Ry =58 o

BEFERBMNBRABMEEZET
BECHAFERARKEYH -
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(i) On the current year

The Group had not disposed any subsidiary for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

(ii)) On the prior year

31. HEMEBAE

(i) NEFE
AEERBE-_FT-_RAF=A
=4 — B LRI
BAT -

(i) RBEFE

2024
el 11 5
HK$'000
FET

Net cash outflow on disposal of: HEATEE 2R RLFHE

— Hainan Qifang Culture Company Limited —BEEF EBER QR

(the "Hainan Qifang”)* (Mermpxs )~ (158)
(158)

On 16 May 2023, the Group deregistered Hainan Qifang,
and accordingly, the wholly-owned subsidiary held by
Hainan Qifang, namely Jiangsu Fuxing Culture Media
Company Limited*, was also disposed from the Group.

* The English names of these entities are directly translated from

their Chinese names as no English names have been registered.

An analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities of the

RZE-_=FRA+H &*&
BEFEEEmES  BASEER
BENZEWNBARIHEEX
{LBEB R A R IMEAR S F= R -

* MRZEERBYEAMAEE
HHRAYEE I EFEE AP XA -

HREEFENONBRANGES

subsidiaries over which control was lost: BERABENIN
2024
kel 11 5
HK$'000
FHT
Assets &E
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - e Rk EA
receivables JE WK IR 17,214
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEDY 158
Liability Bf&
Other payables, accruals and deposits H M ERIE - EFT IR
received ke ke 18,343
Net liabilities disposed of EHEREFE (971)
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 31. HEMBAST (45)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT Zl =
2024
el 11 5
HK$'000
FET
Cash received EHRE -
Total cash consideration ReEREBEE =
Net liabilities disposed of EHERBEFE 971
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon % & B BR [ 35K B & 6
disposal 9,173
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) & — FRI BT B8 2 A 2 W as (B 5E6) 10,144
An analysis of cash flows from the disposal of subsidiaries as HEMBRARZESREDTNAT
follows:
2024
—ETMEF
HK$'000
THETT
Cash consideration received EHRRERE -
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERERRITER (158)
Net cash outflow from disposal PE—FWHBARZRE
of a subsidiary T FRR (158)

SHNCEEBRERGR AR 2024/2025 5 173
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31 March 2025
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32. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

32. ZEHRERERME

Changes in liabilities arising from financing ELXBRETEHEEEE
activities
Interest-
bearing
borrowings
TREE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2023 RZZE_=FMA—H =
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREF 12,548
Accrued interests on borrowings B RIEFTF A 599
At 31 March 2024 R-ZF_MFE=A=1+—~H 13,147
At 1 April 2024 RZZEZMNFEHWPA—H 13,147
Changes from financing cash flows HEREREZY 28,704
Accrued interests on borrowings f& ST AR 2,863
At 31 March 2025 R-_ZFE_A¥=A=+—~H 44,714
33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. EEHHTH
As lessor fEBHBA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with the leases negotiated for terms ranging
from two to three years. The terms of the leases also require
the tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

AEERBEEHEOLHEERERE
WE (REMBHREMEI4) - AEMR
WNTIMEE=F - HOEKTEKX
MPXMNERRZES XREERHHR

R-ZF_AEFR-_F_MFE=H
=t—B ARERBEEEBEFATL
B R BUGH G & H O R UK R (KT
TRBIMBERAT

2025 2024

- el - —E -4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within one year —FR 429 1,054
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRFRN(BIEEERE) 49 531
478 1,585
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 34. RKEBEFRIETE]

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to
the MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by the
employee. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$345,000 (2024:
HK$458,000) represents contributions paid to the retirement
benefits schemes by the Group in respect of the current year.

Apart from the above, the Group has no significant
obligations under retirement benefit schemes at end of both
of the years presented. The Group also had no forfeited
contribution available at end of both of the years presented
to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

For the Group’'s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong,
pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the
Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by
employers or upon retirement), subject to a minimum of 5
years employment period, based on certain formula.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting
LSP payable to an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).

AEBOSMERERBEREBE R —
HREEE BB EcEER
AEREEESHAFAE UNESEN
HXFEAEE -

MABEEHEZKEMS  AEHIE
B T E R A 25% (LA & A1,500/ 7T
BLER)RRESHEER  mMEE N
ERRESB BN - B R BIE
R BNSERE -

AEETEMNBARZEEDATE
B 8% S 3 i B R B B 2 AR R AR A AT
KB ZEWNBRARARERET
B2 A T Bl m R R EF 5 8458
ARS8 A - N E A B % R IR AR F
a2 —BEERREZEELA

== I Tk
BHA

B 1825 Bk 2 BN 42 58345,00058 7T (=
L ~ PO4F : 458,000 JT) 18 AN & B 7
AEZRBRKREFGTE I ZHR -

BrEmEHN  AEBRREZHFE
ABBTARAENFEBRTZEX
B - AKRERNMEZHFERIE
108 U AH SR AT AR AR R 2R 4F A
2B -

RAKEAEFTELENMBARME -
RBEESTE(RRGEL)  AEEEER
EEE TIERT (FIanH e = R SR
KE) REERARRAEEBREBREREX
NRERE S  HEREERBHREF -

SN —ANBFBBENCERBIERTR
EFFERG)D R FFAKE N A A KB
BHERES MR ML REEE
fllE/BR® AREHEMNESD
EHRG 2 ([HKELH]D) -
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN (Continued)

35.

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17th June,
2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived
from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the
LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition
Date (i.e. 1st May, 2025). Separately, the Government of the
HKSAR is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to
assist employers for a period of 25 years after the Transition
Date on the LSP payable by employers up to a certain
amount per employee per year. Under the Amendment
Ordinance, the accrued benefits derived from the Group's
Enhanced MPF Scheme, minus the mandatory contributions,
made pre-, on or post-transition can continue to be used
to offset pre and post-transition LSP. The impact from the
Amendment Ordinance on the Group’s LSP liability and
earnings is considered insignificant.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Company

The Group leased the properties from Million Wave
Limited (“Million Wave”) for a monthly rental of
HK$93,000 for April 2022 to December 2023. Mr.
Hui Leung Wah ("Mr. Hui”), the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, is the beneficial owner
of Million Wave. The amount of rental paid by the
Group for the current year in respect of leasing of the
properties amounted to HK$Nil (2024: HK$837,000),
which has been included in “administrative expenses” of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
also received accounting service fee of HK$Nil (2024:
HK$720,000) from Million Wave.

34. B AEEFIFEI (%5)

35.

BT EIR=—ZE==FxA+tAT
B BUBE R R X851 RE S HX
EEANRERZWHIRIRE S -
BORBREH B (I —E_RAFHA—
R)ERER - Zoh BEEFNITHE
B IR TR AT — IR R AT &) - AR
Bl B & 8925 HE A E B E XM
—EERNEBLEESFNRIRS
T o RIBERTIRE] - A 5% B #1825 58
BestdlEENRERS  AER
#2150 BT - ¥ I B X 8 R 1R P71 O 3R
MR ATE RN RS A R
HERORARSEE - BT RIBEARE
BERIARGEEERANNTZERR
RAETEKX -

FAEALRS

B U S AR A BT RS 1R R L A 36 ) B ¥
2R S5 AEBERERE T2
BALZXS

(a) HEAABETFHEBATZ
—BEEZXS
AEER_ZZ__FOAE=ZT
TEF+ZAMBEBRAA
(M) HEMZE  WKAZH
7 £93,0008 7T - A Al #H T M
BraEffraErs ([
EDERMENETHERA -AE
BAFERBEEMEMIG A
SREARATEE T (ZZT_MF:
837,000 7T)  HE I ALREE
mERPZITHEXR] -

BE-T-AF=A=+—Hi
FE - ASETKRIBERNZ
ERRGETEL (T _OF:
720,000 7C) °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2025, a property was
rented by the Group from Mr. Hui, for the use by a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, Mr.
Poon Sui Hong, as accommodation. The total rental
paid by the Group amounted to HK$444,000 (2024:
HK$900,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
purchased goods of HK$7,528,000 (2024: HK$9,168,000
and received accounting service fee of HK$315,000
(2024: HK$420,000) from Gold Strong, a former
subsidiary related to Mr. Hui.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
received accounting service fee of HK$180,000 (2024:
HK$140,000) from Grand River Investment Limited, a
company related to Mr. Hui.

Outstanding balances with a joint venture

Details of the loan to a joint venture granted by the
Group as at the end of the reporting period are included
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Outstanding balance with the spouse of a
subsidiary’s director

Included in amounts due to related parties (note 23) at
31 March 2025 is amount due to the spouse of Mr. Hui
amounted to HK$Nil (2024: approximately HK$5,431,000)
which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

35. B EANTERS ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

HEAAGBETHEBATZ
—BEEZRXS(E)
BHE_Z-_Af=-A=+—81t
FE O AEEOFLERE—E
Y LAEARRAE THEBRR
CEEFBELELEREEE - K
& E 4 18 £444,0008 7T (=
T — P04 : 900,000 7T) ©

BHE_ZT_Af=-A=+—81t
FE -AEBEHEFEEFAZ
AT [ /&8 A 7 & F BT B8 B 7,528,000
BT (ZZ P04 : 9,168,000/
)M E SR WUKREIZRE A

&5t AR 7% 8315,0008 T (=&
ZPU4E - 420,000/ 7T) °

HE-_T-_AF=-A=+—A81
FE O AEBERIEFLEHFESE
ZRAAIEBENEEEBRRAAXN
2 @5 IR 180,000 7T (=&
ZPU4E : 140,000/ 7T) °

H-HEEATIZKREE
e
AEBEBET—HALEQARERR
WEBRZHBHN GRS T ER
FKFE16 °

H—ZHEBASIMESR
BZEREESHR
R-ZE_RAF=A=+—8 "k
R8N T 30E (M1 5E23) B IR E
NEFEERBzZREATHEIL(Z
=~ H4F : 495,431,000 7T) -
ZRBE AR TR RAR
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Outstanding balance with directors of

(e)

subsidiaries

Included in amounts due to related parties (note 23)
at 31 March 2025 are amounts due by the Group
to Mr. Yu Wing Lung and Mr. Zheng Jian Xiong,
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company, of
HK$1,772,000 (2024: HK$1,772,000) and HK$700,000
(2024: HK$2,288,000) respectively. Such amounts due
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

35. HEANTRS (&)

(d) HMBASIEEZREE
e
RZE_RAF=A=+—8 "k
HEAE AT HIE (B 523) 21
AEBEMGAQDRETHE R
Al ¥E B RIKEE S & KZheng Jian
Xiong%t & 2 KB 5 5l /1,772,000
Bt (ZZT P04 : 1,772,000
JT) %700,0007% 7T (ZZF — P94 :
2,288,000 7T) ° A B8 FE 1 R IE
BEER T EREBRERE
jﬁ °

(e) g%i%"’éﬂkézwﬂ

2025 2024

e e R el 3

HK$'000 HK$'000

FT#R FET

Short term employee benefits = HE B & A 361 360

Post-employment benefits B BS 12 48 A 10 18
Total compensation paid and payable MEEEEA BT RER

to key management personnel ZBemsE 371 378

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEMEE - THBHREAY
B KR M0
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Transactions with a close family member of
a director of certain of the subsidiaries of
the Company

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company disposed of its investment
properties to Power Zone Development Limited
("Power Zone") for a consideration of approximately
HK$15,850,000. Ms. Hui Wing Ka, the daughter of Mr.
Hui, is the beneficial owner of Power Zone.

Upon completion of the property disposal, the Group
leased back the property as short term lease from Power
Zone. The amounts of rental paid by the Group to Power
Zone for the current year in respect of leasing of the
property amounted to HK$600,000 (2024: HK$550,000),
which has been included in “administrative expenses” of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group also
received accounting service fee of HK$270,000 (2024:
HK$240,000) from Power Zone.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
received accounting service fee of HK$345,000 (2024:
HK$220,000) from Power Keen (Hong Kong) Limited,
which Ms. Hui Sze Man, the daughter of Mr. Hui, is the
beneficial owner.

Outstanding balance with an associate

Included in amounts due to an associate (note 23)
as at the end of 31 March 2025, the outstanding
balance arising from film distribution service with
Filmko Entertainment Ltd., the associate of the Group,
amounted to HK$470,000 (2024: Nil).

The related party transactions as set out above also
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(9)

HAASZETHEAE
EFERHBZXS

HE-_ZTE-_—_#F#=ZA=+—H
IEFE  ARAIz2ENB AR
BEEEWELE FTHEB R
BRAR (TR  REDHA
15,850,000/ 7L - fF k2 X 7R
MERZLTABEcETHEEA °

RYERETKE  AEEBEH
HEANEEREEHEE - A%
EAFEREEMER DX
2 F 4 I8 /600,000 7T (—F
— P94 : 550,000 7T) - & B 5
AEralEERPZTHEAX] -

HEz_E-_AF=H= +_ H
WEFE - AEE IR RE A
2 @5 IR 8270,0000 T (ZF
ZPU4E : 240,000/ 7T) °

BHE-_Z-_RAF¥=A=+—HI
FE AEERIFEEZZR
AFFLLRERES AZEH
(BE)BRAAXNZ &R
5 B3450008 T (Z T M4 :
220,000 7T) ©

H—HEEATZKREE
e
HE-_ZTZ-_RAF=-A=+—8"
A — B & QB R IE (M
FE23) R AEEEE QR 2
RELBFR AN ZBEHEITRY
KIE B 46 5470,0008 T (= F
ZPOAF ) o

EXFREAEALRZTEX L
MRAUFBUAEMATHER H
HFEEERS °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. HEMEI P ZEMT R

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERAR SHEeMIAEZKREEAE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (I
follows:
31 March 2025 —E-RE=A=+—H
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
HRig s
BAE
ZERMEE
HK$'000
FET
Trade receivables JE W5 AR TR 747
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFATERFIE - ek
deposits and other receivables HihEW KRBz @R EE 1,136
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EHEY 8,735
10,618
Financial liabilities SRBRE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REHR A
Rz 2R & &
HK$’000
THET
Trade payables FE TR R 6,526
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAE MR - ERTRIER
accruals and deposits received EiEezeRBE 22,741
Interest-bearing borrowings ATREEE 44,714
73,981

180 Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report



o

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

36. FINANCIgL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  36. i#fEfEI o2z T H (&)
(Continued)

31 March 2024 —E-NE=A=+—H
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
bice X1t
A2
JEREE
HK$'000
FHET
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 4,082
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFATERFIE ek
deposits and other receivables HEhWRIEBEZERMEE 10,099
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEED 7,054
21,235
Financial liabilities ol A=K
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Bi-g: i3 IDWIN
TRz emBaE
HK$'000
FHET
Trade payables FEfTER X 7,680
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAE MR - ERTRIER
accruals and deposits received Blkeszemas 23,611
Interest-bearing borrowings AEEE 13,147
44,438
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 37. £ THZ AR BERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =R

182

The Group's finance team headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
finance team reports directly to the financial controller.
At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial controller.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 was assessed to be
insignificant.

Financial assets measured at fair value
The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of convertible bonds has been calculated by
discounting the cash flow to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits to be derived from the
convertible bonds, based on an appropriate discount rate.

AEBUAMBRERB T/ NEE

BEETEMIAAAEFEZBRER
B - B/ VABER A S EEER -
RERSAH FHIEAITERT
AZEBEEDYEFHETHAIE
WABE - - HEKMBAEENRI
o HEAERERHERZZESSE
FETMANHR AR B RFEY
B R -

TMEERABZAABRZEMT
ARBRENTEMRS GERARBE
MHE)FARBZ SRR - B A
REFRAATITERBRR

ZE_RAEFERER_ZE_OF = A
+—H AEBEAXAFZFABEEZ
YRR FEATERK-

BAREGEZEMEE
BAREHABEZ EHREREZ
DABHERTIHRE;H -

e 11 2

AMBREFZAARBNEBEEER
BEXFREREVEANUFTHEE TR
BEFMEL ZFAMARKEENGE 2
REMH -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 7. 2T RAZARERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following table gives information about how the fair TREHANOETZECREEAN
values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, EHE R (BRI 2 E i XA A ®
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). BASE) o

As at As at  Fair value

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
R-EZEE iz

=ZA=+-H ZA=t—H AREER GERTRERGAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Investments in convertible bond - - Level 3 Valuation technique:
AHREFRE F3Mk fEE R -

Discounted cashflow
BRBeRE
Key unobservable inputs:
Discount rate and future cash inflow
BRI ABRHE AL
Eﬁiﬁ$&5’ﬂﬁﬁimu

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value FIRAREFTEZHER
measurement
Investments
in convertible
bond
iR ESH
=
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2023 RZE_=FNA—H 17,160
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss (Note b) Bz R 2 A EEE (Hitb) (1,496)
Reclassified to other receivables B EE E A EKGIR (15,664)
At 31 March 2024 and 2025 R-B-_WNER-_T_RF
=A=+—H -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value

measurement (Continued)

(@) There were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and 2 for both of the years ended 31
March 2025 and 2024. Except for the aforementioned
reclassification of investments in convertible bond to
other receivable, there were no transfer into or out of

Level 3 for financial assets for both of the years ended
31 March 2025 and 2024.

(b)  Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2024 amounted to HK$1,496,000, which
relates to investment in convertible bond. The fair value
loss is included in other operating expenses (note 7).

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost approximate their fair value. The fair value,
which included in Level 3 category, have been determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing model based
on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

ERMTAZARERARE
Bk (%E)

EIRMAREFEZHER (B)

@ REBEE_ZE_AFRER-_ZFT_F
ZA=t+—BHLMEEE  AA
Bt EWER B 1L EFE2 2
HE R M BRBRESRESE
FoBEEEMEWRGKIEN - RE
E-T-_AFERT-_MF=H
Z+—HUIEREFE TESH
BESANBEIREL -

LR

b) REBEE-T-_NF=A=+—H
LEE RBESHIAZAAES
18 731,496,000/ 7T - B2 A # p% (B
FREB@ - AREBBRFAH
il 48 & 5 2 (B RE7) o

YHRBRAAEBFTENERMEER
ERMEE
ARAPEZTRRIEHEBHKAEENE
REELRTRABZEEAEREERAR
BRE - FFAREHN LA BEERER
RRERENMZ AREBEAEE -
BRERZBABEBERRRHFIIE
BRI E -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables, accruals and deposits received and interest-
bearing borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
in a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Most of the Group's sales were denominated in United
States dollars while expenditures incurred in the operations
of manufacturing plants and capital expenditures were
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. Management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will further consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s loss before tax and the Group's equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

38. A EEHFREBER

AEENFESRITABSERKEREN
AN FIE - HE R H it B UGRIR
LEMEE -BROoABEFABRRELZE
BMEE BReMBEFEY EBHEK
o RF AR KR - BAF KA R
BEhzesemBERTEREER &
ZeMTANFBERENHREME -
HZEFIRTAABENEREEDS
Rk (B RERE - M XE R R ER
Rig)  FERBRIEABESER - &
BZERROBRRENRTX - AEH
EEEERTERZFREARNAERE
BAEMEEBEER -

S BE . Bz

AEEEEXZEEER - ZFER
TREEEMIRZEMIET I
ERMEEMEL AKEAIDHE
ETINE MAEEREEEMES
A REARZTIAARES|E - K
SERKTERPINEL FBR - &
BELENERIINERR AHRE
FEEE-TEREFEAINERR ©

TRETRREMRERA H M &

HRIAE MARBEXRAIELERES
BEPHIERT AKERTAER
EAsBka(HEEEERBEAR
BEHIREE) 2 HBEE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

3&%?@@%@5%@&%

=

N

Foreign currency risk (Continued) SpEE P (48)
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease)
RMB rate loss before tax in equity*
ARBER Br#i s 1R MR
E#(TE)  #GRD) #inGRD)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET FHEIT
Year ended 31 March 2025 BE_TS_-A%=R
=+—HILEE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens BT ARBRE
against RMB 5 (95) (95)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens /&t i AR FE
against RMB (5) 95 95
Year ended 31 March 2024 HE—T-MEF=A
=+-BiER
If Hong Kong dollar weakens BT ARBRE
against RMB 5 (304) (304)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens /&L A REFHE
against RMB (5) 304 304
Interest rate risk Fl 2= 7 Bz

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank deposits
with floating interest rates. The Group regularly reviews
and monitors the floating interest rate in order to manage
its interest rate risks. The directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments
and determined that the Group has no significant interest rate
risk.

AEBFRASTENEXEHAREER
EAKETERITFRAH AKHE
EHmE REEFHNRAEEER
ZRER - ARREZCHAKETNR
EMTAETERLRRASEY E
EAMERER
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement
of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative
nearly risk-free rates. There is no impacts on the Group's
risk management strategy arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform and the progress towards implementation
of alternative benchmark interest rates as the Group have
no instruments bearing interest at IBOR as at 31 March
2025 and 2024. The Group is closely monitoring the market
and managing the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming

38. Eﬁ’;ﬂ[‘“*"iﬂﬁi‘“ BB 3R

2=l b (48)
EREGEHETRHRELETRAM
HE - BRNETERRNERNEX
BRETRTRAEZHRB ((RITAX
HED - MEREERS R BEREEFR
Tmamﬁﬁiﬂﬁ$%lﬂﬁg
RBELAZE REASAKERZ
“ThAFER-FE-_WME=ZA=+— EI
BTN TAZRITEARFESE A
SELEZUEEMBSRERRNE
ERERBEE BREMEBRITREZRE
EERBIELZAE -

THSRERED N HERITERIETE
TEARBERROMNEARETE - 3
FERABEME  ABAITIERERN T
THRREEABNEERE2FAY

the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the REEMARE o
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting ?é.? NEfEEZEE A S ERFEER

interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 March 2025 would decrease/increase by
HK$44,000 (2024: decrease/increase by HK$35,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank deposits (2024: bank deposits).

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

S 5 FSOME 2 B M0 R - LR B 3B
EHHTMT%QE“%WmﬁﬁﬁO

MAMESH FRESOEEZ A E
HMEERFIAE MAEERHE_Z
“HFZA=Z+—HILFENEERK
B L,/ 18 44,0008 7T (Z T — P4
1 IN35,00008 7T) W I EE EEI
RAEEMZERITTER L—

E : fﬂ?i'rﬁ/\)@ﬁuu%”:%‘:ﬂ R

{5 & El b
AEBERERVTAEETHRIFZ
E=ZFTRAEATETRS - KA&EHE
ZBRBMARREESTAETER
ZEP HAKBEERERF I
O AR B R R B R R WRIRRRER
BAKE 2 EZERRART TEX -

AEEEMEREE(BREEES
ZEMARGFABNKE R RE
@F%*EZ%ﬂEFﬁZFEH@I
RGHHZREELE  RARRESE
RNZETLAZKRAEE-
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

38. ?%H%AEE EHEB %

Credit risk (Continued) =R (&)
(i) Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits (i) FEWERR HitEWRER
®rE
Trade receivables JE AR

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses for trade receivables
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the loss allowance for
trade receivables was determined as follows:

AEEERABEEMBHRSEASE
RARE M RETA (KA FFRLPT
B REMERE R 2 TR MR R &
B REREFNTRREEER
AT

R-FE_AFR-_F-_HNF=A
=+—B BUREXNERER

BETHSESR
Less than  Three months
Neither  one month to to twelve  Over twelve
pastdue  three months months months
nor impaired past due past due past due Total
BROR b
-fERZ ZfERZ anes
AEHHE =R +={8A +={@R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEL TR TR TR TR
31 March 2025 ZB-RE=R=1-H
Expected loss rate BHEEL 1.5% 2.3% - 100.0%
Gross carrying amount RHLE 323 439 - 1,806 2,568
Loss allowance EREG (5) (10) - (1,806) (1.821)
Lessthan  Three months
Neither  one month to totwelve  Over twelve
pastdue  three months months months
nor impaired past due past due past due Total
-EAz =fERZE ol b
AOBAHE il +ZEA +ZEA @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
31 March 2024 “¥-MmE=R=+-8
Expected loss rate ik il 5p-x 0.2% 21% 483% 5.7%
Gross carrying amount FHER 299 145 331 2,286 5,754
Loss allowance BERR (0 B (160) (1,503) (1672

The above expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M E P E B HERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) B EEY

(i) Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits (i) FEWERM-  HiEKWRIER
(Continued) BE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEW AR 2 (4E)
The Group considers the probability of default upon $EIE§FEWWEEMH¢%FE

initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

° internal credit rating;
° external credit rating;
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

J significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including changes
in the payment status of customer in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
customer.

Other receivables and deposits

The Group uses four categories for deposits and
other receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are aligned
to external credit ratings.

BRMAT R IR S RE M
SEEREERRA S REL
e EFFEEERRESBREE
e REBELELENREARHE
ER LR R ER V)R HER
BHmMEORR REELEER
- AEBEAXFNAEER-
NTHEEREEMHER

s ERTAMAEFEHNZ

SR - B IOR T R
5 oh ) B A 7R £ {0 78 4
B R )
EAEAE(

o EBASRPHEEEEE
BEEREBREALEA
21k

s FPEHRAXETAHE
HERE( BEAKRER
Jf'ﬁml /REI’J ﬂ:ﬂ]%)f'

L 1 JE W STE R %
$E.H#T§/i\&ﬁﬁﬂﬁguﬁlmlﬁﬁ
ANEER  REEEERR X
SHEAETEBBEBENTE &
SR EEERBIREINTEE
FEAR—E -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits

(i)

(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group's expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
5l

Group's definition of categories

FREFREMNNE S

38. ??‘;HBAAEEEHMHﬁ

mE

EEEAR ()

(i) FEH&EE#\ H i FE WK T R

/ 7o 2N (45 )
ﬁ 4/_ /ﬁ //Q*/\ ’E/Xé ‘Q\/ Z (4E)

AEERMEEBEEXNIAR
BERBANT

Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

RN EEGERENEE

Performing

REARYF

Underperforming

REARE

Non-performing
REAR

Write-off

Customers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows

BEFHEXNRE
WBRERE

RERELEHEENRES

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk: significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments are
90 days past due

15 & 2\ B A 08 18 0 e FE Wk OE ¢ 38 HA90
HEEMNER %A&e  ARREER
O NUER D

Interest and/or principal repayments are
365 days past due
B3 HEEME R, SRS

Interest and/or principal repayments
are two years past due or there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery

FER/ IR EFBAMENTFEK
B8y & 32 78 HA

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime

12EANERER - HEENEFTFHD

K12 A - RIEHEBRIZE R F 85
=

Lifetime expected losses

2 HFEHIEE

Lifetime expected losses
FHEHER

Asset is written off

W E E

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category of
deposits and other receivables and adjusts for forward-
looking macroeconomic data.

AEBBBNEARBEREEER
BEEMRBBSEEERRA
EEf’EEJr%?E/HﬂFEJ%EXH%
AEEEETEEHERS REME
Y SR IR Y JEE St 5 98 2R 3 S AT BE 1
M ABRESIRIEL AR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits
(Continued)

Concentration of credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk and the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is derived from its trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables, deposits and, other receivables,
and cash deposits at banks.

The credit quality of the debtors is assessed based
on their financial positions, past experience and other
factors. The Group has policies in place to ensure
credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 30% (2024: 64%) and 90%
(2024: 85%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, within the Europe, America
and the PRC (including Hong Kong) regions. However,
the Group concludes that the credit risk in relation to
these customers is not significant because they have no
history of default in recent years. The Group's historical
experience in collection of receivables falls within
recorded allowance and the directors of the Company
do not expect any additional material impairment
on trade receivables, and receivables from other
counterparties.

Receivables that aged less than 90 days substantially
related to various customers that has a good trade
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there had not been a significant
change quality and the balance are still considered fully
recoverable.

Cash at bank and bank deposits

38. ?i“)‘ﬂﬂ“*iﬂﬁh,ﬁﬁ

mE

fsEmEbE (8)

(i)

(i)

EWERR - HMEWFER
B& (&)

EHZE R
AEEEREERR  UEASE

BEReREEFBEANEER
ke HERERR  BRERK
FEU A B~ RS R B B W 5RO
MBITHRESFR -

BHEANGEEZLE NIRERS
B BESCHLEMAER
i aFfd o NEEFZRABE AR
MASEEEARDEES - R{®
SR AR AEEZ EUWRER
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The table below shows the details of bank deposit T%EJ/T\ N EBRTFENRTT
balances maintained at the end of the reporting period: GFERERIFFERS

2025 2024
t- ekt - —EHFE
Rating HK$'000 HK$'000
4R TERT FHT
Cash at banks and bank deposits A3 - Aa? 7,683 4,902
RITRERMITHENR Baal - Baa2 1,024 2,152
8,707 7,054
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash at bank and bank deposits (Continued)
The rating represents long-term credit rating provided
by Moody’s, an internationally recognised credit rating
agency. Credit rating with a minimum of “Baa2” are
judged to be upper-medium grade and are subject
to low credit risk under the rating regime of Moody'’s.
Given that significant portion of the bank deposits are
placed with banks that are independently rated with
high credit rating with no default history in past years,
management of the Group considers that the credit risk
on the bank balances and bank deposits is limited.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans. The Group's policy is to minimise borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

38. %ﬁ’;ﬂﬂ“‘iiah,\ﬁ;ﬁ

mE

SERE (&)

(i) H|ITHERBITER(E)
FAERE (—HEBERRANGE
BB REORBEE
AR -BEALHE THER
[Baa2 | MEEH AT L& -
FERKRIK ZERRIBOHRIT
GRLDGEHRREBLTRAESE
BERARBEFELEENE
EEE’J%E/ CAEEERERAR

EHREBOTHERNEERRE
5E'<°

LEN A & R
AEERBEEHADESREATE
ERAESRRAR - ZTAEZED
SRMTARDRMEE (WMEKENR) 2
BMBREHZEARSRE -

AEEZBRERBRBERRTERR
FEESHELRBEREUE ZHERF
& AEEZBREREERIEE -

$EIEA$I§%,HE3H§E§M’ME5EEEEE
NREEFEZeRABEI MR RN
T

2025
Z¥CiE

Over Carrying

On demand 1 year Total amount at

or less than  but less than Over undiscounted 31 March

12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2025

R-%RE

EEkd Bidg AHR ZA=+-8H

bir28R BHR5E BidsE RERE4EE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERn TET TR TiER TER

Trade payables RS 6,526 - - 6,526 6,526
Financial liabilities included in other payables,  FFARMERFE - B HEREMR

accruals, and deposits received heeBaR 2,74 - - 2,74 22,7

Interest-bearing borrowings HERE 44,714 - - 44,714 44,714

73,981 - - 73,981 73,981

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2024/2025 Annual Report
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REMBERERME

31 March 2025
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MR EEBFEEBIR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE RS (E)
2024
ZECRE
Over Carrying
On demand 1 year Total amount at
orlessthan  but less than Over  undiscounted 31 March
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2024
i 3
EEsks BEE REBE ZA=+-BH

Si2EA [BORF BBF HoiEsE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TR TEL TEL TEL

Trade payables ERER 7,680 = = 7,680 7,680
Financial liabilities included in other payables,  FFARMERFE - Bt HEREMR
accruals, and deposits received heeBAR 23611 = = 23611 23611
Interest-bearing borrowings tEfEE 13147 - - 13147 13147
44438 - - 44438 44438
Capital management EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management AEBEXRER T EZAERRER
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going SEAGREBEREZ RN RERRER
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to MEALLE UXHAEBRESR
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The REBE AEEMNEEBRBHELEFR
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the R o
prior year.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEERERBERAZESMEIERE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. REBUMATAE - BEFIFARE
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may R AEELSRABMKRRIRE
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital ZHRE  RRREREERKETHR
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject e AKBERAITMINAFMEZE
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes REKNR -RBE_T_RAFR=
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for TN FE=ZRA=+—HLEFER " &
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and BEAZER HEIBEFILELR
2024. 23 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. A QAT ZHBIKRAE

THE COMPANY

2025 2024
—EF-hHE —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET AT
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note a) RWBRR ZH®RE (Hita) 39,512 46,409
39,512 46,409
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Prepayment, deposits and other BRHIE 2Rk
receivables E {th g Uk F08 100 100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 6,217 61
6,317 161
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Other payables and accruals Hh FE R 5RIR R BT FRIR 3,109 3,642
Interest-bearing borrowings SHEEE 17,928 13,147
21,037 16,789
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBAEFE (14,720) (16,628)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEABRRDEE
LIABILITIES 24,792 29,781
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBAE
Due to subsidiaries FEATBY B A A 26,461 26,461
Net (liabilities)/assets (8@ BEFE (1,669) 3,320
EQUITY s
Share capital % < 8,728 8,728
Reserves (note b) i (M 3Eb) (10,397) (5,408)
(Capital deficiencies)/total equity (BARE 4L, HESaE8 (1,669) 3,320

ARRWHBRAKEREFTERN =
T_AFRNA=THHERTE T

The Company'’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 June

2025 and is signed on its behalf by: WHRATATRAERSE
Zhu Guohua Gu Jianguo
kEIE FREE
Director Director
BEF EE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=ZA=+—H

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. XA ZHBRAER (E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: B 3
(a) Included in investment in subsidiaries are amount due from subsidiaries (a) & U Bt B8 A \) 3R I8 497,055,0008 T (=&
of approximately HK$7,055,000 (2024: HK$13,953,000). Z P94 : 13,953,000% 7T) 5T AR KB A &)
ZRE -
(b) A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: b) AARZEEHBMOT :
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
& 153 it {E AR BN #itiBiE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2023 R-oE-—=#mA—A 247,085 212,481 (413,497) 46,069
Loss and total comprehensive FABBREZEMAXEHE
expense for the year - - (51,477) (51,477)
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 RZZE-_NMF=A=+—A8K
ZZEZHFMA—H 247,085 212,481 (464,974) (5,408)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREEMAXZERE
expense for the year - - (4,989) (4,989)
At 31 March 2025 R-ZB-HAE=A=+—8 247,085 212,481 (469,963) (10,397)
The Company's contributed surplus at 31 March 2025 RZZE_RE=A=+—H FK2QA
represents the difference between the consolidated net ZHABBRESHEEER -NNREF
asset value of EGL on 8 February 1996, the day on which its ZANB (KRR ARE M 30T 2 &R
entire issued share capital was acquired by the Company SEHEARBEE2BEHITREAZA)
pursuant to the Group reorganisation referred to in note 30, ZEABEFEEEREBKEEE
and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued in ZREMBEITZARBRG EELZE
consideration for such acquisition. ZER o
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), BEARE-NN-—FRRE (KE
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to ) RRBZBABRBRARETER
shareholders under certain circumstances. THIR TR o
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Particulars of Properties

MRFRS
31 March 2025
—E-_hA¥=A=+—H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Use

th Bh A&

Tenure

HE

REME

Applicable
interest of
the Group
AERE
BRAES

B5, 4th Floor, Block B, Industrial
Mai Hing Industrial Building, 16
-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
E I%¥
BEELE
W16 185
ERIEKRNE
BEE4IEBSE

House No. 203 and Vacant
two car parking spaces,
Boulevard Du Lac,

The Beverly Hills,

23 Sam Mun Tsai Road,
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong

BB
AKX
= PIfFR&235%%
LEEERIIL R E
H=E
2 5 E 20357 K i (& = iz

Het
i

Shop 240 on 2nd Floor, Commercial
China Travel Commercial City,
No. 219 Zhong Shan Wu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC
TEERSE [
BT B F R
L R BE2195%
SNITEE S
25— [E240%

Medium

8

N/A

=
&
i

Medium

5

100%

100%

100%
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